LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire B 1140 s, CA 9001 EL (213) 73 AX (213) 63
http://hlv.l ounty.gov

COMMISSION ON HIV
MEETING

Thursday, June 8, 2017
9:00 AM -12:15 PM

St. Anne’s Conference Center
Foundation Room
155 North Occidental Blvd.
Los Angeles, CA 90026



LoS ANGELES COUNTY
CoOMMISSION ON HIV

VISION

A comprehensive, sustainable, accessible system of prevention and care
that empowers people at risk, living with or affected by HIV to

make decisions and to maximize their lifespans and quality of life.

MISSION

The Los Angeles County Commission on HIV focuses
on the local HIV/AIDS epidemic and responds to the
changing needs of People Living With HIV/AIDS (PLWHA)

within the communities of Los Angeles County.

The Commission on HIV provides an effective continuum of care
that addresses consumer needs in a sensitive prevention and
care/treatment model that is culturally and linguistically competent

and is inclusive of all Service Planning Areas (SPAs).




LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

a 3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140, Los Angeles, CA 90010 - TEL. (213) 7382816 - FAX (213) 637-4748
3

@ www_hiv_lacounty.gov
[ g m

GUIDELINES FOR CONDUCT

The Los Angeles County Commission on HIV has played an active role in shaping HIV services
in this County and in the State for over a decade. The dedication to providing quality services
to people with and at risk of HIV/AIDS by people who are members of this body, both past
and present, is unparalleled.

In order to encourage the active participation of all members and to address the concerns of
many Commissioners, consumers and other interested members of the community, it is
important that meetings take place in a “safe” environment. A “safe” environment is one that
recognizes differences, while striving for consensus and is characterized by consistent
professional and respectful behavior. As a result, the Commission has adopted and is
consistently committed to implementing the following Guidelines for Conduct for Commission,
committee and associated meetings.

Similar meeting ground rules have been developed and successfully used in large group
processes to tackle difficult issues. Their intent is not to discourage meaningful dialogue, but to
recognize that differences and even conflict can result in highly creative solutions to problems
when approached in a respectful and professional manner.

The following should be adhered to by all participants and stakeholders:
1)  Be on Time for Meetings

2)  Stay for the Entire Meeting

3) Show Respect to Invited Guests, Speakers and Presenters

4)  Listen

5)  Don’t Interrupt

6) Focuson Issues, Not People

7) Don'tjust Disagree, Offer Alternatives

8)  Give Respectful, Constructive Feedback

9) Don'tJudge

10) Respect Others’ Opinions

11) Keep an Open Mind to Others’ Opinions

12) Allow Others to Speak

13) Respect Others’ Time

14) Begin and End on Time

15) Have All the Issues on the Table and No “Hidden Agendas”

16) Minimize Side Conversations

17) Don’t Monopolize the Discussion

18) Don't Repeat What Has Already Been Said

19) If Beepers or Cell Phones Must Be On, Keep Them on Silent or Vibrate

Approved (11/12/1998); Revised (2/10/2005; 9/6/2005)



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 » Los Angeles, CA 90010 » TEL (213) 738-2816 » FAX (213) 637-4748
http://hiv.lacounty.gov

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

MmO 0O

Agenda

Membership Roster

Committee Assighments

Commission Member Conflict of Interest
Geographic Maps

June - September 2017 Meeting Calendar



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 ¢ Los Angeles, CA 90010 » TEL (213) 738-2816 = FAX (213) 637-4748
www.hiv.lacounty.gov

y
Los Angeles County Commission on HIV (COH)
MEETING AGENDA

Thursday, June 8, 2017
9:00am — 12:15pm

St. Anne’s Conference Center

Foundation Conference Room
155 North Occidental Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA 90026

Notice of Teleconferencing Site:
California Department of Public Health, Office of AIDS
1616 Capitol Ave, Suite 74-616
Sacramento, CA 95814

All Commission meetings will begin at their appointed times.
Participants should make every effort to be prompt and ready.

All agenda items are subject to action. Public comment will be invited for each item.
All “action” (non-procedural) motions are included on the consent calendar and are approved

when the consent calendar is approved.
A motion can be “pulled” from the consent calendar if there are objections to it, or if it is to be

presented or discussed later in the meeting.

Who addresses the issue, Agenda Times are

Members/Visitors: Remember that the agenda order Motions, public comment periods,
(and the scheduled times for items) can be changed or dates/times/venues of future reports on it, and/or who Hjest estimates, but are
significantly delayed during and at a meeting. activities. follows-up subject
after that. o change at any time.
PARTY(IES) SCHEDULED
AGENDA ORDER/AGENDA ITEMS MOTIONS/ACTIONS
RESPONSIBLE TIMES
1. Callto Order B Land/R Rosales 9:00 am — 9:03 am
Co-Chairs, COH
A Roll Call
2. Approval of Agenda MOTION #1 Commision 9:03am — 9:05 am
3. Approval of Meeting Minutes MOTION #2 Commission 9:05 am — 9:07 am
S iMEIR 9:07am — 9:10am

4. Executive Director’s Report ESecliveiDieca i coH



Commission on HIV

June 8, 2017

2 of 5

AGENDA ORDER/AGENDA ITEMS

MOTIONS/ACTIONS,

DATES and LOGISTICS

SCHEDULED
TIMES

PARTY(IES)
RESPONSIBLE

5. Co-Chairs Report B Land/R Rosales, Co-Chairs, COH 9:10am — 9:15am
A Commissioner Welcome & Service Recognition
B Meeting Management
C 2017 Membership Cohort/Drive
County’s Health Department Integration : ; S

6. Advisory Board (IAB) Report Report COH IAB Representatives 9:15am 9:18am

3 e . A Marquez

Housing Opportunities for People With : : ; :

7. Housing + Community Investment Dept 9:18am — 9:35am
AIDS (HOPWA) Report City of Los Angeles

i ati rogram, Depart t of Public Health F Pratt, MD, MPHTM, FACEP
& IRrr:er:;lnlzatlon Al S b Medical Director, Immunization Program ~ 9:3%5am —  9:45am
Dept of Public Health

Division of HIV and STD Programs (DHSP), Department M Peréz, MPH, Director, DHSP D A R

9. of Public Health

10. California Office of AIDS (OA) Report
A OA Work/Information

State Office of AIDS 10:05am — 10:20am

M Arnold, MS-HAS, Chief, Care Branch, OA

11. Break

10:20am — 10:35am

12. Standing Committee Reports
A Standards and Best Practices (SBP) Committee

10:35am — 11:35am

J Cadden, MD/G Granados, MSW, Co-Chairs

(1) Prevention Standards Presentation: 30-Day Public Comment Period Now Open

(2) Housing Standards

B Planning, Priorities & Allocations (PP&A) Committee

(1) Comprehensive HIV Plan (CHP) Update

A Ballesteros, MBA/J Brown, Co-Chairs

(2) PS12-1201 Comprehensive HIV Prevention Program End of Year Progress Report

(3) DHSP Solicitations Summary
C Operations Committee
(1) Policies and Procedures
(2) Membership Management
(a) 2017 Membership Cohort/Drive
(3) Training/Orientation
D Public Policy Committee
(1) County Legislative/Policy Issues
(a) COH Legislative Docket Updates
(2) State Legislative/Policy Issues
(a) FY 2018 Governor's State Budget | May Revise
(3) Federal Legislative/Policy Issues
(a) FY 2018 President’s Proposed Budget

T Bivens-Davis/K Stalter, Co-Chairs

A Fox, MPM/W Watts, Esq., Co-Chairs

(b) Social Security Administration Revised Criteria for Evaluating HIV Infection

(c) Healthcare Access

S:\2017 Calendar Year\Commission\06 - June\Agenda\Agen-Commssn Mtg-060817-final.docx



Commission on HIV June 8, 2017

3 of 5
AGENDA ORDER/AGENDA ITEMS el e e IS s e
13. ggggtrltss,Task Force and Work Group Caucus, Taskgg_lgﬁaailrr;d Work Group PR i I
14. City/Health District Reports City/Health District Representatives 11:40am — 11:43am
15. SPA/District Reports SPA/District Representatives 11:43am — 11:46am
16. AIDS Education/Training Centers (AETCs) J Gates, PhD, AETC 11:46am — 11:49am
17. Public Comment (Non-Agendized or Follow-Up) Public 11:49pm — 11:59am
18. Commission Comment (Non-Agendized or Follow-Up) Commission Members/Staff 11:59am — 12:09pm
19. Announcements Commission/Public 12:09pm — 12:15pm
20. Adjournment 12:15pm

$:\2017 Calendar Year\Commission\06 - June\Agenda\Agen-Commssn Mtg-060817-final.docx



June 8, 2017 4 of 5

Commission on HIV

PROPOSED MOTION(S)/ACTION(S)

PROCEDURAL MOTION(S):

Adjust, as necessary, and approve the Agenda Order.

Approve minutes from the Commission on HIV meetings, as presented or revised.

COMMISSION ON HIV MEMBERS

Bradley Land, Co-Chair Ricky Rosales, Co-Chair Majel Arnold, MA-HSA Traci Bivens-Davis

Al Ballesteros, MBA Jason Brown Joseph Cadden, MD Danielle Campbell, MPH

Deborah Owens Collins, pA, MSPAS, Michele Daniels Kevin Donnelly

Raquel Cataldo AAHIVS

Matthew Emons, MD Michelle Enfield Aaron Fox, MPP Jerry D. Gates, PhD

Bridget Gordon Grissel Granados, MSW

Joseph Green Terry Goddard, MA
Lee Kochems, MA
' A Ls Eric Paul L Mi | Marti MSW, MP
Eduardo Martinez (Alteraate) bad Lopez ric Paul Leue iguel Martinez, MSW, MPH
John Palomo

Anthony Mills, MD José Munoz Derek Murray

Raphael Péna Mario Peréz, MPH Juan Preciado Thomas Puckett, Jr.

Ace Robinson, MPH Maria Roman Rebecca Ronquillo Sabel Samone-Loreca

Martin Sattah, MD Terry Smith, MPA LaShonda Spencer, MD Kevin Stalter

Terrell Winder

Yolanda Sumpter Susan Forrest (Alternate) Will Watts, Esq

Octavio Vallejo, MD, MPH

MEMBERS: 3 Commissioner/
‘ for 51 Seats ' LEGEND:: e

QUORUM:

$:\2017 Calendar Year\Commission\06 - June\Agenda\Agen-Commssn Mtg-060817-final.docx



Commission on HIV June 8, 2017 50f5

All agenda items are subject to action Public comment will be invited for each item
The Commission Offices are located in Metroplex Wilshire, one building west of the southwest corner of Wilshire and Normandie.
Validated parking is available in the parking lot behind Metroplex, just south of Wilshire, on the west side of Normandie. Interpretation
services for the hearing impaired and translation services for languages other than English are available free of charge upon request. To
arrange for these services, or for additional information about this committee, please contact Dina Jauregui at (213) 738-2816 or
diauregui@lachiv.org.

Servicios de interpretacion para personas con impedimento auditivo y traduccidn para personas que no hablan Inglés estan disponibles sin
costo. Para pedir estos servicios, pongase en contacto con Dina Jauregui al (213) 738-2816 (teléfono), o por fax al (213) 637-4748, por lo
menos cinco dias antes de la junta.

NOTES on AGENDA SCHEDULING, TIMING, POSTED and ACTUAL TIMES, TIME ALLOTMENTS, and AGENDA ORDER

Because time allotments for discussions and decision-making regarding business before the Commission’s standing committees cannot
always be predicted precisely, posted times for items on the meeting agenda may vary significantly from either the actual time devoted to
the item or the actual, ultimate order in which it was addressed on the agenda. Likewise, stakeholders may propose adjusting the order of
various items at the commencement of the committee meeting (Approval of the Agenda), or times may be adjusted and/or modified, at the
co-chairs’ discretion, during the course of the meeting.

If a stakeholder is interested in joining the meeting to keep abreast of or participate in consideration of a specific agenda item, the
Commission suggests that the stakeholder plan on attending the full meeting in case the agenda order is modified or timing of the items is
altered. All Commission committees make every effort to place items that they are aware involve external stakeholders at the top of the
agenda in order to address and resolve those issues more quickly and release visiting participants from the obligation of staying for the full
meeting.

External stakeholders who would like to participate in the deliberation of discussion of an a posted agenda item, but who may only be able to
attend for a short time during a limited window of opportunity, may call the Commission’s Executive Director in advance of the meeting to
see if the scheduled agenda order can be adjusted accordingly. Commission leadership and staff will make every effort to accommodate
reasonable scheduling and timing requests—from members or other stakeholders—within the limitations and requirements of other possible
constraints.

$:2\2017 Calendar Year\Commission\06 - June\Agenda\Agen-Commssn Mtg-060817-final.docx



(5930844 1539 pue spaepuEls) 4BS (A0 GNd) dd (Suonedoly
£T0Z '0€ aung STOZ ‘T Anf s5BUJ|3M PUE YijeaH '(v1dv) sajaduy 507 333f0ld Saiv FETNEETETEIN] Vdd T 8i PANEIUI52I02) JAPIOYNEIS AIH | (15
8107 O sunf 370z ‘T AInt Jawnsuo3 pajoiyffoun ©33J07-3UOLIES [3ges Sd0 T £# aanejuasaidal 1apjoyayels AlH | (0
LTOZ ‘O 3ung STOE ‘T AInT V/N SIABQ-SUaalg el 5d0 T 94 annejuasaidal sapjoyaeis AlH | (6b
8T0Z ‘DE aunf 910z ‘T AIng HONTW/Y 10N jeadwe) ajEueg Sd0O T S SAETUSS3I03T IBpIoUsEE AN T T
1107 ‘o8 aunf 510z ‘T Ajnf uonjeo) yraads aalq N3 |ned Ju3 dd T i daneIusasdal Japjoyanels AlH 11
8107 “OF aunr 9107 ‘T AInT uoneiodio) YyeaH Aajjea 1seayLIoN operdalg uenp 5d0 T £if aanejuasaidal Japjoyayeis AlH [ET3
£10T "0F aunr ST0Z T Kint JUBBA Ti oAnejudsaIdal 1apjoyaNeIs AIH | (St
8107 ‘OF aunf 910z ‘T AIf sajaduy so (endsoy s,uaippyy MSW 'SOPEUEBIS [[355UD das 1 T# aANEIUISAId) Jap|OYARIS AH | (bY
£10T ‘0f aunf ST0Z ‘T AInf el v YEW QW ‘suow3 mayliew d8s T aaneuasaldal AHuade Juuued (eydsoy/yieay jeao] | (ev
BT0Z '0F aunp 910Z ‘T AINT V1 HOV3d J3PUIM Ji31ia] Sd0 T 151U3125 [EOS/|BIOINBY3E | (2b
L10¢ '0F aunp 5107 TAINT ¥MdOH ‘sajsduy so7 jo A ojnbuocy e33agay dd T VMJOH ‘aniejuasaiday | (Tv
810¢ ‘0t aunf 910z ‘T AINf Jawnsuol paioyyfoun pue pesg BE] T S 831j0 pieog ‘anieiuasaiday o
107 ‘0f aunf 510z ‘T AInT weidoid 34y D Yaeag duo] HdIN 'uosuiqoy 33y 48S T ¥ 9210 Pieod ‘aaieIuasaiday | (e
BTOZ 'O€ aunf 910z ‘T At Juodop € 224JO pseog ‘anijejuasasday | (SE
£107 'OF 2unf ST0Z ‘TAIN [95Un0) J1jgnd *bs3 ‘suem m dd T 7 83yjo pieog ‘amnejuasasday | (L€
8107 '0F aunf 910z ‘T AinT “3u] "INMISU| HOMT VAW 'sosaisajed | Wdd T T 221J0 pJeog ‘snieluasaiday | (9€ |
7707 ‘O aunr ST0¢ ‘T AT 1awnsuo3 pajoyifoun uapio9 138pug 5d0 1 i O] 1¢ ISLINSUG pares [
810T "OF aunf 910z ‘1 AInr PuUnd 1D¥dW| Pooysaylosg ayl 121|I5 uARy Sd0 T £ DAJIE[-JE JBLINSUDD palEI|yjEUn (ve
4102 '0€ 3unr SI0Z ‘T AINf Jawnsuod pajolfoun uzaIn o[ sd0jox3 T T# 2818 Je "I3WNsU0D pajeIeun | (€€
8T0T ‘OF 3unf 910z ‘T Ajnr Jatunsuod pajoififfeun JuD30A T4 adie] [F13
110T ‘0% aunt 510z T AINT J2wnsuod pajoyfoun “JF “1124angd sewoy) 485 1 5 12U3sK(] [ELOSIAIBdNS JaWNsuo) pajel [ e
8107 ‘0€ aunf 910z ‘T AInf Jausnsuod pajoijiffoun Ajauuog umay |sdofoxa| T ¥ 1U3s1Q [eW0sIAAdNS JalWNsu03 p | loe
LT07 ‘OF aunf ST0Z ‘T Ainr Jawnsuod pajeljyjeun JupI0p € 12U3siq jeliosiAzadng Jaiinsuo paieligjeun | (62
$T0Z ‘0 aunf 9107 ‘T AT Jauinsuoa pajoififfoun DA Z IS JeL dns “Jawinsuo3 p T4
£10T 0F aunf STOE ‘T AInf Jaunsuo3 pajoyifoun zounp asof dd T T 11sIq euosiuiadng Jalins |
ZaunJel opsenp3 1 8T0T ‘OF 2uny 910z ‘T AInf Jawnsuod paioliffoun VIA Swiay20) 997 dd T 8 VdS Jawnsuod pajenyjeun | (92
2107 "0 2unf G102 ‘T AInf Jawnsuod pajoljyfoun euad |aeydey ¥dd T £ ¥dS “18Wnsuo paiel|yjeun sz
107 'OF aunt 9107 ‘T AT Jawnsuo3 payoififfoun D307 9§ ‘Gauinsuoa pajeijijedry | v
LT0T ‘Om aunp SI0T T b_«._. ;Urr.:amﬂcu nw~n.‘_.,_b‘n== LNHQS_._W EPUE|OA Ydd T § VdS "Jawnsuod paienyeun _ (ez
153403 uesns ix 810 '0OF aunf 910z T At LS IO Ee DS OL T I ¥ ¥dS “13Winsuod pajeljijeun (zz
L107 ‘0f aunr S10z ‘T AT Jawnsuod pa1oyifoun umoig uoser Ydd 1 £ VdS ‘1awnsuol vmum. yeun (tz
8107 ‘OF aunf 910Z ‘T AInf Jawnsuo3 pajoljiffoun zado1 peqy Vdd T 7Vds aauinsuns paveieun | (02
£10t "0€ 2unf ST0Z ‘T AInt Jawnsuos pajoljjoun s|2Iueq IRy sS40 T T ¥dS “Jawnsuod pajeliyeun (6T
B8T0T '0F aunr 910z ‘T AT $3diAdas (pjEa Jo Juawedaq Ajunod v {Tvds) 21U) Japeys puey QW ‘yenes uiuepy dd 1 gt eanejuaseidal Japinold | (8T
10T '0F aunr ST0Z ‘T AN SSaUjjafh PUE UHEaH ‘[ idY) sajaduy 507 19aloid SAIY VAl ‘Yuws Alag dBs T Lt aaneuasaidal sapinodd | (LT
8T07 ‘Of aunf 910z ‘T AInr dnoig [eaIpajyl S,UalAl YD uaYINog QW sl Auoyiuy Vi2dd 1 9jt annejuasaidal 1apiaold [C]4
£102 “0g 2unf STOZ ‘T AInt dujeay pue Jursnoy Joj aduelpy VI ‘pleppog Aua) dd T G aaneuasasdal sapinoyd | (ST
3107 ‘0F aunf 910z ‘T AT Jajua) juswiess] BUeZIE] opjeje) [anbey Sd0]2x3 1 i 2ANRIURS3IdaS JapIAOLg (33
£10¢ ‘o€ aunp s10z ‘T AInr sajaduy 507 |eadsoH s5,uaJpyd HdW ‘MSIN ‘Zaune [andig ¥2dd 1 £if 2anejuasaidal J8pinolg T (33
8T0Z '0€ aunf 910z ‘T AINf 133093 GijeaH [ivdy UBwWOY elew dd T T# aanejuasasdal sapinold (20
£102 "0€ 2unf SI0Z ‘TAINT $3IIAI3S YI[eBH Jo Juawedaq Awuno) v ‘(Tyds) 21ul) J3pelys puey aw 'uappe) sor das 13 Ti aAneIussaIdal ispinoid | (IT
8107 ‘0f Bunr 910z ‘T AInr JSMN 40 3UDIPaA JO [004IS }Ia) G4d "s3ieg "q Auaf dd T annejuasasdal 4 Wed _ (ot
LT0T ‘0€ aunf S10Z ‘T AT $831A135 Y1|eaH Jo juawiedaq Ajunod w1 13 vow OSn + 2w aw “1eauads epuoyse] v3dd T aaneIUasaidal g Yed | (6
810 '0€ dunf 910z T ANt (3719v7) J23ua) uelgsa] pue Aeg sajaduy so7 WdW %04 uotey dd T aneluasaidal D Wed | (8
8T0T '0F aunf 910Z ‘T AT Sailv 46 3310 V3 VHW'plouly [2lew VRdd 1 annejuasaidarg ued (¢
810¢ '0f aunf 910z T ANt YajeaH gnd 4o wawpedag AJuno) v ‘dSHA HdW ‘72194 oliew V3dd 1 dSHQ Jovang (9
LT0Z ‘OF aunf S10T T AT poomAjjo 15am jo A Aeunpyyaiag VBdd 1 idai pocmAjior 1Sam Jo b | 1S
8102 ‘Ot aunf T0¢ T Kinf s3|a8uy 507 j0 AID ‘3310 5,1018UIPI00) SAIY sajesoY AYly X3 1 annejuasaidal sajaduy 50 Jo A | (b
1107 ‘0 aunf ST07 ‘T AInr oeag duo jo Qi ‘sadiAias UBWNH pue ijear jo ydag SAlYY Svdsi Wl ‘SUIJj0D) SUSMQ Yesogad YBdd T aAneluasaidal yoeag Juo jo M
8102 ‘0F 2unr 910z T AInf Euapesed Jo A1) eap Jljqng euspeseq ouwojed uyor 5d0 T BAnEIuasaIdal Buapesed Jo A
L0 ‘OE aunr ST0Z T Ainf JUBIGA SRETGASeIaR] 63 PRI

FLVNHILTY SAN3 WH3L SNID38 WH3L NOILVIIA4V YINOISSIWWOD 1V3S dIHSY3gaWIN

(seieWaa))Y)

pajeas sajewa)|y
uawaudissy
JYWWo)

# 1v3S dIHSHIgWIN

d
]
3
2
3
o
>
o
°
o
3
2
3
]
=l
E

pa1eas SJaUOISSIWWO)

Z1/9/9 pajepdn
HILSOH dIHSHIgGW3IW AIH NO NOSSIWWOO



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

a 3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140, Los Angeles, CA 90010 - TEL. (213) 7382816 - FAX (213) 637-4748
X ) www _hiv_lacounty.gov

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS
(Updated 6-06-17)

Committee Member Name/ Alternate Member Category Affiliation

* = Primary Committee Assignment ** = Secondary Committee Assignment
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Regular meeting day: Fourth Monday of the month  Regular meeting time:  1:00pm—3:00pm
Number of Voting Members: 14 Number of Quorum: 8

Bradigyllandl L i G0 D0 Co-Chair, Comm./Exec.” : Commissioner
RickyRosales e SO-ChEIY, Comm. /Exec. | Commissioner
TraciBivensDavis Co-Chair, Operations | Commissioner
KevinStalter e, COChIT, Operations £ Commissioner
..A' Ballesteros, MBA Co-Chair, PP&A b Lommissioner
dasanBrown e STl DL el Co-Chair, PPEA ... b SOMIMISSIONET,
_Aaron Fox, MPM Co-Chair, Public Policy : _ Commissioner
WIlLWAHS ESQ. e Co-Chair, Public Policy ...Commissioner
Joseph Cadden,MD s Co-Chair, SBP Commissioner
 Grissel Granados, MSW s CO-Chaif, SBP ... Commissioner
RagquelCataldo e A LATEE Member® 4 Commissioner
KevinDonnelly e Bl LETGE Member Commissioner
slosepliCreent oo ioos NOD St At-large Member” ... ....Commissioner

Mario Perez, MPH DHSP Dlrector Commissioner

OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

Regular meeting day: Fourth Monday of the month Regular meeting time: _ 10:00am-12:00pm
............................ Number of Voting Members: 11  Numberof QUOIrUM: = 6 e
(lraciBivens-Davis & e 80 SR B Committee Co-Chair* : Commissioner |
Kevi Stalter e s committee Co: Cha'r* .................... Commissioner ;
Danielle Campbell, MPH | et T Commissioner
Raglel Catae o Commissioner .
Michele D Da"'e's i) et = Mt WP L T T e SR Commissioner
- Kevin | Donnelly : i Con}_miswoner'
BUAEELGOAON e e Commissioner
Joseph G G’ee“ AT AL NIRRT LA Commissioner ;
.Sabel S 53"‘0"9 '-°’eca B ) o T Commissioner ;
..!.9.'.‘.!!...'3?.'.9.[‘.‘..9 ....................................................................... LIPS S Commissioner ;
Juan Preciado o ..commissioner ;

$:\Co-Chairs\Committee Assignments\2017\List-Committee Assign-060817.docx



Committee Assignment List
Updated: June 6, 2017
Page 2 of 4

Committee Member Name Member Category Affiliation

* = Primary Committee Assignment ** = Secondary Committee Assignment

PLANNING, PRIORITIES and ALLOCATIONS (PP&A) COMMITTEE

Regular meeting day: 3" Tuesday of the month  Regular meeting time: 1:00pm-4:00pm
Number of Voting Members: 12  Number of Quorum: 7

...................

Al Ballesteros, MBA Egmmlttee Co-Chair* Commissioner

Jason Brown . Committee Co-Chair* :  Commissioner

EEPTPP R o

Majel Arnold, MHA Commisioner :
Abad Lopez S i Commissioner

Miguel Martinez, MPH, MSW % Commissioner

Zntony MIls MD o el p el el SRR o Commissioner |

Derek Murray i Commissioner

Debi Collins Owens, MPA, MSPAS, AAHIVS 1= 1 Commissioner

Raphael Péna T Commissioner

"LaShonda Spencer, MD i Commlssmner_é

Yolanda Sumpter % Commissioner :

i i e e s DHSPstaff DHSP Staff:é

PUBLIC POLICY COMMITTEE

Regular meeting day: 1st Monday of the month Regular meeting time: _ 1:00 pm-3:00pm
Number of Voting Members: 11 Number of Quorum: 6

......................................................................................

‘Aaron Fox, MPM ! Committee Co- Chair* | Commissioner

................................................................................................

Will Watts, Esq. i committee Co-Chair* Commissioner

Jerry Gates, PhD * Commissioner

Terry Goddard, MA b ey Commissioner

Lee Kochems, MA # Commlssioner

EI'IC Paul Leue . Commlssmner

Commlssmner

Commtssmner
: Rebecca Ronquillo * Commlssmner

Martln Sattah MD T T TR EPTT TR CETTT TP TEPTT CCTETTRTTRTT * e Comm|SSI0ner

*
{o*

Kyle Baker o | DHSPstaff | DHSPrepresentative

S:\Co-Chairs\Committee Assignments\2017\List-Committee Assign-060817.docx



Committee Assignment List
Updated: June 6, 2017
Page 3 of 4

Committee Member Name

Member Category

: Affiliation

¥ o=

Primary Committee Assignment

** =  Secondary Committee Assignment

STANDARDS AND BEST PRACTICES (SBP) COMMITTEE

Regular meeting day:

1% Thursday of the month

Regular meeting time: ~ 10:00am-12:00pm

Number of Voting Members: 7

Number o_f Quorum 4 |

Commissioner :
Commlssmner

] Thomas Puckett Jr.

Matthew Emons, MD, MPH
Angelica Palmeros, MSW

" Commissioner

e o COTIMIttEE MeEMber

Commlssmner
Comm|55|oner

Regular meeting day:

CONSUME
Following Comm. mtg.

................................................................................

R CAUCUS

Regular meeting time:  1:30pm-3:00pm

Open Membership

Kevin Donnelly

Joseph Green

AI Ballesteros, MBA

Commissioner

o Sabe' Samone Loreca L T R T

Mlchele Danle!s

Bridget Gordon

__Lee Kochems MA
Brad Land

..Jose Munoz PR L L LR LR L L L LT R P T
__Raphael Pena

=_.Mar|a Roman

Kevin Stalter

Abadlopez oo
s Ed ua rdo Martinez T T P T PR PR PP
Anthony Mills, MD

go-Chair
Co-Chair

Grissel Granados, MSW__

| Member

Commissioner

Commissioner

............

Member

Member

Commissioner

i Member
i Commlssmner

Alternate
Commlssmner

Member

Member Comm|55|oner

T Y M e m be r sessrssesnssnsansensens
-..Thomas PUCkEtt R TR TR TR TP .

Comm|55|oner
Member Comm|55|oner

TerrySmith, MPA i M

Member Commissioner
Member Commissioner
Member Commissioner

YolandaSumpter ]

Member : Commissioner

S:\Co-Chairs\Committee Assignments\2017\List-Committee Assign-060817.docx



Committee Assignment List
Updated: June 6, 2017
Page 4 of 4

Committee Member Name Member Category Affiliation

* = Primary Committee Assignment ** = Secondary Committee Assignment

() )

3" Wednesday of the month Regular meeting time: 10:00am-12:00pm
Open Membership
BT GO o coThe e COMMissioner

énYoIanda Salmas Co-Chair Commissioner

(] A

Regular meeting time: On haitus until further notice
Open Membersh:p
Grissel Granados, MSW i Chair L Commissioner

Edd C°°kfe" S Gl s emben L SOmMiss|gner )

Eric Paul Leue Member Commlssmner

TRANSGENDER TASK FORCE

Time/Date: TBD

Open Membership
Destin Cortez A v CO-Chair Community Member
...Ma”a R°ma“ c° Chainys e e Commissioner

Susan ForreSt D P D P PP PP PP PP PP PP PP PP PR Member CommiSSioner

Jaden Fields TR, 1. 11| . e 2OTIIUNILY |

E___!S_I_[‘_!_‘Iberly KIS!EI’,_R_I]_D ‘Member Community

S:\Co-Chairs\Committee Assignments\2017\List-Committee Assign-060817.docx



AneiyoAsd ‘yieaH [ejuaN
UOI1BUIPJO0)) 3JE) |BJIP3IAI 121Ul YdJ4easay 1 yijeaH Japeayas puey ydasor NIaavd
(WOV) |ea1pan 1uaiedinQ Aioienquiy

$10e43U02 uoijuanaid 10 AUYM uehy oN uonel|iy oN SIAVA-SN3AIG
UOIlUaA3I{ |eJIpaWOIg
yi|EaH (B0

AneiyoAsd ‘yjesH [eluay
AdeiayioyodAsd ‘yyeaH [eIuay

(DDIA) uoneulpio0) a1e) |e2IPAIN

(LOH) Bunsal pue 3uljasuno) AlH
(¥Y3H) uordNpay Jsiy/uoilednp3 yijesH
|euolyisuel] ‘Juswagdeuep ase)
Ajerdads syjauag

(WOV) |eaipan uaneding Auoleinquiy

$12841U02 UOUaA3Jd 10 YA\ uehy oN 12WNSU0D pajel|ieun E NMOYE
$10B43U02 uollUaAaLd 10 aNYM uely oN SAlV JO 221440 31.IS BlUIOYI|RD é aIONYY

S31Y0HILVYI IDINYIS NOILVZINVOYHO SY3I9INIIN NOISSIININOD

"DNI ‘HOMT v SOH3l1s3Tive

"S]10BJIU0D IIAIS ARY SUOIIRZIURSIO J13Y} YdIym

10} 5211082189 991AI3S J1199ds SUIA|OAUI SUOISSNISIP WOJJ SBA[3SWAY} 3SNI3J 03 PUB ‘3JBI JO WNNUIUOI AJH [20] 3y} SUlUI30U0I SIaNew
[eas1y Jay10 pue Suillas-uoiyedo|je pue -Ajuoud o3 Joud ,1S3193Ul-J0-5101|3U02,, 1131 d3e1S 01 paJinbal aJe siaquiaw uojssiwwo) ‘Adjjod
UOISSIWIWOY) pue 22uepIng YSYH ‘uoile|sia) a1y ueAy 01 Suipioddy "s3|a8uy S07 Jo AJUN0) 3yl YHM SIIBIIUOD BIIAISS PAPUN-UOIJUSAII
AIH D) Jo/pue— g/y Hed yum sapuase 1uasaidal oym siaquiawl UOISSILLIWOD) 10} ,1SBI31UI-J0-S1II|JU0D,, SBIIUPI 3SI| SuIMO||0) BY |

«1SFYILNI-10-S1IITANOD,, HI9INFIN NOISSININOD

A08 Ajunode|'Aly//:dny
8t/ ¥-L€9 (ETT) XV ¢ 9T8Z-8€L (€T2) 131 » OT006 VD ‘S9|28uy 507 » OYTT 1UNS ‘pieA3|NOG SUYS|IM OESE

AIH NO NOISSIWWOJ ALNNOJ S3139NV SO1




20p £12090-51911Ju0)) Sa1R)) 9014198 £2Ua3Y JUOISSIWWO-1sr psiotuopidrysiaquiajapsuonesad - 39RIIoN§

b ________ ]
(Do) uoneulpioo) a4e) [BIIP3W

UOIIUDABI4 [BIIpBWOIY

yieaH [210

uoddng uciInN

AdeaayoydAsd ‘YieaH [eluay

(1OH) Bunsa) pue Bujjasuno) AlH
(443H) uononpay ysiy/uoneanp3 yiesH
paseg-awoy ‘quawadeue|y ase)

(D7) 1B21PSIN-UON “Qusawadeuely) 3se)
Ajerads sayauag

S17241U02 uouUaAId 10 31IYM UBAY ON JUYD V1 MIYRNEN g

$17E4U03 uorjuanald 10 31YM UeAY ON lawnsuod pajel|ieun E ATIANNOQ

SSau||9M B YHESH V1dY IIPYAN (O EIELE]

Siuc) UONU214d0 Sy UEh O Jounsios pariyein sewin] s

Adeuay] uonunp [edpzal

uonuUBARLd [eXpawOLg
X013 ‘asnqy aoueysqnsg
|[euoi}isuel] ‘asngy asueisqns
|elIUSpISIY ‘asndy aueisqns
yljeeH |elO
AdeiayloysAsd ‘YieaH [euaiy
uolepodsuel} |eJIpay 191U97 JUBWIES. | BUBZIE] |anbey oaivivd

s|ier - [euoglisuel] Juswaseuey ase)
paseg-awioH Juswageur|y ase)
{JDW) uoneulpioo) aie) [edpaN
(12H) Bunsal pue Buiasuno) AlH
(HY3H) uononpay Jysiy/uoteanpl yijesy
Ajepads sugsuag

(IWOV) [eatpap auaneding Alojenquiy

I T HONIA/Y DN s{a1e T84

S31H0HI1VI FDINHIS NOILVZINVOYO SY3IGWIIN NOISSININOD

9 Jo 7 23ed



30p°L [ £090-5191U0D) 8318 301AIAS AoUaSy ISUOISSTUILC)-ISTTySINjuodnstaquapnsuonersdo - 39wy §

$19211U03 uonuaAd.d 10 a1y UBAY ON Jawnsuod pajerjeun E!
SIJBJILOI UOUaARd 10 BHYM UeAY ON uoKIe0D Yoaads 3344 ! nNvd 3N

S19E13U02 UOIJUAAA JO BUYAA UBAY ON JAWNSUOD P3a1eI|IBUN Aajpeug !

512e43U02 uonuaAald 10 SUYM ueAY ON d3unsuod paleligeun 2997 SINIHDON
S1OBIIU0D UOIUBARId 10 BYM ueAy ON JaWNSuU0d pajeljieun EE

AdesayioydAsd ‘YijeaH |eruay
uonuanald [ealpawioig

(2D} uorieutpioo) aJe) [eJipa

{(197H) Bunsal pue 3ulssunod AlH s3|98uy s07 [eUdsSOH s,uaJp|iyDd [3SSMD SOQYNVYHYD
(¥¥3H) uonONpPayY siy/uonNednp3 yieay
YINOA - [RUOIlISURL | ‘qudwadeuey ased

(INOV) [eaipsAl Juaneding Asoleinquiy

512e13U03 uonuaAald 10 aUYM uehy ON 13Wnsuol pajeljjeun 198pLg NOQY0D

(12409) Il AllE21U0.YD Y3 Joj SanyIdey SJe) [EHUIPISAY 3uljeaH pue Suisnoy Joy aauel|y - Auay | Il Q¥vad0D
S10R13U0D UOIUAABIM 10 AUYM UeAY ON DSN JO UIIP3IAI JO |00HIS I3 . A sawv9

uswieal] pue Suluaalds gls
UOIU3AL |BDIpSWIOIY

d3d AIH [euotiednddQ-uoN
Adesayioypasd ‘YljeaH |euan
Anenyoisd ‘yijeay [BIUSIN 191u37 uelgsa] § Aen s3|38uy so ucley X04

{20} uonleulploo) aJe) [edIPSI

(LDH) Bunsa, pue Buijasuno) AlH
(¥y3H) uononpay jysty/uonesnpl yijeaH
(oY) |eaipay JuRnedIN AlolBINgLLY

X018 ‘@snqy aJueisqng

*JU| ‘SaNAID EoH f[elolABYD uesn
SISOy ‘S8ndYy SDUESANS | ‘S90INIS YIR2H [elolAryDg S 1538404

SIIHODILVI IIIAH3IS NOILVZINYDHO SH3IFINTIN NOISSIININOD

g JO ¢ 98eg



S19BIUOD uonUaAId 10 aUYM uedy ON
(LDH) Bunsat pue Bui[asuno) AIH

(DD} uoneUIPIOO) B4e) [eAPAN

(WOV) |eatpa Jusneding Atolenquiy

Ajjeioads saysuag
510e13U07 uonUaAaALd 10 DJYAA URAY ON

$17201U02 uonuaaald 10 aUYM uely oN

(22w} uoijeulpI00D 218 |EJIpN

uonU3A3L |RIIpaWOLY

uoIuUaAald |edipawolg

Adeiayyoyaisd ‘yyeay |eau3W

(DDA UoIIEUIPIO0) 1B |EJIP3N

(LoH) Bunsa] pue Buljasuno)d AlH

(¥¥3H) uonoNpay Xsiy/uoneanp3 yjesH

YINoA - [RUOIHSURI] “JudwWIBeuey 3s5e)

(WoV) |eaipaw wesieding Alolginquuy

1uaw)eas] pue 3uluaa13s A1S

(1OH) 8unsa) pue 3uljasunod AIH

yHeaH |eJ0

Ayeroads [edIpaiy

AdesouroyoAsd ‘HIN

AnzeiyoAsd ‘HN

(2DW) uoneulpioo) a1e) [edpaly

Ayjepads sygauag

(noV) teaipa 1uaneding Aolgnquy

SAHOD3LYI I2IAYIS

20p° L1 £090-5101JU0) FA1BD 0IAIIG AIUIFY JHUCISSIWUIC-1ST\SINJua A sIoquIs]\suonesd() - SoWwoy S

JAWNSUOD pajel|iyseun

BUIpESEY JO A1D

S2IAIBS
UBWNH 13 Y} eaH Jo Juawnedaq yoeag Suoq

pPooOMA||OH 1S3 40 AlD

Jsunsuod pajefjtgeun

dnoJg |e2IP3IA S,USIA VI WIAYINOS

saj23uy $07 ‘JendsoH s,ualpy)d

uolnepuno4 aleayjjeoH sqgiv

NOILYZINYOYHO

|aeydey

yerogag

Auoyuy

[anSIA

opJenp3

SNITIOD SNIMO

AVHYNIN

ST

ZINILYVN

ZINILYVIN

SHIFINIIN NOISSINIANIOD

9 JO  o3ed



Aujeiyohsd ‘yijeaH jeauan

(32} UolIeUIPI00) B1ED [BIIPAN

(Wov) |ea1ps uaneding Asozejnquiy

S10B13U0D UOIIURAAIC 10 aNYAA uehY ON

S10BJ1U0D UOIIUBAaId 10 BUYM ueAY ON

$1OR11U0D UonUaAaLd 10 BUYM URAY ON

(LDH) Sunsa) pue 8uljasunod AtH
(443} uononpay sty/uonesnp] yijeay

AdesayioydAsd ‘yijesH [RIUBIN 431U3D YljesH 11vdv BB NVIAIOY
5221435 a8endue
{IND7) [BDIP3A-UON ‘QUIWIBeUR 35BD
@1 S1043U0) [DUCLIPPY

(OoW) JuawaBeuey ase) |EIPIN wes50id 3¥'V"D yoesg Buon 20y NOSNISOY

{(WOV) [ea1pan Juaneding Aozeinquiy

$10B41U02 UoiluaAald 10 alYAA UeAY ON

(DI} uoneuIpIo0D 316D [EIPSIN

{nov) [ea1paw waneding Aolenquuy

Y){eaH (e10

uoy A
AneiyoAsd ‘yijeaH [E1Ua N netodio) uieaH AajieA 1seayLIoN uenr oaviIyud
Ayerdads syyauag
AdesayioyoAsd ‘yijeaH jeluany
swesdoid Q1S pue AlH Jo uoising
3slueI9 JAJ/3HUM UeAy ‘uyjeaH cue Z343d

S3140DILYI FIINYIS

20P* L1 L090-S1013u0)) Saje) 201198 Koualy Jouoissiuno-1stpsionuosndiysiaquiapysucperad() - SanIUmoDy g

SI2IAL3S Y3 eaH o idag Auno) y1
31ul|D Jepeayas puey

13Wnsu0d pajleluyeun

101eWIPI00D SAIY S2]28uy S07 Jo A1)

VMdOH ‘s3|38uy so7 30 A1)

Jawnsuo) pajeljiyeun

Jgnd jo uawmedaq ‘Ajuno) ssja8uy 507

NOILVYZINVDHO

uien

12qes YIIHOT-INOINYS

EJ03Q3Y OTIINDNOY

"¥rL1aNond

SHIFINTINI NOISSININOD

9 jo G o8ed



Sunsa] pue Bulasuno) AlH
(¥y3aH) uononpay ysiy/uoleanp3 yijesH

LERJLVEIN] - Y|
$12e13U02 uoljuaaald 1o FIYM uely oN

510BJ43U03 UoIJUaARLd 10 3UYA UeAY ON

(20) uoneulp1oo) ale) [BJIP3aN

(NOV) 1e21PaIN 2uaneding Alole|nquy

(DDW) uoneuipioo) a.e) [edIPAN

UoilUuaAald [BIIpoLIOIY

yliesH |80

voddng uoiuInN

AdeiayioydAsd ‘YiesH |ejusy

(1OH) Bunsa) pue Bujjasuno) AIH

{¥¥3H) uononpay ysiy/uoneanp3 yiesH

paseg-aWIoH ‘Juawadeuepy ase)

(A1) [E21P3N-UON ‘Judwiadeue ase)

Ajepads syjsuag

SAIMODALVYDI IJIAHIS

20p° £ 1£090-$1015u0)) 32180) 201A19g AouaBy Jauorssiumo)-)sETSIuodysiaquiaasuonelad( - 3SNIoN: S

Y1 HOVId

{25Una) Jqnd

13WINSU0D pajel|eun

puny 13V dINI Pooy1ay3oag ay |

JUD VO JSN B DV

SSaU||2M 7B YIESH V4V

NOILVZINVYDHO

[ERIETR

epuoyse]

Auag

S1IYm

HALdINNS
b EXNL AR

HIINIDS

HLIWNS

SY3IAINTIA NOISSININOD

9 Jo 9 93ed



June 2017

HIV Calendar

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
28 wewz 29 30 31 1 2 3
30 AN - 1100 PH 2130 AK - 11:3¢ AM 10:00 AM « 12:00 BN
Board of Supervisors BOS Agenda Review Standards & Best
(BOS) Practices {S8P)
4 o 5 6 7 8 9 10
EILYJ[:;%'EZT 30 AN - 100 PY 0:30 AW - 14:30 AM ©:00 AM - 1:00 PM

1:00 P - 3:00 P
Public Policy Committes

Board of Supervisors
(BOS)

1:00 PM . 4:00 PM
Comprehensive HIV
Plan Task ForcefGoals
ang Objectives
Workgroup

§BOS Agenda Review

Commission Meeting

1 1 Weuk 24

12

13

%30 AN - 1100 PA
Board of Supervisars
({BOS)

1:00 P - 3:00 PM

Training for
Commissioners: Running
and Fecilitating Meetings

14

9:30 AR - 11:30 AR
BOS Agenda Review

15

4:00 PM - 3:00 P

Training for
Commissioners; Effective
Communication and
Active Listening

17

1 8 Week 25

18

18:00 AM « 12:05 PV
Transgender Caucus

20

9:30 AM - 1:00 P
Board of Supervisars
{BOS)

1:00 BA - 6:00 M
Planning, Pricrities &
Allocations (PP&A)

21

B:30 AM - 11:30 Al
BOS Agenda Review

10:00 AN ~ 12:00 P
Women's Caucus

22

23

24

2 5 Week 26

26

1000 At - 100 P

Operations Committee
Meeting

1:00 P - 3:60 PM
Executive Committes
Meeting

27

National HIV Testing Day

:30 AB - 1:00 PR
Board of Supervisors
BOS)

28

9030 AN - +1:30 AR
BOS Agsnda Review

10:60 AM - 12,60 PM
Housing Taskforce

29

30




July 2017

HIV Calendar

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
25 weekzs 26 27 28 29 30 1
10:00 AM - 12:00 P4 Waticnal HIV Testing Davie 0 an . 41030 am
Operations Committes  fe.an 1.0 pit BOS Agenda Review

Maeting

200 PR - 200 PAE
Executive Committee
Mesting

Board of Supervisors
1808

1890 AM - $2:06 i
Housng Taskfores

2 Week 27

3

1:00 PHE - 3100 PY
Public Policy Committee

4

9:39 AW - 1:00 P
Board of Supervisors
{BOS)

5

9:30 AM - 1430 AM
BOS Agenda Review

1:00 P - £:00 PR

Comprehensive HIV Plan
Task Force/Goals and
Objectives Workgroup

6

10:00 AM + 12:00 P
Standards & Best
Practices (SBP)

9 Whaek 26

10

11

S:30 AN - 1100 PM

Board of Supervisors
(BOS)

12

0130 AM - 19:30 AW
BOS Agenda Review

13

$:00 AM - 1:00 PN
Commission Meeting

14

15

1 6 Waek 2%

17

10:00 AW - 12:00 PM
Transgender Caucus

18

S0 AM - 1:00 PR
Board of Supervisars
{BOS)

1:00 PM - 4100 PM
Planning, Priorities &
Allocations (PP&A)

19

2:30 Akt - 19:38 AN
BOS Agenda Review

10:00 Al - 12:60 PM
Women's Caucus

20

F00 P - 8100 PM
Training for
Commissionars: Data
and Epidemiclogy
Qvearview

21

22

23 Waok 20

24

10:08 A6 « 12:60 PW
Operzations Commitiee
Meeting

25

9:30 AM - 4100 P
Board of Supsrvisors
(BOS)

26

9:30 Al - 11138 AW
BOS Agenda Review

10:00 AkL - 12:08 PY

27

28

29

F100 PR - 3:00 PM Housing Taskforce
Executive Committee
Masting
30 vearss 31 1 2 3 4 5
W3 AN - 1:60 PR 0:30 Ak - 11:30 AN 10:58 AM - 12:00 PAt
Board of Supervisors BOS Agenda Review Standards & Best
{808) Practices (SBP}

1:00 PHE + 5:00 FM
Comprehensive HIV Plan
Task Force/Goals and
Objectives Werkgroup




August 2017

Sun

Mon

HIV Calendar

Tue

Wed

Thu

Fri

Sat

30 weekz

31

1

2:30 AM - 1:00 PM
Board of Supervisors
{BOS)

1:00 P « 4100 P
Comprehensive HIV Plan
Task ForcelGrals and
Objectives Warkgroup

2

9:30 AN - 11:38 AN
BOS Agenda Review

3

10:00 AR - 12:00 PM
Standards & Best
Practices (SBP)

6 Week 352

7

1:00 PM - 3:00 PH
Public Palicy Committes

8

9:30 AM - 1:00 Pt
Board of Supervisors
{BOS)

9

G50 AR - 11350 AM
BOS Agenda Review

10

$:06 AN - 1100 PM
Coemmission Meeling

11

12

1 3 Week 32

14

15

2:30 AM - 1:00 PM
Board of Supervisors
{BOS)

16

9:30 AM - 11:30 AW
BOS Agenda Review

10:00 AM - 12:00 PM
Women's Caucus

17

18

19

20 Wzek 24

21

10:08 AM - 12:08 PA
Transgender Caucus

22

9:30 AM - 1:00 PR
Board of Supervisors
{BOS)

1:00 PM - 3:00 PN
Training for
Commissioners:
Planning Coungil
Refresher

23

9:30 AR - 11:30 AR
BOS Agenda Raviaw

40:00 AN « 12:00 PM
Housing Taskforce

24

25

26

27 Waek 35

28

10:08 AM - 12:00 B3
Dperations Commiltee
Measting

1:30 PM . 2100 PM
Executive Commitise
Meeting

29

2:36 AR - 1:00 PR

Bozrd of Supervisars
{BOS)

30

9:30 AM - 11:30 AN
BOS Agenda Review

31




September 2017

HIV Calendar

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
27 vaekas 28 28 30 31 1 2z
10:00 Al - 12:00 PRI B30 AM - 1109 B0 S30 AN - 1130 AN
Operatlons Committes  {Board of Superv:sors BOS Agenda Review

Meelng

1:00 P » 300 PM
Exeoutive Committes
Mesing

(BOS)

3 Wenk 38

4

1:00 P - .00 PR
Public Policy Committee

5

9:30 AM - 1:00 BM
Beard of Suparvisors
(BOS)

6

9:30 AM - 11:30 AK
BOS Agenda Review

7

10:00 AM - 12:60 PR
Standards & Best
Practices (SBP)

1 0 Wank 37

11

12

9:30 AN - 1:00 PM
Board of Supervisors
{BOS}

13

930 AM - 11:30 AM
BOS Agenda Review

14

8:00 AM - 1:00 PV
Commission Meeting

15

16

1 7 Wizek 38

18

National HIV/AIDS and
Aging Awareness Day

10:00 A « 12:00 PV
Transgender Caucus

19

$:30 AR - 1:00 PM
Beard of Supervisors
(BDS)

20

930 AM - $1:30 AR
BOS Agenda Review

21

22

23

24’ Week 3¢

25

10:00 AN - 12:00 Pivi

Opgerations Commitise
Meeting

1100 M- 300 PM
Executive Committee
Meeting

26

:9:30 AM - 1:00 &1
:Board of Supervisors
(BOS)

27

Nationaf Gay Men's
HIV/AIDS Awareness
Day

B30 MM - $4:30 AM
BOS Agenda Review

10100 A - 12:0% PW
Housing Taskforce

28

29

30




LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 » Los Angeles, CA 90010 « TEL (213) 738-2816 » FAX (213) 637-4748
http://hiv.lacounty.gov

X o
CAtrporrit:

3. MEETING MINUTES
A. May 11, 2017 Commission Meeting



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 » Los Angeles, CA 90010  TEL (213) 738-2816 = FAX (213) 637-4748
. http://hiv.lacounty.gov

L,
A z| 7 (e

N e £
c-t_uro_vv

6. CO-CHAIRS’ REPORT
C. 2017 Membership Cohort/Drive Recruitment Flyer



Los Angeles County
Commission on HIV

Join the Los Angeles County Commission on HIV and
help plan for the effective delivery of services for
impacted populations. Be a part of the legacy to end
HIV/AIDS in Los Angeles County.

To apply, complete a Membership Application Form
online (http://hiv.lacounty.gov/About-Us).

For assistance, please call (213) 738-2816 or email
hivcomm@lachiv.org

Angeles, CA 90010



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 ¢ Los Angeles, CA 90010 » TEL (213) 738-2816 » FAX (213) 637-4748
http://hiv.lacounty.gov

7. HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH
AIDS (HOPWA) REPORT



Los Angeles
HOUSING+COMMUNITY

Investment Department

Eric Garcetti, Mayor
Rushmore D. Cervantes,
General Manager

The Housing + Community Investment
Department

Housing Opportunities for Persons with
HIV/AIDS (HOPWA)

June 8, 2017

The Community Services and
Development Bureau

Operations Division Consolidated Planning Division

HOPWA—18.6 Million Consolidated Plan--$120 Million

FamilySource Centers—14.2 Milllion  Commissions & Community
Engagement Includes (6)

Commissions:
Homeless Services--$61 Million Human Relations, Status of Women,
Domestic Violence--$2.3 Million Transgender Advisory Council,
Loans & Leases—$23 Million Affordable Housing, Community

Action Board, and Community &
Family Engagement

6/7/2017



—-

OVERVIEW

« The Housing Opportunities for Persons with
HIV/AIDS (HOPWA) program is a federal
program designed to provide housing
assistance and related supportive services to
low-income persons living with HIV/AIDS
(PLWHA) and their families.

« The HOPWA program is administered by the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development’s (HUD’s) Office of HIV/AIDS
Housing.

[ SR S N . AT
OVERVIEW (conf’d)

- HOPWA's strategic objectives are 1o increase housing stability.
expand access to care and reduce the risk of homelessness.

« HOPWA regulations require the most populous unit of local
government in an eligible metropolitan statistical area (EMSA)
to receive the formula allocation. Therefore, the HOPWA funds
received by the Los Angeles Housing and Community
Investment Department (HCIDLA) are to be used for programs
countywide,

« For the past 3 years a typical annual allocation has been
approximately $13,000,000.

**While level funding has been secured through September, a reduction of over
7% in formula funds has been proposed by the Trump Administration.

il

6/7/2017



6/7/2017

e A PR i e S e R IO B
ELIGIBILITY

» Eligible participants are low-income persons defined by HUD as
those with incomes at or below 80% of area median income
(AMI).

= Eligible participants are those diagnosed with HIV/AIDS, and
their families.

%

[ A A R e NN A R R |
HOPWA PROGRAM COMPONENTS

« For the program year with the term of April 1, 2017
through March 31, 2018, HCIDLA has 24 agencies
offering services in all eight (8) SPAs:

« Central Coordinating Agency responsible for processing all
tfenant-based rental assistance for the housing authorities
and applications for the move-in grant and STRMU.

« Four (4) regional offices in SPA 1, 2, 3, 4West, 5, 6, 7 and 8 who
may have subcontractors to assess HOPWA clients for
needed housing assistance and offer or refer out for
supportive services as needed.

il




program,

—

HOPWA PROGRAM REDESIGN

« Although HCIDLA has always served HOPWA
program participants throughout the County, for the
past program year, and into this one, we deliberately
take a more regional approach to administering the

» Our current model consists of a 6 regional lead
HOPWA agencies for the eight (8) Service Planning
Areas (SPAs), legal services, housing information and
referral and animal advocacy to offer rental
assistance and any other barriers that may prevent
someone living with HIV/AIDS from finding, and
maintaining, affordable housing.

%

AIDS Project Los Angeles
-Regional Lead SPA 6 (South Los
Angeles)

-Training Module (Housing
Specialist Cerfification)

Tarzana Treatment Centers
-Regional Lead SPA 1/2 (Anfelope
Valley / San Fernando Valley)

HOPWA Program Redesign (conf’d)
» Contracts for Program Year 2016-17 (4/1/16-3/31/17)

Alliance for Housing and Healing
-Reglonal Lead SPA 4/6 (Metro
West/West Los Angeles)
-Regional Lead SPA 8 (South Bay)
-Central Coordinating Agency
(STRMU / PHP Move-In Granfs)
-Residential Service Coordination
-Scattered Site Master Leasing

Foothill AIDS Project

-Offering crisis housing, housing
specialists and supportive services
for SPA 3/7 (San Gabriel Valley /
East Los Angeles)

6/7/2017



6/7/2017

LAMP Community

-Offering crisis housing, housing
specialists and supportive service
for SPA 4 (Metro Downtown / East
Los Angeles)

Hollywood Community Housing
Corp.
-Residential Services Coordination

Project New Hope
-Residential Services Coordinafion
-Scattered Site Master Leasing

Pets Are Wonderful Support/Los
Angeles

-Housing Information and Referral
-Animal Support and Advocacy

Housing Authority of the City of Los
Angeles

-Tenant Based Rental Assistance
-Project Based Rental Assistance

Single Room Occupancy
-Offering crisls housing, housing
specialists and supportive services
for SPA 4 (Metro Downfown / East
Los Angeles)

-Residential Services Coordination

Waest Hollywood Community
Housing Corp.
-Residential Services Coordinafion

Inner City Law Center
-Legal Services

City of Pasadena
-Tenant Based Rental Assistance

Housing Authority of the City of
Long Beach

-Tenant Based Rental Assistance
-Housing Specialists

Housing Authority of the County of
Los Angeles
-Tenant Based Rental Assistance




e e T e
HCIDLA HOPWA Contact Information

+ HOPWA Hotline (213) 808-8805
« HOPWA E-mail hcidla.hopwa@lacity.org
« Program Analysts

« Rebecca Ronquillo - Rebecca.Ronguillo@lacity.org
» Brad Dumm - Brad.Dumm@Iacity.org
« Maisha Hunter - Maisha.Hunter@Iacity.org

A e R o DR AP S e ook ey
Los Angeles City’s Measure HHH

+ Proposition HHH authorizes the City of Los Angeles to
issue $1.2 billion in General Obligation Bonds to
address homelessness crisis

» Eligible Uses:

« Acquisition or improvement of real property to build
permanent, supportive housing (PSH) and facilities for the
homeless

 Up to 20% can be use for affordable housing for AT-RISK
homeless

**Funds CANNQOT be used for operations or services

6/7/2017



SR A SN R A R
Los Angeles City’s Measure HHH

« The goal is to create up to 10,000 permanent, supportive
housing units over the course of the next 10 years

» Funds garnered from these bond issuances will accelerate the
pace of annual production of permanent, supportive housing
units

» The development of housing will be administered by the
Housing and Community Investment Department

- The development of facilities will be administered by the City
Administrative Office.

« In March, funding for 18 developments was approved:

« §77 million for PSH: 615 total units, 440 PSH (one development approved will
be partially funded with HOPWA funds)

« $12 million for 6 facilities

A e e e B R R TR
HCIDLA's Efforts to Combat

Homelessness in L.A.

» Oversight of homeless programs administered by
LAHSA

« Close to $50M allocated by the City GF in 2016-2017
« $18M allocated for 2017-2018

» Implementation of Comprehensive Homeless
Strategy

« HCIDLA's GM on Measure H Steering Committee

« Involved in many homeless taskforce/regional
advisory committees

6/7/2017



B R e e e R o)
Los Angeles County’s Measure H

« Estimated to generate $355 Million annually to fund
services and other support for the homeless.

« Steering Committee included representatives from
County Departments, LAHSA, Home for Good, City of
LA CAO and HCIDLA, and other subject-matter
experts

« Funding recommendations will be considered by the
County Board of Supervisors on June 13, 2017

« A total of (21) County Homeless Strategies eligible for
funding

B e e e T S
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

%

6/7/2017



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 « Los Angeles, CA 90010 » TEL (213) 738-2816 « FAX (213) 637-4748
- http://hiv.lacounty.gov

w Y,
Cairorn

00

. IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM, DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT



( COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES.
Public Health

Patient Centered Vaccine Portfolios

Franklin D Pratt, MD, MPHTM, FACEP
Medical Director
Los Angeles County Immunization Program

(Couurv OF LOS ANGELES
Public Health

How will a person’s life
be improved by vaccines?

What vaccine induced immunity is
recommended?




Tal S (COUNW OF LOS ANGELES
Public Health

Defined by a Person’s
Age

Medical History
Current Medical Status
Occupation

Prior vaccine history

(Couurv OF LOS ANGELES
Public Health

Defined by a Person’s Age, Medical History, Current Medical Status
Occupation

* People who are diabetics

* People who have congestive heart failure

* People with other chronic health problems
* Employed as a laboratory technician

* Men who have sex with men (MSM)

* HIV+




(cauuw OF LOS ANGELES
Public Health

Defined by a Person’s Age, Medical History, Current Medical Status
Occupation,

* Men who have sex with men (MSM)
* HIV+

2 ‘COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
2) Public Health

Childhood vaccinations

— Measles, Mumps, Rubella (MMR)

— Hepatitis (HepB)

— Hepatitis A (HepA)

— Inactivated Polio (IPV)

— Haemophilus influenza (HiB)

— Varicella (VAR)

— Pneumococcal conjugate (PCV13)

— Meningococcal (MCV4)

— Influenza — Flu (1IV) — yearly

— Tetanus, Diphtheria, Pertussis (Tdap)




(COUNW OF LOS ANGELES
Public Health

Adolescent Vaccinations

Human papillomavirus (HPV)
Meningococcal (MCV4)
Tetanus, Diphtheria, Pertussis (Tdap)

Influenza — Flu (yearly)

(Couurv OF LOS ANGELES
Public Health

Adult Vaccinations

Zoster (shingles) — subunit vaccine

Tetanus, Diphtheria, Pertussis (Tdap)

Influenza — Flu (yearly)
* Pneumococcal Conjugate or Polysaccharide




COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

Implementation

* Working group of clinicians to refine vaccine details
e Consistent dialogue with COH re: patient preferences
* Communications, info sharing with

— Health care plans

— Medical organizations

— Advocacy groups




LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 * Los Angeles, CA 90010  TEL (213) 738-2816 » FAX (213) 637-4748
http://hiv.lacounty.gov

12. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS:

A. Standards and Best Practices (SBP) Committee
(1) Prevention Standards

B. Planning, Priorities & Allocations (PP&A)
Committee
(2) PS12-1201 Comprehensive HIV Prevention
Program End of Year Progress Report
(3) DHSP Solicitations Summary

D. Public Policy Committee
(3) Federal Legislative/Policy Issues
(a) FY 18 President’s Proposed Budget
(b) Social Security Administration Revised
Criteria for Evaluating HIV Infection
(c) Healthcare Access



Los Angeles County
HIV Prevention Standards

Los Angeles County Commission on HIV

June 8§, 2017

r Coumos_l.osﬁnsms
Public Healt
Division of HIV and
STD Programs

LOS ANGELES COUNTY £
COMMISSION ON HIV <

Py

Purpose of HIV Prevention Service Standards

%

g
- et

= SBP Committee is charged with developing
standards for the organization and delivery of HIV
care, treatment and prevention services.

N
<3

* Used in monitoring contractors and in
determining service quality.

L
e

* Minimum standards intended to help agencies
meet the needs of clients. Providers may exceed
standards.

= ‘
p ]

LOS ANGELES COUNTY &
COMMISSION ON HIV C&%'

Py




Project Team and Knowledge Partners

SBP

Committee
N\

Collaborative

Research HIV COH Staff

Prevention
Service
Standards

Expert
Review
L . Panelists

Research
Partners

Community
Input

N\




Roadmap for Development of New Prevention Standards

Outgoing SBP co-chairs
outlined recommendations to
new co-chairs.

Convene ERPs. Standards
development. Publish
prevention standards.

Continue updating

Identified ERP members. Developed SoCs

consultant RFP and scope of work.
Selected consultant.

Roles and Responsibilities

Commissionon HIV

Project Team Approves final
e‘ standards
SBP Committe Writes document,
convenes ERPs,
Leads process and analyzes

comments




HIV Prevention Standards

Development Process

Reviewed key documents
Drafted Prevention Service Standards

Draft Standards reviewed by 4 Expert Review
Panels

Drafted next version based on feedback
Held Community Review Meetings
Updated document for public comment period

LOS ANGELES COUNTY £
COMMISSION ON HIV &

Py

Expert Review Panelists

= Panelists reviewdraftdocumentsand

other materials before the meeting

= Grantee representative/subject matter

= Current providers

experts

> Public/private

> Ryan White, CDC-funded, and
outside the system

> Diversity with respect to

race/ethnicity, gender, population
served, etc.

= Professionals/experts

> Researchers
> Academics
> Consumers




3

:".r‘r '.

Guiding Questions

=

Are the standards up-to-date and consistent with national
standards of high quality HIV and STD prevention
services?

e

4

Are the standards reasonable and achievable for providers?

Will the services described meet consumer needs? In this
context, “consumers” are defined as those at risk for
contracting HIV and STDs.

R 2

3D

e B
| §

=M
2N

T

A

Are proposed standards client-centered?

What are the importantoutcomes we expect for people
receiving these services? How can we measure whether or
not the service is working for them?

s
LOS ANGELES COUNTY £
COMMISSION ON HIV &

The Los Angeles County Commission on HIV
Comprehensive HIV Continuum Framework

SOCIAL
) s Link to Care .
el Diagnose Prescribe HIV S Engage&  Achieve &
Racism Poverty : Treatment & - Retainin  Sustain Viral
. / ; with HIV i Supportive :
S W lerce i i Reysior: - Care Suppression [
£ vioience i Services

= . =
isolation <
X
v

=
s STIGMA A Sustaining Health & Wellness
| Understand HIV.and averall eaith as a function of indwidual,

marginalizatic

S sexism : Retainin  continue Risk
g e B Link to . i Continue Risk _
s HOUSING - \ pudress RIskIS core = Reduction, Remain HIV-

Primar Factor. . g ;
Cars & Baricls Supportive  PrEP, PEP, Negative
A Services  Counseling

nd other social determinantsinfluenw. ‘== Compreh Continuum throughout *!.< prevention and care

um.

LEGEND: The connected bowes depict the complementary and supportive nature of primary and secondary prevention in controling the HIV/STI disease burden. The green bomes shifw the
HIVAIDS treatment | ) while the bl depict the p continuum (HIV-negative). Both qually impor in /{511 infections and
sustaining heatth and wellness for PLWHA snd the: uiring HVAIDS, The arrew ackecdedges that sustaining health and wellngss is the ultimate geal for all people

s bavyond achinving ]

resabving HIV-related sarvices, regardlens of their status. Th




HIV Prevention F‘
Universal Service Standards ﬁ.,_.

HIV prevention services in Los Angeles County must be:

Holistic
Responsive to the needs and strengths of the
populations served
Designed to address or mitigate social
determinants of health

. Strength-based

. Sex-positive
Culturally responsive

Assessment
HIV and STD Testing
Linkage to Biomedical Prevention Services

Referral and Linkage to Non-Biomedical
Prevention Services

Retention and Adherence to Prevention Services




Assessment

Assessment:
Key Components

Assessments should align with the client’s reason(s) for accessing
services and point of entry.

Whenever possible, collect demographicinformationin a manner that
is affirming of various identities.

Specific topics or areas should be assessed only if the provideris
prepared to manage the possible responses, and onlyif the provider
can offer resources, referrals, and /or services in response.

The assessment process should utilize a health promotionapproach.

The assessment process should include assessing for medical and
social factors.




HIV & STD Testing

Individuals at high risk for HIV should get tested every 1-3
months.

HIV testing must be voluntary and free from coercion.

Diagnostic HIV testing and opt-out HIV screening should be a
part of routine care in all health-care settings.

HIV testing should be simple, accessible, and straightforward.

Testing sites should employ strategic targeting and
recruitment efforts.

HIV and STD Testing services must follow the most current
guidelinesfrom the CDC.




Linkage to Biomedical HIV
Prevention Services

Los Angeles County PrEP Continuum of Care for MSM, May 2016

60000
50000
40000
30000
20000

- .
0

At risk MSM Aware of PrEP Willing to take PrEP PrEP Use

At risk LAC MSM populati by ing the number of virally HIV positive MSM and multiplying by the average numbsr of annual uniqus HIV ~ve sex partners of
HIV positive MSM, 3* (NHBS, 2014). Aware of PrEP, willing to take PrEP, and use of PrEP in past 12 months based on MSM response to meet-up app based survey, May 2016, of 82%, 75%, and
24% respectively (Los Angeles County Division of HIV and STD programe internal data). EL]




Linkage to Biomedical Prevention Services:
Key Components

The goal of linkage and referral activities is to connect clients to those
services that address their needs in the most expeditious manner,
possible.

Linkage to biomedical interventions (i.e. PrEP and PEP) is often a priority.

Linkage standards are based on the Los Angeles County PrEP Continuum:
increase awareness, willingness, and uptake.

If youragency doesn’t provide PrEP develop written protocols/MOUs
with agencies/clinics that do provide PrEP outliningthe referral and
linkage process

Connectall high-risk HIV-negative clients to a PrEP Navigator (in-house
or external) within 24 hours.

LOS ANGELES COUNTY
COMMISSION ON HIV -

4

Referral and Linkage to Non-Biomedical
Prevention Services

10



Referral & Linkage to Non-Biomedical Prevention Services:
Key Components

Not all non-biomedical services that a client may need are easily
accessible, therefore hard to ensure linkage.

Emphasis on gctive referrals: address barriers to accessing services by
helpingthe client make contact with a service provider oragency.

Developing written protocols/MOUs with other HIV/STD prevention
and primary care providers and social service agencies to ensure
linkage to appropriate prevention services.

Assisting clients with enrollingin health insurance.

Actively referring clients who are not accessing regular care to a medical
home or primary care provider.

Assessing possible facilitatorsand barriers to accessing services.

LOS ANGELES COUNTY
COMMISSION ON HIV -

4

Retention and Adherence to

Address
barriers to
accessing

services

Streamlined . li::el::::g' I;f
access to CI ient S
services

services

Continuous
Assessment

Prevention Services

11



Retention and Adherence to Prevention Services: /%
Key Componentsj;

Retention:

» Assist clients with scheduling follow-up visits
Provide reminders for all visits
Offer or refer to navigation assistance, when possible
Reinforce the benefits of prevention services

Regularly assess facilitators and barriers to retention,
and support clients to overcome identified barriers

Regularly assess clients’ need for prevention services:
Have their needs changed? Do they no longer need
services? Do they need different services?

Retention and Adherence to Prevention Services:
Key Components

Adherence:

Inform clients aboutthe benefits of sustained adherence to
PrEP and PEP

Provide adherence supporttailored to each client's needs and
characteristics,and/or connect clients to medication adherence
interventions

Work with client to develop a plan for stopping PrEP when
appropriate, and transitioningto other prevention options

Provide or make referrals for services to address factors that
may impairadherence (e.g., comorbidity, financial,
psychosocial,and structuralissues)

12



Next Steps

30-day public comment period (6/8-7/7)
Email comments to
Access document via COH website

Update/edit as necessary

Present final document for approval at the Los
Angeles County Commission on HIV meeting

Thank you!

Any questions?

13



"'Spiepuels a2IAI9S UoljuaAald pasodoid ay) mainal
0] payAul s1 oljgnd 8yl “AJH UO UOISSILUWOY Sy} JO SUOHOUN} 8100 8y} JO BUO SI SpIEpuUe]sS 30IAISS JO JuswdojaAsp ay |

INININOD JI19Nd Jd04-SAUVANVLS
JOIAY3S NOILN3IA3Hd AlH A3S0d0dd

Bi0 AlyoE|@WWOIAIY W@\
:0L SINIWWOI TIVINT 3SVId ke’
N—\ON nN. >I—:—le mz:qﬁ AIH UO uoIsSsIlIWIOD

AlunoD sejabuy so

:dOld3d LNJININOD Jl1dNnd

L10¢C




‘s|enplalpul aales8au-AlH ysu-udly uowe co_t,ﬁc_ AIH Jo Axjigndaasns ayl Supnpaa

Ag 10/pue (HM1d) AIH ynm Buial @jdoad jo peoj [eJia Y] Budnpal >a UOISSILISURIY ALH JO S 3y} 35e3.139p 0} (LYV) Juauwesu
[EAIACIISAIIUE 35N 1BY] SPOYI3W UouaARLd AIH 0} 513421 uonuaaald AlH j02ipaWOoIg “AlH JO UOISSILUSUE] ay ju3A31d 03 UOIIRUIGLUOD
Uf JO SUO|R P3SN SIUBWIL3.} JO/PUE SIIIAIIS ISOY) S4B SADIAIDS :o_ucwom#_ AlH: ‘SIDIAY3S NOILN3AIHd AIH 40 NOILINIAAQ

"d34d Buissadde aie oym ﬂcm__umﬁ S3JIAIDS JdUdIIYpR aptaoad

01 pa133dxa aq J0u ||1Mm ‘Ajuo Su11Sa1 AIH sapinodd yeyy Aduagde ue ‘a)dwexa Jo4 .mm_.u:mmm (|2 01 3jgedijdde aq |[im U113y pagulasap
spJepuels uonuanald jo AloSa3ed Aaad J0u 1BYY PO0)SI3PUN 34 PINoYs 3 ,'SIIAIIS UOIILIDAID,, PIIIPISUOD B ABLU JBU} SBIIAISS JO
sadA1 1UBIRHP Auew 0S pue ‘sa1a1as uonuaaaid apiaoad Aew jeyy suoijeziuesio jo sadAl Juaiagp Auew os aie 313y} asnedaq ‘osjy

"awi1 ut Julod uanig Aue je way) Jof jendoidde aue Jeyy Amvmu_z,wm uonuaAd.d 3y3 Ul paulelsd pue 0] patIsuuod Ajnyssadans s|
LO11294Ut AlH JO S 1B [enpIAIpUl DAIIREDU-ALH Asana ey Suunsua uo m:uouF JU3WNJ0P S1Y3 Ul PIGLIISaP SPJEPUR]S 921AISS LIoI1UDARd
AlH 241 ‘201135 uousaaad jenualod Alaas 1oy SpJepuels 21eald 0} m_n_mm& 10U S 31 3SNedDG "AlH JO UOIIISINbI. 3y JudAa.d 03 9AI3S
os|e Aew ("33 ‘uonINGLIISIp WOpUOoI ‘Suljasunod ‘Sua)Jew {e1dos Ew:;o_n_Em ‘Buisnoy “8'a) $321AU9S JO IpnNw B ‘a104a4ay L
“UOI}IB5UI ATH JO 3511 9Y] 19BdWI [3AJ(-[ENPIAIPUL PUE *~|EUOSIACIIIUI ~[2IUAILOIAUD ~|EIN1INIIS BY] 1B $10)08) JO Spninw Y

‘ -ad02s pue Arpeded J1ay) UaAIS ‘03 3|ge 1 [9A] |ewIUIW SIY] PISIX3 0] padeinodud

3.Je SI9PINCI "AIBAI[3P 3DIAIS JO [9A3] [BLLIUIL BT YSI|eISD SpJepue)s adlAlas “Aiuno) sa[aduy so Inoysnolyy AIalRp 3d1AI9S
Apjenb-ysiy jua1sISUOD 3uNSUB 0] S splepue)ls 20IAIDS mf..u.ﬁo_.mmoa._:a YL "$931AIDS uojuaaald AlH Bupuawaldwi usym o1 al1aype
1snw Asuase Japiaoad B AISAISP DIAIRS JO SIUIWI[S [BIIUISSD 3Y] BUIINO SPJIBPUES ADIAIRS :SAUVYANVLS IAYIS JO 3S0d¥Nnd

punousdyleg
‘SAYVANYLS FDIAH3IS NOILNIATYd AIH

0sT A lpiq SIVANVYLS dDIAGES NOLLNHATY ATH NO NOISSINIWOD ALNNOD SHTIDNY SOT




jwiny-diy/diy/sapiod/aiL/A08-3po mmm//isd1ay "sa1e1S PRliUN Byl Ul SUONIBU| AIH Suidnpay o3 ydeouddy 50D :uonuaasld AlH 19edwi-ydiy ¢
uun_.m“mnn:-mmccxﬁwambm-mv_m-zc-_m:oﬁm:\mwug:o.mm‘_-_Emumm\_;om.wv_m.ggax\”maﬁc "0Z0z 0} paiepdn :s2)e1S pajun ay) Joj Ada1e.1S SAIV/AIH [BUOREN |ylL,
‘9102 Joqusidas ‘(Tz0z-L10g) Ue|d AlH dAasuaya.idwo)

Aquna) sajaguy o7 "SwesFold (1S PUB AlH JO UOISIAIg YIEIH 1|dnd jo Juswiedaq Auno) sajaBuy $o7 dY3 pue AlH uo uoissiwwo) Auno) saR8uy $o] :

(svdS) sealy guiuerd uu_.?_mm Aeg _Esom _u:m,.f:om ‘0413 2u3 Ul BulA)| SUOSIRd
AS_mS_\c usin L3m Xas aney oym (6z-8T) U Sunop
uswomsuel |
TETHGYY Eucmmm_u pue ‘uawomsuel] ‘INSIA UedLIBWY uedlyy/Hoe|g
) (INISIAI) USIAI YHM X3S SABY OUM U e
stou mm_wmc< SO7 Ul S33B4 23UIPIIUI AIH I152U81y 243 a2usliadxs 1ey) suopendod
Suimo||04 3y} saiuap! ‘erep mu:m:_m?_:m U234 IS0 3y} Uo paseq (1207-L10¢) Ueld AIH dasusyaidwo) Auno) sajaduy so7 9yl
"$31BJ DIUIPIIUI AIH 1S9Y3IY BYI yum suonejndod asoyy Aq pajeaipui se ‘Aluno? sajasuy so7 ui AlH Aq paedwi Ajleuoisodoidsip
150w suoije|ndod ayy o1 Pa1a51e] SUOITUSAISIUL B|QR[EIS PUR ‘BAI1I813-1502 ‘Uanoad A|[BILIIUSIIS JO SUOHEUIGUIOD SaZIjiIN
1Byl yoeoudde JUonuanaid oduw-ybiH e EmE.w_aE_ 1SNW M ‘5|20 INO 3A3IYIE 03 J3PL0 U] INOILNIAIYd 1OVIWI HOIH/QOHLIW

"s31Unbau) yjeay pue sajjiedsip palejai-AlH 3npay ¢
pUE ‘SUOIID34UI AlH MBU INPaY ‘T
10}
a1e AJuno) s3jaguy SO Ul S1I0LS UoijUBA3Id AlH JO s|eo8 3ulyoirlano ay) hwﬁquzv ABa1e41S SAIV/AIH [euolIEN 3Y) pue H:Nom-h.ﬁowv
ueld AlH aasuayaiduio) Aluno) saja8uy so7 aU3 Yim pausily :ALNNOD SITIDNY SOT NI SLHO443 NOILNIATE AIH 40 STVOD
0°€T A Ypiq SMAVANY.LS HOIAYES NOLLNIATHd AIH NO NOISSININOD ALNNOD SATADNY SO'1 :

¥



'suos g A3jim
uyor ‘yoposddo Buiddow uonuansaius up :swosboid vonoword yyoay Buiuupld ((9T0Z) 'S "D ‘19244 8 "V Y 183Ny O Moy "I "D ‘Welpien “g ) "1 ‘@8paip|3,

?mxon m:_n_ DY} 01 JUBAS|3. SIDIAIDS

ay1 '9'1) s|enplalpul aAanedau-A|H 32811 18yl S9IIAISS A3 mmo._v_...m ‘uiasay vaa_._umuw .mv._m_u:mam 3J1AI9S UOHUABIG AlH 3YL “(saxoq
U228 2y} 0} JULAI|DA SIIIAIBS 3] "9°1) S|ENPIAIpUl AANSOd-AIH 198.1e) jeyy mmu_?_mm ayl. mmm.__uvm EYsly) ko SP4DPUBIS AIH UO UOISSILIWIOD
Ajuno) sajaBuy so7 YL "suonI3ul a1S/AIH mau m:_mmmbmv ul EmtonE_ Ajlenba-ae eNUU0I Yyiog *(s|enplalpul aaeSau-AlH

uo PasN30j) WNNUUOd uouanald ayy 12Idap saxoq an|g 3yl apym A>__._ Yum mc_>__ m_n_omn_ U0 PasNJ0}) IPeISed JusaWieal] Sav/AlH
3y 11dap saxoq uaals ay) ‘uaping aseasip ohm\>=._ mcp mc___ob:ou ul uoiuaAaad Emvcouwm pue Asewd jo aunjeu aaaoddns pue
Asejuawa|dwod ayy idap saxoq payauuod sy, mm;w_ug pue SaIIUNLWWO? ‘SuoljBziuesio ¢ SyJ0MIaU {B1DIOS ‘Ajlwey Buipn|du) ‘Ba)|
S|ENPIAIPUI UJIYM Ul STUDLIUOIIAUD 3U) JO PUE S[ENPIAIPUI JO UOIIDUN) € S POMBIA SI L) eay ‘|lapouwi |e2180]022 |BI20S Y] U] "Suoisuawip
|BJA3S 550108 UONUBARID pUe a1ed A[H Suissauppe jo adueliodiul 3Y3 84025J9puUn 01 [9Pow [22130]093 [B120S 3431 uodn Sp(ing 1BU}
Jomawel) [euonelidse ue sy wnnuluod AlH aaisuayadwo) syy .mE__mu:Sm_ 9IAIDS UOIIUDABI AIH Y3 O JUBWdOo[DA3P dY) apIng

01 Pash sem ‘Mojaq ‘T ain8l4 ul pajdap YHIOMBUDIA WNNUIIU0D AIH BAISUBYdUWO) S AIH HO UOISSILILWIO) AJUNO) $31a8uy S0 ayL
Jromawet] wnNURUo) AlH 9A1sUsYIdwo) :SAYVANYLS 40 LNIWJOT1IAIA Y04 NOILYANNOA

suone|ndod
an0qe || Jo siauped m::m;m-m_umm:t:m Xasg
SIIYIOMN X3S |BI2IBWIWIO)

06 Jo 98e 3yl JoA0 9|doad e
LT-€T j0 sa8e ayj uzamlaq a1doad e
U3WOM J3pUadsI) BUE] e
$135N UR|NWNS NSIA J9pue|s] Jyided /uBisy e
suone|ndod nBEmu._muc_. NS ouniel e
s3nap 12alul oym u_ao_mm . SUBDLIBWY DAIIEN/SUBIDU] UBDLIDUIY e
101 paliwi) Jou Ing ‘Buipnpul ‘AlH Aq patoedw AlySiy suolieindod-gns pue suolje|ndod Jayjo Auew aJe 343y} ‘uonippe uj

0§17 A Yoaq SAAVANV.LS HOIAYHS NOLLNHATYd AIH NO NOISSINWOD ALNNGD SHTADNV SOT



‘snye3solas annedau e Buuiejuiew o uoissaiddns peoj jena Buinaiyoe puohaq spuaixa |eod ay| 'smejs 11ay) Jo ssa|piedal ‘saouas palejas-plH Sunaoal

3|doad |je Joj [e0 a1eWNN 3Y) 51 SSAU||AM puEe Yijeay Buiuielsns jeyy sadpajmouyoe moue 3yl “SAIv/AIH Buuinboe 1o} ysu Je asoyl pue YHM1d 10} SSaujjam pue yijeay Buiuielsns
pue suoRd3ul [1§/AIH Mau Buiseainap up Juenoduwi Ajjenba 3ue enunuod yiog (aanedau-AlH) wnnunuod uonuaaaid ayy 31dap saxoq 2njq Y3 3|IYM (YHMT) 3peased waunean salv/AlH
3y} mgys saxoq uaaid ay) ‘uaping aseasip |1S/AIH 3y) Buijjonuod ui uonuasaid Arepuodas pue Alewwd jo ainjeu saruoddns pue Aleyuawadwod ayy 3a1dap saxoq pajaauuod 3yl :ANIDI]

‘wnJtyoads
2.1ed pue uoizuasaid syl Inoysnolyl wnnuilued AjH aalsuayaidwo) ay3 sousn|iul sjueUlLLIS1ap |BID0S J8Ylo pue elWwBNS

S92IAIDS : | snoiianod

gulesuno) ] 1vID0S

. slallieg °9lB) o

aAle82 A U aAlloddn : -
3esaN d3d d34d 1 ) 9 SI01084 Aewny B o uoneanp3

: el oo
| -AIH ulewsay  "uoldNpay 3 81e] JSIY SS2UPPY 03 Ul B . ONISNOH
_ JsId 8NUAUOD ) ujeyay : B = Wwsixes O

SSANSSITIWOH
AR R e e el © ] uonezijeuisiew
.ﬂ.._m:_E.h..Bwu_E.:ﬁa‘h_umﬁm‘_m«_.n_uﬁ..Qc.....Em.B_,_*__ma.u_zn:_ D e1s13p i E

v VYAOILS

i
SE=RSE > uone|os!
S3DINIDS : | =

m 22U3/0IA
aAnJoddng  UOBUIARM AL yum

goydowoy

=]]

. H

@

@)

()]

=<

uolssaiddng ale) =

[BJIA UIRISNS Ul UIR1DY 19 JUBWIea)| ; il Avianod  wisioey

P AlH 2qlidsald wmocmm_o HL1V3H

2487 01 MUl iy 40 SINYNIWY313q
S il YOS

] 9A3IYDY 3 98e3u]

¥IOMaWp.I{ wnnuipuo) AJH anisuayaidwio) AJH uo uoissiwwo) Ajuno) saja8uy soq ayl :T a4nsi4

0°§I aiviq SAYVANYLS DIAYES NOILNIATEd ATH NO NOISSIWINOD ALNNOD SHTIDONV SO1 4



“(BWERU-S JRYM-512PIOSIP-PUB-SUQIIIRJUI-SaseasIp-paljiusue-A| enxas/Solq /810 0ppsaummm/fidily) ,cawenN e ul s jeyp s1aplosig pue

‘5U01199JU| ‘sasEas|(] PAIIWSURL] A||eNXaS, ‘3|I1He S pIBYSPUBH J3UNH Y *IQ 335 ‘Jo3[gns ay3 uec 3oiMEe jea.8 B U4 "SawWweU [eIusWwHedap |BUCIIBU pUB ‘9)B1S
‘AJunod yum uswudie pue ‘uorafur sNsIaA 350351p 10 SUILEDW |RIDY| ‘ewsns panisauad :papnjaul uolsiaap syl Supiew .E paiysiam am 1ey) sio3oe4 ‘(uondaju|
paniwsue] A|lenxas) |1S Uey) Jayie. ‘(asessiq parwsues | Aj|enxas) 415 W3] 243 3N 01 35042 am JUILLNIOP SIY3 4O sasodind ay3 1oy ‘@iqeleqap Yanoully c

_ dwayy 104 Supjdom s| 32IAIRS
3y 10U 1O JAYIAYM DINSEBL IM UBI MOH (SIIAIBS 3Sayl mc_>_mu8 m_aomn_ _2 uuwaxw am meoS_._o jueptodul) 24} a1e JBYM S

%Emwcmy.pcw__u spiepuels pasodold auy  ‘p

{'sais
pue AfH SU1IJBIIU0I 1O} YSL JE ASOU) SE pauyap e m‘_mE:mCOU 1X2)U0D SIY] U[) ¢SPIIU JAWINSLUOD J33LU SIOIAIZS BYL I "€

mm._mu_>,o._.n_ ._o.u. 3|qeAlIY3e pUB J|QBUOSES] SPIBPUR]S By} 3y 7

¢S921AI9s uonuaadd QLS pue AH Aujenb ;mE jo mugmucmuw |euoneu ﬁ:s 1U1SISUQI pue djep-03-dn spiepuels Ayl aly T
:suofsanb Suimo(|o} syl paIapISUO) S13p|oYIN LIS
Ajunwwon pue ‘sdy3 m‘_mnEmE 9DNUWWOY 4FS \mEm_u:Bm BOIAIBS UOIIUBARIG AIH 243 JO Juawidojaaap 2y apins 0] Jap.o u|

"SUOISIAB] PIPUILILLOISL 3WOS Ul mc_u_smw&mm.z_EEou dgas mﬁ Aq pamaiaal AlySnoaoy] aiam sjuUaWWOD [y "spiepuels pasodoud
ay3 13A JauLIny 03 ‘/TOZ ‘6T ABIAl UO PaUBAUOD 219M sSUIIF3W ALIUNWWOD OM] “J9A0IOIA “spJepuels pasodold uo anbiaud aAisuaXe
ap1aoJd 01 pauaAU0d 319Mm s119dx3 Jaj1ew 193[gNs Jo pasodwod (SdY3) S|pued malaay 14adx3 Jnoy ‘uonippe u] “sweidoid g1S pue AlH
JO UOISIAIG ‘U1/e3H d1|1gNnd 40 1uawpedaq Aluno) 53|28y 507 aY1 PUB ‘(dgS) 29111LILO0) $3211IR14 159G PUE SPIBPUEIS 3Y) JO SIGIDW
‘S13WNSU0Y ‘S1apIA0.d 33IAL3S 1O 3oeqPaa) pue Indul ay) PapN]oul SPIEPURIS 92IAIBS LOIUBARI AIH 341 JO JuaWdO|aA3p 3y L
$5320.4 Judwdojanaq spiepuels

0°ET A yoaq SAIVANVLS dDIAYES NOLLNIATId AIH NO NOISSTAIWOD ALNNOD SHTADNY SO :

&



Y1jeaH Jo SIUBUIWISIEQ [BIDOS UO UDISSILULIOD ay] o 1odad |suld "yl|esy Jo SIUBUILLISIIP 21205 31 U0
uonoe ySnoay; Aunba yijeay :uonelauss e ut ded syl Bulsop) "g00T ‘OHM ‘BASUID "U)[BRH JO SJUBUILLIBIAQ |R120S UO UDISSIUWIO] ‘uoneziuedi YyyeaH pHom 9

031 ALIIS P|NOUS ‘|lBWS MOY Ja1IBW ou ‘salpuade uoipuanald AfH r:m:;o_aEw pue mc_m:os 0} paie|as sainuoud Suinadwod s juatd

e 1apisuod §-3) ugisap J19Y} Ul SJUBUILWLIBIBP |B]I0S JO 9|04 3Y} JO Suipue3sapun ue 193|484 Aflewiuiw pjnoys s3d1uds uoluaald.d

AIH “J9ASMOH 'SUOITUBAIIUI [B190S 1O [eInIonJIs Jusws|duw 01 Aydeded sy3 3aey jou Aew s3jpuade uoiuaaaid AlH Auew ‘uoses)

s1y1 104 *A12120S UNO Ul pazijeuciinisul pue payauaua Adaap AjjealdAy sie ﬂcm,c_E._muwv [0S 3eYY U313 ‘suapjoyaxels ajdizjnw jo
§{eyag uo 1J0}J8 PUE awWi} JO [eap 12248 e sauinbal AjjealdAl SUOIUSAISIUL |BIN3INIIS PUE |BIDOS YINS 30 ‘uonejuswajduw) ay| “sanedsip
3say3 2anpal 01 Alessadau aJe ('219 ‘auedyy|eay ‘JuawAho|dwa ‘uoljeanpa \m:_m:of_ "§°9) saueunuLIRIap :w_uom LIO SN20J 143 S9IIAISS 10
SUOIJUDAIZILI ‘SIUBLIWIDISP |B120S 01 payjul] AjqeduIxau) 3Je mms_‘_mam_u AIH mm:muwm "AlH 01 3insodxa-jo xm: 5,|ENPIAIPUI UB SBSERI03p
10 S3sE3JDU JSYN 1BY] 51X3U0D 3Y) adeys sjueulwI1ap |eloos | mw_u_::EES ucm m_m:us__uc_ J0.43|B3Y 3Y} 32UBN|JUI 1BY] SUOIHIPUOD
[BI20S PUE J1LWIOU0ID 3Y) 3JE YI|EBY JO SJUBUIUWLISISP |B1I0S ‘y1eay 30 SJUBUILIBIDP |e1DOS B1ES1NW 10 SSAIpPe 0] pausisaq

‘(s1addoys

194095 "§'9) s221A43s Jo Ayljenb ssasse >_m=o:c;c8 3 sueaw Jaylo pue m>w?_:m :o_uuﬂm_umm Ew__u 3PN|IUI PINOYS SpoyIaw yIieqpas
‘passadde Ajisea pue ‘Buizipewsisap pue aAllsod-xas ‘ _ummmn fmcmbm ﬁﬂcm__u 10 NJ1330s31 ‘AlH Sunuanald uy aa1399)9 ‘9jeudoidde
Ajjean1ind aJe $21A13s 9y} 1ey] aunsus o1 dijay pInoys }IBgP334 “paAIas suonendod ayl wo.y 30eqpad) SNONUIUOD UM PIAAIIP
Jo/pue paudisap ale jey) SITIAISS e $32IAIDS- m>_mconmwm vm?_am m:o_um_:aon 33 Jo syjduaals pue spaau a3y} o} aaisuodsay

"Jual|3 [enpiAtpul yaea Aq paping se ‘yyeay _mB_H_._aw.. pue \ﬁ_mw_._ .,EcoE ‘Yieay |eaisiyd [|e13A0 SIUIID O] puURYIR pINCYs
sa21A135 pue sweidoud ‘a1qissod JanaUBUAM "PUIW U L0SIad 3j0YmM Y1 YLIM PIIBAIIDP 3Je AL UBYM JALLIBY 1SOW BI. SDIIAIIS
uonuaaald AlH ‘@J0ja49Y] 's331A13s Jno-Buissadoe a|doad o saAl] ay) u) Auew Suowe Ajitoud auo AjjealdAl st AJH Bulluaaaud D1IRSI|OH

19 1shw
Aauno) sajafiuy 507 U S201AI3S UONUAA3d AIH ‘S[e03 so 0 3314DE 01 13PIO U] :SAUVANYLS IDIA¥IS NOLLNIATHA AIH TYSHIAINN

Saydvd Z<Hm\.._m_u_>m_mm NOILN3IATYd AIH

0EI alpiq SMAVANVYLS FOIAYIS NOLLNFATId ATH NO NOISSININOD ALNNOD SHTIONV 8501




"AlISI9AIUN B1E1S puBRHed ‘Alinb] |BjorY 3oueApY 01 J33U3)
O ‘PUBUO “suonoziunbio ansuodsaa Afjoniind 1of [0203044 *(FTOT) 10[0D JO SAHUNWIUO) JO UOINIEDD 7§ "I-'IN ‘SAaY "V ‘suansis-AlinD) (wey paidepy .

"SJUSI[D 10} AJ9JES 4O DSUIS B SBIEIUNLULIOD JBL] PUB ‘WiIeM “UILOI[DM 51 1€Y1 JUBWUOIIAUS [e2)5Ayd B 9]e3JD Os|e sapualde
aAlsuodsals Ajjein1n) “13Yyjoue auo woly Juaiapip, Ajdwis 1ou ale am ey} uwmu_S:_a pue uolssauddo |zuoniIsul pue |eatiolsiy

uo paseq sainyna pue ajdoad Jo sdnoJs usamIaq 15I1Xa saouelequil Jomod 1ey} mmvw_z.ocv_um S3DIAIS dAISUOdSal-AjleINYND *|eNpIAIpU
pue Jeuoissajold ‘|euoneziuesio DIWISAS (UDITUIAISIUL JO S|9A3| JUBIBHIP e Ajpeded pue mmum_aos_ sa4inbaJ snuya 3 *sauNWWod
35JAAIP JO $aNSS] 8y} 03 puodsal 0] Ajseded 3y} saquIS3p SSaUAIsUOdsaL [eunyn) ‘ "S3IHUNWWOD pue suoneindod jus||2/18WNSU0D
9SJIAIP JO SP33U 211SiNSUl| pue 3anynd ‘saoroead ‘5321194 U3 ‘01 IUBA3|2J PUE ‘40 NJ303dS3I S4B 18Y) SSOYL DI SIDIAIIS

ansuodsal Ajjean1jny) "sadiA1ds SATSUOASal A|[EINJIND AS3AI2P 01 BALIS U_:o:m,__mco_“mN_c.mm,L.o uonyuanalid AIH IV :9n1suodsay Ajjeinyn)y

T e 's10708y
aAl129104d uodn pjing Jo/pue 3su 4124} 2INPaJ WY} ma_m:_ eyl ﬂmn;oﬁ Eoc uoleusiojuy 01 aAldadas aq [Im Ajax| pue syoey
ueysodun 3sopIs|p 01 Aj9y1| 240w 34 ||im uayl Aays ‘ui adesus >m£ SIoIABY3( @Y3] 10} vwmu::o paweys 2q 1ou ||Im ASY] 1BY] mouy
SJUBIJO UaYM ‘AJeIuod 3yl uQ "sQLS 10 AlH Suliinbae Jo-3su. $,9UOWIOS mmmmbc_ Aew jey) saoueIsWINAL 10 s101ARYaqg 340Ul NnoA
1843 UB3W 10U S20p aaisod-xas Bulag "33 'AlH 10} XS L 8uiaq 10" ‘yum mc_>__ ‘17opuagsuel) Suiaq ‘Aes Suiaq aznewsisap o3 aAIas
0S[e ABLU pUE ‘Xas az(1ewWwS11Sap 03 SAAIDS OS[E apn)Ie BAIISod-xas.y "ul a8e8ua Aew Aay s1o1ABY3q [BNX3S JO Adusnbad) syl pue
‘aney Aew Aay) siauled |enxas Jo adA] pue aaquinu ayl x_m:wcm.m,cg s1.31 se uo| se) §1as1l Jojaeyaqg a3y SuIpn|dUl ‘SI0IABY3( |BNXAS
,51U31|2 Inoge Juawspnl woJdy 994 ate A3yl ‘epnilie o vtonEmt_.rme_:woa-xmmz B WO} PDIDAI|DP 3JE STIIAIBS USYAN -OAINISOJ-X3S

‘uonelo|dxa pue ssauuado ue salell|iae) pue

(MO]3¢ UOIIIDS JUDWISSISSY 235) umv_mm 3uiaq mco_pmm:c Eo._mt__u ul s3nsaz yoeosdde paseq-yl8uails v "sseussajadoy pue swa|qosd
1snf uey) Jay3ed suoiinjos pue sanjunpoddo 23s 03 JU31Y e SuIMmo|(e sy} ‘ALISISADPE WU JBA0I3I 0] AYljIge By} PUE S32IN0S3.
‘sy18UaJls SARY S|BNPIAIPUI 1BY) SAWINSSE Yiealdde paseq-uy18ualls i "sJnado uswiamodiasip 1o ssasoud e pue Japiaoid 3yl uo
pa1eala 1 Aouapuadap e ‘Suye| si U1 B 1eym aziseydua am cus? ‘alowlayn "s1033e) aaelold pue Adusijisad feuslod ay3 uo
ey} Jaules SIoIABYaq aaiteSau Suiziseydwa SNy} ‘SaAIISWIALY IN0GE X1y, O3 SPA3U JUSI|I B JRYM UO AJuo SN0y 0} pud} satSojoyed 10
‘sw|qo.d ‘Spasu ‘s1d1ep S|ENPIAIPUI UO A[2]0S SN204 1BY) SIIAIS "3 JO Aljenb pue yijeay paarcidual 0} peaj ued Jeyy saijiqeded
pue syi18uaJtis ,S1u3l|d dojaA3P puUB PURISIAPUN O] 53295 uoisiAcud pue ugisap 221A49s 03 yaeosdde paseq-yi1usns v :paseg-yiSuans

‘(sdousyiom Bujjum awnsaud
931} "§-9) sjueujwI)ap |eros ediuw o1 djay 18yl sao1a18s yum ‘(3ui1sal AlH "F'3) sadiales uonuaaald AlH [euolipes) Juawa|dwod
0€1 aypag STIAVANVYLS dOIAYES NOLLNAATYd AIH NO NOISSINAOD ALNNOD SHTIDNY SOT



N~ OYAGENGINT=A YI1eM /WO agninoi-mmm//:sdyy | 'saanaeld pue sajdipulg ‘a|doad :ANjiwny |eanyng,, woJy paydepy s

H 3qelL E _n.mc__aso ale \mmEoB:o Ummmn uone[ndod pue ‘Spadu UCIIRIUBWNIOP

‘s101e21pul e1Ep Surpuodsaliod 112yl 0} uonppe.ul’ ‘s311085189 mmw: 1 "S$IIIAIDS UOJJUIAIG 01 IUIBYPY PUR UOIIUI]SY pUe ‘SDIIAIDS
UOIIUIARI [€2IPAIOIG-UON 01 95exUr] PpUe [R1I34DY ‘SOIIAISS UOIIUBA3I [edIpawolg 01 agexur ‘Sunssiay pue Sunss) G1S/AlH
‘1UBLISSASSY :ale sLI0831E) 92IALDS UolJUaARI4 Eo,u 3YL 'sALsS pue-AlH Jo uolyisinbae ayy Builuanaud je pawie sa3jAlas UoUIARL
AIH pa1e1833ul JO 195 2403 B JO uolsiacld ay) ainsua 0 }3as EmE:uo_u_ SIY1 Ul Pa|IR1RP SPIBPUEBLS 8I1AJIS UORUIAIG AIH 2YL
sawo0nQ paseq-uonendod pue ‘spasn :o_umh:mEzuoo ‘s103ed1pu| BlRQ ‘S9l10831e) 3IIAIAS UOIIUBARI 10)) JO Alewiwing

Aljigeiunodoe jeuonnyisug (g
pue mn___._ewctma [ny109dsal a0y saduejequil tamod SuiBusyeyd pue Suiziudoosy (g
uolda|tal-4|as |ea1td 1 suiuieal 3uoipi (T

:apnjoul AMIWnY |BIN}ND JO SIDUBL , "2UNJIN3 1133 JO UOISS3IAXS [BUOSId J13Y} SI PAUILLIDIAP

3ARY $9A|9SWAYL A3y} 1eym 01 uado Bulag woJdy SWIIIS DI NI SIUN JNOA InOge UIEB] NOA JEUAA "UMO S,9U0 UBY] JBYL0 S3Jn) N3
noqe a|qeadpajmouy Ajaienbape ag 03 a|gissodwi 1 1 3eul saZpajmouae Ajjiuny [BININI {31N]N2 JAYIOUE JO $)31[q PUE S3I0W
ay3 Jo agpamour YEnoioyl B YIM UOIIDUNY UBY U0 eyl sandwi Asuatadwod |eunyn) -ain}(na 419yl Jnoge suonezijeiauad uo paseq

uos1ad e 1n0ge ‘Mouy NOA 3UIYI NOA 1eYM 10 ‘Mmouy NoA Jeym puadsns o} ssausuljjim e uiejulew ol s| AJ[jIWUNY [Ban3Nd a2130e4d o)
0°El aypag SAVANVY.LS dDIAYMES NOLLNAATYd ATH NO NOISSININOD ALNNOD SFTIONY SOT :




popaau se ‘{d3du)
sixejAydoud aunsodxa
-i1sod |euonednido
-uou pue {d3.4d)
sixe|Aydoud ainsodxa
-a4d 3uissanae
S[ENPIAIPUI dAIESBU
AIH 3su-y3y jo
J2QuInu 3y} ISe3UdU| e

"uauiomsuel |
pue ‘SN

SPOLYIaLW JUIWHNIIDI

pue yaeasino jo Acuanhaly
pue 3dA] Jo uoneIUaWNIOQ e

wIsAs Juawadeurwl

e1ep pue s3|i4 Jua1|2 ul Sunsal
@1S/AIH J0 UOIEIUBWNIOG e

‘ muome SUETTITVREY
pue Y3e311N0 10 EnE:c pueadAl e
, mﬁcoE € Alans
mc_wmwu o._.m\>=._ U_o uonEu3WNICP SulAey
mucw__u w>_pmmmc v_m: ysiy jo adejuadiaq e
mc_umwa,
tBEmmE_ mc__u_>o._a mB_m mz_ummu JolaquinN e
. T . 3log3q
nm:mmbm\umﬁﬂ Lw>mc aABU OUM SQIS pue
2: _2 uwcmmhum\umamma mcoﬂmg joJaquny e
: - . SQ1S pue
>__._ gou, uwcmwbm\um“mma suosiad Jo Jaquuny e

dunsalay pue
3unsa) Ai1S/AH

pasn 51UaWISSasse-
40 2dA3 pue passasse s31do}

"uolisinbae AlH JO 3SU U3y} asea.oul Aew
Hmﬁ m‘_o_>m_._mn guueys-a|pasu pue |enxas pue
{yijeay [enxas pue sniels JuswAiojdws pue
Butsnoy ‘32ua|0IA pue BUINEJ] JO SIUALISdXa
‘asnge mu:.mumn:m yjjeay |euaw Sujuue|d

‘ Ajlwe) pue Aoueudaad suocileziunwwi
oune] ‘sueduawy 10 seaje ayads Suneapuy . 1! \ 1 P \ nez ! JUBLUSSISSY
uedLy/syoelg “NISINA I5@1S ‘@8edaA0d aauelnsul fJuawadedua
SJUAWISSISSE Pl dwo) » : ,
:sdnoud Suimo) oy N aJed Alewnd ‘awoy [eaipawl e 01 UOIIIBULIOD
a3 3uowe A||epadsa .10} pauaauas sjuedpiped Jo a8ejuadiad e
‘SUOL1I3JUI AIH M3U JO S1UaWISS3sse 313jdwod
A2QLINU 3Y] 95834337 * oym sjuedidniied weadold JO JaquIn e
{dHD wiolf) sawoang $31106310) 32IN13S
pasng-uoijoindod Spaap uonvIUaWNIOg 5103D2ipuy DIDG UOLIUSNS I 3107)

0T A ypaq

53110829380 9IIAIDS UOIIUBARIY 340D JO AJBWIWING T B|qBL

SAQYVANYLS IDIAYES NOLLNAAHYd ATH NO NOISSINWOD ALNNOD SHTIONY SOT




01

(sgLs) suonaajul
paiwsuel]
Aljenxas jo

J13qWinu 34} 3Se3129Q e

SN3EIS AIH umouy
ypm suossad jo
Jua213d 2y} 9seaIIU| e

FERISEDS

30UIIBYPE UOIIEIIPBW
$5222B OYM SIUBLD d3d pue
dJ4d 10 uolleuaWwnIoQ
S9JIALDS DIUAIBYpE
uoIEIIP3W 0} pPaJiajal
a4e oym SsjusId d3d pue
d34d jo uorieiuawniog
d34d sse20e

A[Jua14nd oYM Sua3II dad
J2WJ0} JO UOIBIUBWNIOQ
(110daJ-}8s uayd

aq Aew) uonduasaud 43d
10 4344 JO uonEIUBWNIOP

‘alqe|iene J)

(a8e3yuy

|eUI1Xa 10 [EUIRIU] 9
Aew) 101e8IABN d34d B 0}
a8eyul) jo uoMEIUAWNIOQ

(.idIdd0

d3d Inoge 10w ues| 0}
a1 noA PInom,, ‘uonsanb
ay1 o1 AjpAnewe
papuodsad "a'[) 4344 1noge
2Jow Suiuses| ut 35a491ul
JUS13 JO UOIIRIUBWINIOQ

uoII1EINPS d3d pue .

d34d 40 uoneuBWNIOQ

mou_Emm poddns
10 m:o_H:oEmE_ JauaJaype cozmu__qu
ss320e ocB mucw__u did ucm d34d 4O 95eIURI] e
. _ 'SAIIAISS uoddns
,._o mco_EwEmE_ mu:m:wcum co;mu__owc._
3 pallael sjual d3d v:m d3!d jo LR
d31d 01 PauUOIIISUB) PUB d3d PasSaIIe oym
swalp m>;mmm:->__._ ysH-ySiy Jo a8e1udIa e
ainsodxa, J0 SInoy: TL UiyIm d3d PaAlalal oum
SIUIP m>:mmm:->__._ Nsu-ySy Jo adejuaniad e
. , d3d uo uoiteanpa Suinadal
m,.Em__u m>_ummw:->=._ NSU-YSiy Jo 33ejuadiad e
.. uondudsald d31d e paAiadal oym

| sjuei aanEFau-AIH dsu-yYSiy Jo 35e3U%Iad

. 101e31neN
_”. d3id B 03 payul| aJe Jey) d34d Ul p3sa.alul

© SIUDIP 2ANESU-AIH YSH-YSiy JO 98e3U04ad e
d34d Ul p2152.431U1 3JE oYM

SjualD aanedau-AlH 1sU-y8iy Jo 98r1uadiad e
d34d uo uoieInpa suatadal

SJUDLD 3aiedau-AlH HSH-YSty Jo 38e1uadtad «

SAINNIBS
uonuanald
[edipaworg

0} agejul]

{dHD wouf) sawonng
paspg-uonoindod

Sp2aN uonmuawWnIog

5103021puf DIDG

sapoba)p) axnias
UOIIU3NIId 310)

0§l A ypaq

SAAVANYVYLS dIIA YIS NOILNFATYd ATH NO NOISSIWINOD ALNOOD SATADNV SOT




I

‘Aluap) sepuad s,au0 Ylim paudije Ajluessa2au Jou S| asn JiBYy3

32UIS JUBWINAOP SIYL Ul YINS SB 0 PaL1afal 10U aue Ing ‘AjpAI}dadsal 'sSWopuod 3[BwWway, PUB B[, SE UMOLU OS[E 212 SLIOPUOD ,[BLI3IUL, PUB ,[BUISIXT,, o1
-(a1qe|ieae ag sAem|e Jou Aeus 21ed Auewiud 8|qISsad3e pue 3|epIoyE 312 ‘S|enplalpul Japuagsuel) ‘ysi[Sug ueyl Jayio

agenJue| e yeads oym S[EAPIAIPUI ‘S|ENPIAIPUI PAJUBLLINIOPUN 104 371} 3582 Y1 3q sAem|e 10U ARW 4aIym JUR1D 3L 03 3|gelIeAe | 3Jed AJewnid 1ey) Bulunssy

IAOQE Se aules

Ayjigepene
wiopuod jo CO_HMHCWE_JUOQ

{(Hodas-yes
Jua1p ag Aew) ased Alewid |

01 23@yul| J0 uoiEIUaLINIOQ
wi3sAs Juawadeusw

BIEP pue S3[1} JuS1|3 Ul -

S{EJ19)21 JO UOIIEIUBWNIOQ

wmgm;u J0-93J4 d)qe|IeAR
mEonCOu _mEBc_ pue-|euIalxe jew
Jey} sajouade :o:cwﬁta AlH jo mmmEmEmm .
EmEmmmmmm 40 SAEP 06 UIYIM
s |eapay wl_mu EmE_E 0] payul[ Jea4 auo
~J3A0-ul aJed Azewld ummmmuum 10U 3AeY oEs
ﬂ:m__u w>:mmwc->_z v_mc ysiy *o CECMICRICERS
- ‘ T e
co_ammsm: wu:ml_smc_ yieay e
‘ wwu_Emm wawAojdws e
‘ sainued pooj e
muu_?_mm asnge ajurisgns e

T % S90IAI9S UI[edy [BIUAW e

Sa01/43S BuISnoy e

23ueLIXD 28UlAS e

UDI1EDNPa UOIIINPAI-)SHU e

SUOIJURAIDIU] [BIOIABYDQ e
‘0

‘S[el19424 apn|2ul ABW SIY] *$5320.4d JUaWISSISSE

343 BIA PI1EJIPUI SB ‘SIS UOIUDASId
[E31P3WOIG-UOU Papasu 03 PaLiasal ale
1841 S1UI|2 dAI1eTaU-AIH ¥SU-UySIY 10 U213 e

SIIAIRS
uonuUanaIld
|edlpawiolg

-UoN 03 adejun
pue |eLajay

{dHD woif} sawoarno
paspg-uonnindod

spazaN uonpjuawiniog

$10102ipu] DI

saL10bayn) 33inias
uonuUaN3Id 3103

0T« }oaq

SMAVANVLS HOIAYIS NOLLNIAHYd ATH NO NOISSTANINOD ALNMNOD SHTADNVY SOT




4!

34073 fo m?u._u:Em >__._ uo uoIsSIWo) AJUNo) $333uy SO ayy Ul pay31|ysiyY st H 9sneasq SpJepuels 331Aas
UOIIUDABIG AlH 35943 U] PRQLIIS3p 10U Si ) JaAamoy ‘Ayuno) sajaBuy so7 ur A3a1e11s uonuaaald 5100 e s] s|enplalpul anISod-A|H JO uoissauddns |2IIA 9Y | 190N«

gAO(e SE JWeg

~.uonedpaw

d3id 40 4344 03 Iquataype
jo :o_u,mucmE:uon_
(s)@21n43s wI EmEmm,mmc.w

U912 JO UOI]EJU3WNI0(QJ

(s)321A495 JO UOISINOId
10 uoneIUBWINIOQ

254n0) Aep-8¢
104 d3d 01 pRIaype OYM SIUIID 40 JIGUINN
Japinodd 434d yum

pauiwialap ued duaiaype Jad uoljespaw

d34d 01 palaype oym Sjud||d 40 13GWNN
P3pPa3au Se INALIS uUolUIAId
Ul padedus paulewas oym SIU3I JO ISqUINN

S3IINIDG
UOIIUIAI

01 3duUAIYPY
pUE UoNUIIY

{dHD woif} sawoainQ
pasog-uonoindod

spaspn uonopiuaUInIog

Si01D2ipul o1pqg

sapobajo) annias
uonuanaid aioy

O£l & ypiq

SAIVANY.LS HOIAYHS NOLLNIATEd AIH NO NOISSINNOD ALNNOD SHTADNY SOT :

¥




€l

‘(suonsanb-paseq-yiSualls-1s11}-05/wod sAsuinclimausany padueys-mmm//:diy)  suoisanp paseg-yiFuans sl gs,, Wo.j paidepy .

:a1elido.dde se ‘sjuaLSsasse 3|diynu JO BSIN03 3] 1IN0 IO ‘JUBWSSISSe

ue Juunp payse a9 Aew Jey)  suonsanb paseq- y13uas Jo ssjdwexs awos ate Bo_mn papn|au| "spasu pue saSuajjeyd J13y) 0}
uolIppe U] 32UIJISAI pue mw_uzmumnEOu ‘siys ,sual)2 y3ydy pinoys EmEmmmmmm ay}-Sujueaw TBUUEW paseq-yYIFuadls e ul
P12NpuUO 3¢ PINOYS PUE QU3I|D AL} PUE }JRIS 9U] UdIMIB( JOABDPUS dARIEIANUI u:m m>_uEm,ao_ou e 51 55320.4d JuaWIssSasse ay|

n_:mcosm_m._ Em__u mc:msb e ysi|gelsas 01 uidag

dn-moj{04 JUBI2 PUB UOIIEILIFUSPI P EE___UE 0] co:mE‘_oE_ U312 J1Seq 199]|0D

sasodind 3uiliodau 1oy mum_u BUTE) ) |e12p3) ‘Fels SE:B paJinbay 133100

(sesodind asueJnsul Joj UCIIEIYLIDA JUI0JU] “8'3) U3LISSISSE By Joy mucmc._m.__:cm._ co:mycwE:uon Auejo Juai? 3yl wuou)
BLIDILID 1310 PUE ‘JUBAB[DJ JI‘SNIEIS AlH- -Buipnjauy ‘sedialas 104 Knaisija s U312 3yY1 ysigeis3

[Jo4uD 03 a1am A9Y] JI 308dX3 UBJ JU3I|D 33 Jeym pue (Ajjeusaixa pue >__mEE_._; m._n_m__m>m S3IIAIDS Y] JO U2 B4} WIou|
a1eudoidde uaym wfmcwbm pue ‘sysu m_omw: S Em__u mﬁ mc_ctmwmv 0] UOIJEWLIOJUI JUBAD|I JBY1ED

UOIIESIDAUOD

3y} Jeay 03} 9|qe S1agquiswt Jiels ._mfo ou >_nEm+wE ucm ﬂ:w__u hmfo ‘ou 5_3 Bm>_._n_ U] JUDUISSISSE Y] 1INpUo))
anunuos 0y Em,m:ou [egJaA UIR1QO pUR JUBWISSAsSE AU Jo asodund ay3 uiejdxy T

o5 F i B~ o6 o

o~

:(JepJo s1y) ul Ajl1essadsu Jou) mE,uEm_m_B pue mu_p_>_.uwum m:_z,o__ou, Y3 apnjaul pinoys ssa2o4d JUaWISSasse ay |

- .m,oop yans mmN“_;: JUBWISSASSE Byl JI ‘{{Z-DHdJ) a41euuO1ISaND Yl B3H

juaned ‘3-s) m_oB 3UIiU93.10s 3SNQE IURISGNS JO/PUR YI[RAY [IUSW 214122dS 32113 03 MOY Ul PaulRJ] aq PINoYs

s1aplaoad ‘ajdwiexa 104 ‘palonpuod (s)iuswssasse jo adAl ayl 01 JueAsfa./o1aads aue l1ey) sJuawa|a apnjaul os|e pjnoys pue ‘(-39
‘a8en3ue| Apoq ajendoidde jo asn ay} ‘4auuew _EcmEm_u:,Tcoc,m, ug 91e2]UNWIWIOD 0} Moy "8°3) sanbiuya3] Sula5unod pPalsuad
-JuU3]|2 2I1Seq apN[aul pinoys Juluies] ay| ‘BuuosIad PSUTEL] AQ PI12NPUOD 3G PINOYS $53201d JUILISSISSE DY) ‘UOSEIS SIY) 404
"$921AJ3S UoNUA.Id A1BSSDIBU 31n235 01 AljIQe 1o sSauBulim s Jualp 3yl apadu) ued Aem Aue uj [nj1d3dsalsip 1o (eluawspn|

3q 03 SaA12243d JudI|I e Jey) JUSWSSISSE ue ‘Aj9542AU0) “A[1991100 PI1INPUO3I Ji “19adsal pue 1snI3 uo 1jing diysuone)sl aanisod
Suise; e 421503 UBI Shy3 pue ‘Asuade Japiroad m‘ﬁ_a SBY JU3j2 B uo11dLI3IU) Yidap-ul 1511} 9Y] USYO 3. SJUBWISSISSE JUI|D

INIINSSISSY

0°§I ayviq SMIVANYLS dDIAYES NOILNIAT Y ATH NO NOISSTNIWOD ALNNOD SHTHONY SO'T :

&



14!

¢A810ua noA sanF 1eYyM O

imou 1Yy3u 341] An0oA Ul |jam 3u103 Je 1.yl s3uiy) (U2} 4O Ay Jo) B3IYT BUR IBUM ‘6T
é1uasaud 1e ay1] snoA ul s1039e) 3nlsod Byl 1. 1BYM ‘]T

¢NnoA 1o} ainyoid 12133 e 21ea12 d|3Yy PJNOM 18] ‘Op 01 SI3U30 YSE NOA PINo3 18UM /T
£941] JINOA Ul dARY NOA 593UN0SD. _u:m__..\m___v,__.m ﬁﬁmc.m:m 33 2q1IIS3P NOA p|nOMm MOH 97
. _ ...mm__h:o\, uj Juepodwi st oYM "ST

_ - 311 INOA UL St OYM, T

SANUNWIWED anok-jo ued e aq _8 nok dpay mﬁmcwbm INOA 0p/pIN0d MOH '€7
isuyyduauls 15918248 inoA ale 1eym :mm‘_zo\, INOQE 3NjEA NOA Op Jeym ‘Jsapowl Buiag INOYNM "TT
¢slayio Yyoeay o1l noA pInom 1eym EEztoaao 3yl pey noA j| Tz

¢S9|IB1S0 3WOIIBAD NOA nma_w; aAey 1eY] mmc_f 391y} 34 1BYM 0T

nmmm:m__m_._u AWO0IIN0 NOA padjaiy noA-punoue ajdoad aney MOH ‘6T

¢pey aney nok mmm:m__m;u 3yl SW00I3A0 / pade) NoA aney MOH 'S8T

nm:_mn___m_.s Jo m:__wwu, pue ‘yijeay 1a13aq 3ARY 03 Op pINo2 noA Suly) auo s1 1By LT
_“¢)2eQ 33unog noA sdj3y U1yl NoA Op 1BYM JUI|IS3L BIB NOA "9

nmc_o_u Hm _uoom alsm noA Aes. noA mouy oym a1doad Jay1o pjnom Jeym ST

$4[954n0A Jnoge an|jeA noA op 1eUm vT

nmcobm daay noA djay 1eyl ay| anoA ut s3ulyl ay) aJe 1By 'ET

nm:_:mnnms SL1eyM W |11 — 3| JnoA ug [j2m Bu108 ale s3ulyl uaym 7T

¢ 9J1] ANOA Ul DA3IYIR 0] JUBM NOA OP 1BYM 'TT

$NOA 01 AjIsea S3UW0D pull NOA Op 18UM ‘0T

{21qeAofud s1y) saxew 1eym §3uiop a1 noA op 1IBYM 6

iNoA saaidsul 12y '8

éuaddey Em_t mme NOA pIP MOH ¢3pEW BABY NOA 3ABY SJUSWIARIYIE JBeYyM £
&9 1noA ui o pnoud 150w NOA aJde IBYM 9

ilonaq am e ESm umﬁ mv_mE USIW IBYM ¢SIT Aes nOA pinom Moy QT 01 T JO3BISBUD 'S
n>mu noom B 1l sa)ew HmES £ NOA 104 33 $00| Aep poo3 B 1eym 1noge aw |21 ‘¢
é491190 T 9jew pinom leul op noA pinod Suiyl [jews Jeym g

i E:s padjay aaey 1ey3 1sed ayj ul auop aaey noA s3uiyl Jo yuiyl noAued g
¢ (319 ‘yyeay (|esaA0 ‘@3udiaype — 323[qNns ulelsd e 01 193dsal Yyum 10 ‘|a3uas ul 2aya) |1I9m upjdom st jeym T

0°€T A yoaq SMAVANVLS HOAEES NOLLNIAHYd AIH NO NOISSININOD ALNNOD SHTIDNY SO1

W«



Sl

[ennualod s ual2 e 3jpuey 0] pajeda.id ag pinoys Japiaoid Y3 ‘ewnel) Jo A1olsly s, U2 e 0} Sujulersad payse ale suonsanb
J1 ‘ajdwexa 104 "sasuodsad a|qissod ay3 aeuew o} pasedaid s1 1apiaoad 3y J1 Ajuo passasse aq p|noys sease 1o saidos diynads

. 'suonn|os |enualod 3uiALizuaps ul Jusi|d
QY3 151sSe ‘PayIIuap! S1e sialileq J| ‘SIJIAIAS Ul padedua Bululewal pue s301A1a3S _mc_mmawum 0} sidlLeq 104 ssasse ‘ajedosdde §)

"(-013 “Aay3 ‘ays ‘ay) unououd paiiajaid s U813 3Y3 Ulelqo .0m_<_,...3_mum_tmu 43diq [eu13io noA uo Buluesw ‘Yuig

18 paugdisse NoA 21am Xas JBUM T ¢ANIUSPI J9pUaB JuaLInI INoA S1ieym T :ULHG. I8 X3S paugisse 1193 e [j3m se Ajjuapl Japuad
1ua.und s,uosiad Japuadsued) e saunided 1ey) uonsanb dajs-om ayl Bussn ._m_u_chU ?Ecov_ 1apuag ol pajejal suonsanb Supise
UBYAM ‘WIBY] 10} 1} 359Q S81I083]ED JaAaleym Buisn >u_u_:£w SR TPIEIN \c;:mb_ 0 S3UdL JOJ MO||E \m_amem 104 sennuapl
8u13095193Ul JO pue S3NIUBPI SNOUEA JO Suluije S| um:u hw::mE euw .._o;mE._oE_ u__._am._moEwu uuu__ou ‘a1qissod saAdUYM

‘Rendoadde aq >mE EmEmmmmmm ._m.m:o___\m iy _._,_ E_oa JUSIBINP B JB 1O ‘SUOIIEN]IS DWOS

u| “J2ASMOH “3]qISS00 SE A[STIONIPadXa SE SITIAISS $58338 0 3| 3¢ P|noys SIUaiy "S3JIAIBS asay} 8uissedde 231049 JUIWISSISSE
AUr8us| e ainpua 01 aAeYy 10U PINOYS 434 10 am_m “Bunsay ohm\>__._ guissazde dr- Pa1sa.lalul st oym juajp e ‘a|dwexa 104 -Ajua
40 ju10d pue sa21A19s Sulssadde 10y (sjuoseal s ualPay} yum usije pjnoys pa1anpuod ase 1eyl sBUIUAAIIS 1O SJUBWISSISSE AY |

‘01 paiaype m._L,m_mw_u__oa‘B__m_Em_uc:S 1y} uaald ‘pauoddns aq pinoys (uosaad
-ul ‘sdde |e1dos eja ‘paseq-1xal 83} uondeaul Jo m_uoﬁmE asiang h>u.=em.m Japinoid 343 1e Juawiulodde ayi puane 03 Juelisay
2SIMIBYI0 10 D|qEUN 3B OYM SJUID mmumnoEEouum pmﬁ Jauuew um._mu:ou U3 B Ul PI1INPUOS 3¢ PINOYS JUDWISSISSE Y|

‘UOIJBLLLIOLUI JO S3DINO0S 13410 PUB ‘SiagLuaL
Ajiwey ‘s1aniased ‘siapinold [e190s0yAsd 1O [eaIpaL E._mmmcmE 35E7 WO} UOIIBWIOUI [RUOIIPPE 9pN|oul ABUE SIUIWISSISSE
"JUBSU0D U YHMm pue 3eudoidde J) “JoAaMOH Juswssasse ue Sutinp uonew.Iosul o 321nos Asewid 3y3 g pinoys Juayd 3y

$IN0 IOM SIUL PIP MOH P31} 9ABY NOA SUOIIN|OS TURIHIP ‘DAL Aue INOge BW |91 "9€
¢ noA 1oy s3uiy) anosdwi suoddns ayy pip _.so: EnoA 03 Injdiay uaaq aaey eyl pasn noA aney suoddns Jo puly 1BYm ‘SE
£Spaau 1noA 193w 0] 3[ge uaaq noA aaey MoH "v¢
ESIIDS AnoA doj2A3p 01 3. U333 NOA dABY MOH €€
ss8uiyy jo doy uo Ajjeau |98} noA spew jey] Aem e ui 33u3||eyd e o] papuodsal NOA uaym aull e Inoge aw 3] €
&3] oA jo 1ed Buipiemal 1SOW 3y st 1eYM TE
O£ Ay STIVANVYLS HOIAYAS NOILNAATAd AIH NO NOISSINIWOD ALNMOD SATIDNY SO'T



"Al1auapl Jopual s,auo Yyum paudi|e A[l1eS5a28U 10U S| ash 4193
33UIS JUSLINJOP SIY3 Ul YINS SB 03 PaLiajel Jou aJe Ing ‘AjaAiladsal ‘sLiopuod 3wy, pue 38w, Se UMOLY OS|e aJe SWOoPUod [euldlul, pue ,|eularxd, -

wawdinba uoilaalul-8nJp 3(1421s 01 SS3IJE JUIISISU0D YIB| oYM m:oﬂm_n,_ 01 spoylaiu _mwm_ 12y30 1o ‘suenisiyd
ssipewleyd ‘swesdold saoiasas a8ulAs y3noauyl sadutlAs a|uals .B.wc 0} paie|al se2.nosal ._o_:o_umEL_&_.__ jouoisinold A

suodo uoljealqn| pue (213 ‘xajej-uou *, _mEmE_ ;mEmem ‘8 8 SWopuod 10 Ew:m> esuusyo A

S . " 2sdiysuone|al
1UEPLOISIPO.ISS-AIH 4O SI3quaw 03 Hoddns pue Buljasunod an__m_umn_m 0} Pﬁm_m: $304n0653, Jo co;mctouE_ JO uoISINGLd A

spoyiaw uoiuaaaud 1o ‘vorisinboe :o_mm_Emcmb AlH azon_m :o:mELP_:_m_E ucm sidoouod SuiApiey A

?mu_imm Adueugaud: pue wZﬁ:wEaE [E12ads Sa31MBS (1S ‘d3id
~3-3) SUOIJUBAIDIU] [EDIPSLIOI] 10/pUE (JuaWIea.] 3SN JdUelISHNS EmEn__:cw_.co_tw.E_-mEU 3|1423S 10 3Sh pue X3s 13jes
29e4n05ua 1eY] S31831E.11S UORINPA XSIJ SAISUSIUL IO JBLIG ,\..m.mv wc,o_ucwaﬁc.._ |esoiaeyaq ‘(*212 ‘Yiesy |enyaids ‘yieay

Jedo ‘uoijainu ‘yyeay |exnsAud |jesano sapn|dul Aew) _.Emcum ul _t_mwz 0] paie|at $321n0S3. 40 UOIJBULIOJUN JO UOISIADLd A

SIapnpoul uonowo.d uljeaH

"Juat2 33 JO SY18UaIS ||BIRA0 pUE SlolAeYaq Surrowold uijeay Juauund ySiydiy o1 pue (1ueA3jas )i ‘sidulied J1ay) pue) uossad
oy1oads 3y) 01 paio|ie} 3JB JBY] SUOIIUSAIIIU] PUB S3I[AIDS-1SaBENS pUE ‘UoII_LUIOJUI 13)J0 01 S| UOIIUIIUY BY[ "SIUBISWINDILID
10 SI0ARYS(Q-4SIM ZIWIUILL pue B.Smcmn mc_v_mmm-.ﬁ_mms Bo.Em._n_,.Hmﬁ safessaw a1endosdde Ajlpuapl 01 BUiU93.3S /lUDLUSSISSE
ay Sulnp pa3oa||00 uonewloul Juisn sapnjoul s1yl .:um.‘.o._nnw uonowoid yajeay e azi|n pinoys ssa30.4d JU3WSSasse ay |

SunpIyeIXas A L ) 9JUB[OIA Jaulled ajewnu| .

ewnell A Aljenyuids 01 uoiRBUUO) A
S]UBLUSSISSE JUBI|D
ul s21d03 Suimojjog ay1 Suipn|oul JapISUOd ‘puiy Je SAJIAIDS 10/pUe ‘S|eII34a. ‘S32UN0sal aaey sauade/siapinoad Jeys usaln
-asuodsaJ uj SaIAIBS 10/ pue ‘S|ela)al ‘52N0S3a 13340 ued Japiaoad ay3 J1 Ajuo passasse ag pInoys sease 4o sdoy Jirads

'Suojows jo aduel
O°ET aypaq SMAVANVLS dDIAYEIS NOLLNTGATAd ATH NO NOISSININOD ALNNOD SHTHONY SO1 :



L]

Jpd sSuipias|esurpuou Ul Suglsal My Junuswaidwi Ay apd/Bugisal/fipd/ay/aoBopa mmm/ fisdiy
‘siapinoid Bugisal AtH 40§ aping v :sbupas joauyaucn uf Bugisar AlH Bunuataydiug woly pajdepy -

‘pa1eIIPU| SB SIDIASS U0NUBASId pue ‘Juswieal) ‘@1ed AlH dn-mo)|o} mmwuum 0} ﬂcm__u duijroddns uo pue synsal
1591 AIH SuLIAAIIBP UO SNJ0J PUE SJBLIIE( 1UBIED SZILUIUIN “PIeMIo)IYSIel)S pue m_n__wmwuum ‘a|dwis ag pjnoys 3unsal AlH '8
-ajedosdde Ajjeansin8uy pue H:Bmanu Aj|ean1ind aJe 1ey) S3DIAIIS
unsal AIH Aljenb-ySiy saaiap Aayl aunsua o] sme| pue saldijod yieay Jqnd 91e1s pue |e30| 01 Emr_um p|noys sapualdy -/
. ‘Japiaodd aies-jeajud AlH ue 01 Ajg1eipawiw
pallajal aq pinoys uonaajul AlH palinbae Ajjuaial jo nmaumam:m mcoﬂmn_ "159) >_uon;cm ue yum-uoounfuod ul yNy
AIH 10 Aesseounww| Apogiue/uasijue ue uiopad pue co_twu.c, AlH 21n2e jo >u___n__mmoa m_.z 8 tw_m aq PInoys si1aplaocid 9
L ’ "sisougderp
ay1 ysiqeisa Ajpauyap 03 3ullsa) [euonippe Aq pamo||oy aq Hm.:E co;uqu_ AlH 10} 51591 mc_:wmbm m>Emoa Adeujwjald ‘g
“§1|NS31 1531 AJH 41343 2A19031 03 Aj9yjIjun a1e suosiad ssajun pageinoaua st 5153} uoneulquiod qy/3y Jo asn v
umk__:uw._ mn_ 10U p|noys mc;mﬁ AlH 104 Juasuod pausdts aiyneds ¢
; ‘ - < *sBUI113S ||B Ul papuaWWIodal s|
{sau1aap jusip/iuaned ayi ssajun vwctotma aq __:s 1591 >__._ ue Hmr: Em__ub:m;ma 2yl SutAjnou) 3ulusauds A|H Ino1do 'z
‘a8pamouy J19Y3 JNOLYLIM PI1Sa] B 10U 1SN ch__u\mucw_umn_ ; co_ﬁmbU wo.j 334} pue Alelunjoa aq isnw 3unsal AlH ‘T

e ;,.".mﬁ‘m:_ummu AlH 01 Ajdde jey3 spaepuels ase Suimo||oj 9y
'Spa3u J1ayj uo mc_ncmamu ‘SRIINIDS uoijuana.d ._>.__._ J3U30.03 payul]-2J JO Pa3{UI] pUB ‘SpaDu pue SYSLI J0J Passasse AlJe|n3al

'syjuoLl £-T AJ9A3 Pa1sal 193 PINOYS AIH J0) ¥S1 YSIy 1e s|enplalpu] "SadlAIas Jo Aeile aAisuayasdwod e 0} a8exul| a1emjoe)
03 Ayiunlioddo Aay 3y} ‘AuBW 10} pUB WNNUIIU02 uonUaAaJd AlH 41 Ul A1lua Jo Juiod 3511} aY3 se aALas ualyo 3unlsa) LS Pue AlH

ONILS313Y4 ANV ONILSIL A1S/AIH

*uonisINbae AlH 3U3N|JUl JBY) 510198} [BI20S PUE [BIIP3W 953Y] 0F Sululelad

suoI1sanb apn[aul PjnoYs SJU3WSSISSY ._E.mu.. [eaipaw Jen8as Jo y2e| pue ‘Buisnoy 3|geisun ‘asn dULsgns ‘ssaul)l jeruaw
‘Auaaod se yans ‘saguajjeya |eanjanis pue ‘_m_uamx_.m:oﬁwa juesyiudis asuanadxa ued uoiysinboe A{H 104 ys1t ySiy 1. sjenplaipu|
‘uoiisinboe AlH 3edwi 3243 S10328} J2120S pUE [EJ1pAL 10} BUISSasse apn[Iul pINoYs ss2104d JUBWISSASSE By |

0l 4 ifoaq SAUVANVLS HOIAYES NOILNIATEd AIH NO NOISSINIWOD ALNNOD SATIDNY SO'1



81

‘AlH 10} 22U0 1583] 1B P1Sal 3 PInNOYs Japjo pue £T sade sjuadsajope pue synpe ||y

120D 9y wouy paidepe ‘saulaping 353y} MO||0} 1SN SBDIAIBS FUIISAJ QLS PUe AlH

suofrdo :o_umu:n:_ﬁcm.ﬁE%coU [ELISIUL pUB |BUISIXD 1210
$921A195 Jaulied [eruapiiuod ‘Alejunioa Jayjo 03 suawisedap yyeay 1dwoid Aew Sunuoda.a ased
1eY3 SALS 10/pue AIH Ylm pasouSelp sjustd WUl pue sjuawalinbal.uoipipsinf 0y mc_Eoﬁm.ma._.m\\,__._ 10 s9s5e2 Lloday
ysu G1S/AIH 03 Buiuiepad co;mE._oE_ Lo\wcm UOIBWLIOUI Y3[eaY JISeq JO 3Ie
411oM-}|3s JO BSUS
. HI0M X35 [BAIAING
mEoEE>m pue: ‘m:_:mm‘_um ‘sisougelp g1S/AIH Emum: Ppuesed
. uUonsinbae AlH 8|gissod-013InquIuU03 18Y)
aney Aew Aauy sJo1aeY3q 13410 J0/pue ‘SQLS/AIH 10} pajeal) alam oym me:ﬁmn m_._:mcm-m_uww: J0/pue Xasjuaday 4

_ _._o_mm_c._mcm: ohm;_z 0} pea| Aew jeyl S101ABYaQ
pue (dsnge H10M X3S ‘BIUI|OIA |BNXDS co;m‘_mu‘_mus co_mmmgawu Eo_om:oa Emmm_b asn-8nup pue ‘joyod|e ‘|enxas A
: - ., fuo|ssiwsues].q 1LS/AIH 40} S1013B) 4S1I 3SDY] SSISSY
uawieall (1s pue (anewoldwAse cwto ale Hm_._t SQALS 40§ SUIUaaIIS 40 S)Y2UAq 3Y) (€ ‘uonIsinbae AjH 1e|1ae)
ued eyl sals (z ‘uoiisinbae g LS/AIH JO 3sU 3yl mu:um: 0] mvoﬁmE Q mogqe SQALS/AIH 104 3su-ySiy 1e SJU3)[2 wuou|
"a1ed danuaaaud pue [eaugp
jewido 01 aARNPUOD diysuoile|ad aljd-1apiroid e mc_‘_:m:m pue mc;mmp AlH auipap 01 uondo s juajd ay) Suiatasand
0s{e 3)Iym s3uI119S a1e3-U1[Eay-||e Ul 218D BUIIN0I JO Jede 2q p|noys Sujuaauas AH Ino-3do pue 3unsal AlH JIsoudelq
's3uatd aanisod-AlH pasoudelpun >_m_._o_>m:n_ pue s3jdno? EmEoum_n AlH Asuapt {q) pue u11sa] 5S1MI3Y10 10U 2UB OYm
SJURIfR YsU-YFy 1oe1ie (e) 01 ma_smco;m_m._ pasauied Jo mw_%OU 104 S32IAL9S Bunsal AtH 8uiayo JapISU0D pINoYS SaNS
"SI 01109ds S uB1[2 Byl 01 paJo|ie]
S1AJDS 0] sadeyul| Bulnsus Jo/pue s|ediasal duipiaoid sﬂ_:mm.._ 1593 Suipiaoad ‘Suiuaaads ysu Ja1ug Sunajdwod 1533 AlH
ay1 Sunonpuod ‘uoewloul A3y Sulianlep sapnjaulieyl BuUllsal AlH SO [(2POW PAUNWEDS B Juawa|dwl pjnoys sajouasdy
"UOI1I3JUL AIH 3IN2€ aARY AW oYM SIUd)d BulLia)al Jo) Jueriodwl s1 Suliss)
AIH paseq-Aiojeloge] SuLialo safljides yum ‘mn_cm:o_wm_m._ Burysijqeis3 ‘Acuade J1ay3 1B 9sn J0J 9|qISE3S PUB ‘DAITDDYD
-1502 ‘9AI1ISUDS ]SOW Y3 2Je 1eY] S3180|0uyaal Suilsal A|H 2sh p|noyYs $a3is ‘sjual|d 0] S} NsaJ a1e4ndde 1sow 3yl apinoid o]
's]e08 weidoud Suinaiyoe sy Buiysal peladie] aunsua 031 AIaalap 221A19S Jojjuow pue sjeos weidold ysi|gelsa
‘$H0)Ja UaWINID3L pue Suiyadiel 218a1e.1s Aojdwa pINoYs $311S ‘U0II3JUI ATH 104 %s1 Yydiy 1e suoneindod yoeau o}

S

QT A oaq STIAVANYLS dDIAYES NOLLNIATAd ATH NO NOISSTNWOD ALNMNOD SATHONY S0O'1

FA!

91

ST

a4

€1

4

T

01

6

Ws



61

*19p|0 pue 98e JO siedA

g5 suostad 0] pasaisiuiwpe aq Aew Aay) ‘@8 Jo s1eaA gg YSnoJy] suosiad Jo) PAsSUIIL] BIE gODAUBIA pUE gRIIdRUBA YSnoyly
-98e 40 sJe3A /< 1€ paJdlstujwpe sem sauas Alewnd ayl

11 S123A g AJand UaAIB 9 PINOYS 350P J31S00( Y "ISOP 3541} WOI SHIam g Jsea| 1e :mmnwm; 11 se uo| se ‘Anunjoddo }salJea
2Y1 1E 3SOP PUOIIS B IAIBIDL PINOYS DUIIIEBA JO SOP T AJUO PIAIBIBL OYM suos1ad PalIJul -AIH PR1BUIDIEA A|SNOIARIJ "S31IDS
Asewiid a9y se ‘pede syaam ZT-8 (o BI1IBUBIA IO 50RAUBA) BUIIIBA FADN E wmmov Z w>__wu,m_»u_:osm suos.ad pajI3UI-AIH

i ‘03e

S1E3A G< SEM BUIZIBA FAIIN JO 950D 1SB| 3S0YM SSO0L] 104 PaIapISU0D wn ued mmo_u ._Bmoon e ‘Souem: >H_=:EE_ poaonpul auddeA
|E220208UIUDW 3SNEIAG "(gBJIZBUBIN IO gO3AUBIA} BUIIIEA YADIN 30 mmoﬁ T.8A1333) pinoys Pa122jul-AlH 10U 3B OYMm NS

_ 'Hda W1 0} >_Bm_vwEE_ QNI Jo sased 10adsns (je 1oday

“1apiaoad a1ed Atewiad J1ay) 1e 2)qIsea) Jou s :o_umc_uug t wc_uum> ~a>u_>_ mm.c 1oy ch;mn INSIN 19)9Y

~ +1e3A 1SB| 3Y3 ulyum AJH 10)

pP21591 U33q J0U BABY pUE PA1IBUI-AIH B¢ 0} UMOUS} JoU dJe 9,_3 ﬂcmamn _>_m_>_ __m 0 co_umc_uum_.., uum Buoje 3ulsal AlH 4240
. : . "suollepuauiwrodal (d10v)

$331198.14 UOIIBZIUNWIW| UO 3311WIWOD) AIOSIAPY "S'MN. m:t _ma se mc_uums AN Uum Bcw;ma PRIIJUI-AIH D1BUIDEA A[DUIINOY
“EB1QIN0 JULIN2 FulNp BUIXJeA ?>u_2v Emms—cou _muu0uom:_cwE Ew_m>_.__um:,o yum sjuaned INSIA [je 21BUIIIBA

zapnpaul Ajuno) mm_mmc< sOTul mwc_uum> _muuouomc_:mE 104 SUOIIBPUSLWILIONIAI JUILIND ‘UoljIppe

*JeaA B 30U0 1SEJ| 1B AJH 104 pa1sa) 198 u_:o;m EwEa_:Uw mE_u :o_uumE_ S2UBYS 10 X35 pa33330adun sey oym auoAuy

, ?EcoE g 01 £ A1aAe “3'3) 3un1sal AlH Jusnbauy

310W WoJ4 Jjausq Aew uaw E_B X35 IABY OYM UBIOM ._m_ucmmmcmb e >=m:xmm pue uaw |enxasiq pue Ae3 aAllde Ajjenxas
‘(sjeataiul

yiuow 9-01-¢ e “3'3) sql1s 4104 >zcw=cm¢ 34O PAUDIIIIS B PINOYS XIS PI1IA10JAUN IABY OYM ‘UIW YHM X3S DABY OYM
USLIOM JSPUDBSURI] 1O NSIA "USL YIM X3S DARY OYM UIWIOM 13pUISSUEL) DAIIR [BNXIS SB |]am SB ‘(NSIA) U3 YlIm X3s aAey
OUM UBLL 330 pue ‘|enxasiq ‘Aed 9AI10. Ajlenxas |2 10} PayIoU0S pue ‘eipAwteiyd ‘sijiydAs 10) JeaA e 33U Jsea| 1e SuIuda.S
"SJUBJUL JIBY] U SIALI0W JO Y3|eay ay) 19910.d 01 ‘papasu se Suiisal 1eadal yum ‘Asueusaud ul Ajea Suijiels uswom
jueudaid ysu-1e 104 SUIuaa.42s e3Y1i0u0S pue eIpALue|Yd-pue ‘udwom Jueudaid jje o) Buiuaaids g siieday pue ‘AlH ‘sijIydAS
"UOI123JUl PRIIILISUR.Y AJ|ENX3S B SBY OyMm JuIed X3s B S ONs 510108y ySH UM

UaWOoM Japuadsid 19p|0 Se ||am Se ‘S1eaA Gz uey) J28unoA uawom Japuadsid aaoe Ajjlenxas (e J0) Bujuaaids eayuiouos [enuuy
UOI1123)U PIUWISUERIY AJ|eNX3S B SeY Oym J3ulied Xas B SE UYINs S1012ey 3SH YlIm

UaWOM 1apuadsid 1ap[o SE ||am Se ‘s1eaA 67 ueyl J8unoA uawom Japuadsid aAlde Ajjenxas (e 40 Buiuaa.1ds elpAwe|ys |enuuy

0T A Yoaq SQIVANVLS dOIAYES NOLLNIAHYd AIH NO NOISSTNINOD ALNNOD SHTIONY SO'T

Y



0¢

:apnpul Aew sa13a1e0s Yyang "adeyul| [nyssa30ns 01 SI31IE] SWOIIAO0 0 PaUSISap $91831e43s J1y12ads zi|nn pue AJauap| €T
(S94eys 2plJ 10 SUDNO] 01N Se
UoNs ‘s801n0SaJ uoljelIodsues} ‘suolidaap “5'a) aauepusiie 38e1n0Jus 03 Loddns pue IdUEISISSE UOHESIARU JUB)|D 190 7T
(s)poyiaw 1oe3u0d pauajaid s,uaijo ayl Suisn ‘uawiulodde 351y 10} (3iqissod J Jauedw0Ide PUB) JSPUILIAL 3PIACI] “TT
SIU31{D MaU §309dS3) PUB SIWOI[DM 1BY] JUSWUOIIAUS AJPUBLI-IUBI B UlejuIRA 0T
(sanoy papuaixa ‘syuawnuiodde Ajsonud Jo Aep-awes “8'a) ajqissod ,._m>m:msi.mc_.__:vm:um JUBILUDAUOI 13O ‘6
(Jeusaixa 40 asnoy-ul} 1apinoad 4344 Jo thmsz ..._mt..._ B335 0) mpcmEE_oan_m a|npayasdiay '8
" : . S3IIAIRS BullelS
01 510}}{|IDB) PUB SIDl1IR( PUE S3DIAIAS d3.d Ul 33e3us 0] mmmc_wmm., s3ual| wﬁ ssasse ‘d34d mtho._n_ Auade anoA y|
101e8IABN d3.d B 01 yui o3 m_n_m j0u e o.ts B:m__u 8 adue)sisse Q:.Bo__& apIACId
ﬁ_mE 10} ummc aleIpawwl sy}
pue ‘d34d Ul 3sa193Ul Passaldxa ue yitm S1ual]d 0] SADIAIAS wmmv_c__ vmummqm‘_ \Emmmmum: 31 ‘pue ‘anioe ‘a1eIpAWILI BPIADI
(sAep ssauisnq g 40) sInoy £z UiRM (|BUISIXD JO Bsnoy-ul) 101eTIneN d34d m 01 mu.:m__u,maummm: -AJH AS1-y81y |e 193uu0)
d3d 10 d3.d 1noge asow mc:tmm_ ur pagsaJaul ale Aayr Scm__u SAREFBU-AIH 3SHU-UBIY |18 dsy
AlH jo uopisinboe ay) Em?m:n_ 8 mco;cmtﬂc_ _mu__quo_n Jo ﬂcm:mp 241 INOQE SJUBN|D WIOU|
ssaooud a8eyul| pue [el1s)as 3yl SWUIRNo ‘dlsd
apiaoad op 1ey) sawura/salouase Ym m:OS_\m_oUouoa U21IUM ac_w>mn #.:E A3y} ‘s321A135 d34d apinoad Jou op sapuade i T
w_u:_uc_ mmu_?_mm uonuaaald jedipawoly 0] agexul| 104 spiepuels sy

oo~

oo

‘Ajioud
e uayo s| (d3d pue d3ad o ; suonRuaAIIU| _mu_nmEo_n_ ou wmmxc__ ‘SCLS PUB AlH 10} P2153] UJ3Q AJJUDD3J dABY OYM S|ENPIAIPUI
aAIESau-AIH ¥SU-YSIy Jo4 "wnnuruo) AlH m>_m:mr_mEEou,m£ 40 Juu0dwod |B2IUI B SI S32IAIRS uonuaaldld 03 agdeyur

"UMo L_mﬁ UO S3DIAIIS SSIDIB PUEB UI-Y|BM 0 JO PUE 13}3J-}|9S 0} SIUID
MO||B p|NoYs s319uaSe ‘Uoseas Siyl 104 m_n__mmon ISUUEW SNOTIPSaXa 150U 3T Ul spaau asoy) ssaippe 03 saoiss ajetdoadde
0] P23179UU0D 3q P|NoYs A3y} ‘ss300.d SUIUSIIDS JO/PUB JUBWISSISSE BY] BIA PAYIIUSPI 31e SIUIID ANESBU-A|H JO SPIIU B 3JUQ

S3JIAYIS NOIINIATYd TYIIJINO0IG OL IDOVANI

{4Y9H ATH A0 S LV ATd0dd M0 SANIDOVA QAANTWNNOITYE OL JINIT LIASNI}

01 alpiq S@AVANVYLS dMAYIS NOLINHATYd AIH NO NOISSININCD ALNNOD SHTIDNY SO'1 :

&



1€

"Jua||2 Jejnoilied

Uyoea Jo paau ay) uodn spuadap pazi}iJoud aJe SIIIAIBS 353YY MOH "$3IAI3S A1|R1D3dS |RUISIXS 03 PaJIa)al ale SJUa|p 1By} 9NSUD
01 pa3u siapiaoud ‘9|qISea) 10U S1S1Y J| “931SU0 SIAIIS Ajjerdads apiaoid o) aALIS-pEnoys sapuade ‘ajqissod 1ansusym (219
juawAodwa ‘Sujsnoy 0} paiejaJ spaau "8'3) spaau |e1aos Jo/pue (aied Atewnd /3-3) m_ummc,_.,mu_mmrc $SBIPPE 1Byl $32IAIBS AJje1dads
‘5921495 UonUBARI JO Jaguinu Aue Jo Pa3aU Ul 3 ABW SIU3I|D 'SSDI0.4d JUSISSISSE S} BIA PAUIEIHO UOIIBULIOUY UO paseq

‘Juawiuiodde 3541 41943 01 way) SulAuedwodde Jo/pue Jualfd wf___f._i ycmE.H:_oaam oy} mc__l.umr._um apn|oul Aew sty] AsuaBe

10 J3pIA0ad 201A13S B UM 1IBIU0D SxBW U312 Y1 Suid|ay Ag S9I1A138 w:_mmmuom o1 wB_tmn SSRIPPES|BIIDJ2. SANIE ‘A[3SI9AUC)
"1283U02 31B131Ul 03 W3y} 01 dn 1 SulAed| pue Jaqunu mco;a e way) m:_>_m 10 pue 33JA19s B 1n0ge JuSI|d € Ful|[51 Se paulap

1a11e| 3y ) "Sj0LI3]a1 JAISSOA UBL] I3YIRd {01331 3A1OD U0 m:uouF S0IAIDS ,mu_vaoE coc 0} mucm__u m:_tEE 0} paile|ad spJepuels

104 m_nmac:ouum PIay aq cmu&ucwmm :m __,m 3.e §}0.143{24 SSWUILO ‘BIIAIDS papaau B

0} 26pyuyf s1 |eOS a12WIIN BY] B[IYM ‘UOSEd: SIY1 1o ‘suoliedldwl _mmm_ Jo m_n_o;amcmb m‘_m& ays }1 os Sulop 3jgeIoyLOD |93 J0u Aew
1nq ‘@4 Alewad Jepngal s590€ 03 JUBM ABL UBWIOM JapUDSSUBI} nEcmEsuo_uc: ue m_ameo 104 "Way3} ss300e 03 J|ge J0 Juj|im
9( 10U AW S2IIAIBS JO PI3U UL SIUIID SE:ou mm_mmc& mc._ Sosmso.__.: 151X SaIAIBS Pale|al uonuanald AlH snodawnu ySnoyyy

"mm_u_>.mm_m ZO_”_.Zm>m_mn_ TVIIAINOIF-NON OL SIOVINI ANV STvHY3Id3Y

(swesSoud aouelsisse Aed-0d pue uoiedlpawt-d3id “8'3) sweigoud J1J129ds-UoIUIAIRIUI PUB ‘UoizESIABU JUBID
pue yusawaseuew ased ‘sio}eSiABu dueINSUl E_m.m:,& mmmx:__,.mc_u:_uc_ ‘S19U3Q 19410 PUE IDUBRINSUL Y}[ESY YHM ISISSY "GT
$32.n0s 10129s-21jgnd Jo -33eaLd ;m:o;f d34d 10} duelsisse [elUBUY UIRIGO 0} MOY UO 30UBISISSE pU aoueping 1940 'vT
7 uonedineu d3id A

gu1[a5Uno uoIIUBAIRIUI SISLID Suipiroty
2Jed paullojul-ewnel] Supiacid
Buijasunod jeuoneAnow

SU0ISSas Juawadeurw ased ajdRN

SSNSN S

$32)AJ3S §5320E 0] Juawiueduwiodde Jual|)
SUOIJUAIBIUI [EIIPAWIOI] PuE Suisal A|H Sunesol-0) »
0€I A yoiq SAQAVANVY.LS dOIAYAS NOLLNAAHYd ATH NO NOISSTANINOD ALNNQOD STIONY SOT



%4

1BY) S3UII0Y 3DMAPE |euoissajoud pue ‘saiauale auldIpawa|a) ‘sajoudde ‘s1apiaoad JO S3LI02I3.1IP AULUO 3|OBjIBAR SMBIA 9T
$101eSIABU 9IUBINSUL Y1|BSY 0} S|E113431 3AII0R BUlpnjoul ‘S3142uaq JaY10 puB 3duUBINSUl Y}[eay yim aduelsisse Suliayo ‘ST
weay uopuandid JualsISuod e ylim diysuoliejal e Butuielutely p

(uopieSiAeU |BD1LIDA 1) JUBIJD YOBa 1o JojeSiARU BUO m:_:m_mmms__wu_tumam ‘daueysisse uonediney A

‘BUI[aSUNOI UOJIUSAIIUL SISLIY)

,. 34B3 PaLLOJUI-BUWINEL ]
mc__mmc:S [BUOIIRAIION

m:o_mmmm u.cmemwcmE ased 2|diny

T T T Y

mmu_Emm :o_Em>mE pue mc;mB >=._ w:;muo_ o) A

f, - -

:apnpau)
Aew s3a13a31e135 Yong ‘98eyuy| |NySS30NS 0 Sivlieq wEou‘_w>o 01 um:m_mmv mw_mmumbm u_tuwam wc_N___u: pue 3uiAjjuapt €1

. (sa1eys apui 10 SUDHOY 0IIRIN Se YIns
‘s@24n0saJ uolleriodsuel) ‘suondalip “g'a) aduepusle mmm..:oucw 031 1Joddns pue sauejsisse uonesiaeu Jul1|2 BuliayQ "TT
poYy1aLW 19B3U0D paLayaid $,U3I|2 ay) Suisn’ p,cwEE_onEmpm___u, 1o} siapuiwas Suiptactd "IT
SIU3I2 M3U mU,unmw._ pue mmE.ou.wB 1BY1 JUBWIUCIIAUR Ajpustiy-1ua1|d e Buluiejuleln 0T
(sinoy papusixa ‘syusawiutodde 3:0_3 10 >mu -awes 3-3) w_g_wmoa JaAzuaym SulNPayIs JU3IUAU0D SULIDHO
a|qissod | uaym “USIA 1511} DY) 01 DIUBISISSE Uone odsuel] SulpiAcld '8

Atoaamm |e120s pue _mco_u_bsc EmE>o_n_Em ‘Buisnoy "8°3) sad1a1as Ale|jpue
pue |eposoyaisd Jayro pue mconcm?_muc_ |esolARYD] ﬁmu_me 3sn 37UBISNS.‘SAIAISS UY}jeay |eluawi 03 SuLuagal AlpAIdY 7
EmEE_onam 321AJ3S pale|al-uonuaaad 15411 SUl S|npayds Suid|aH
$3921/UBS UoIUAADLd 0} pUIj UG
10U DABY OYMm SJUDI|I O DIUBISISSE Q:-.so__E 3uipinoud pue ?mmmv_:__ 3IB4] "9°1) S3IIAIIS |BIIDJDI JO SDWOIINO Sunpdes]
: $921A195 3UISS903€ 0] SJalLIeq pue siolel|oe) a|qissod Bu|ssassy
13apinoad aued Alewnd 1o mEQ._ {E3Ipawl e 01-aJed Je[nFaJ SuISSIIIE J0U JIB OYM SIUDII ULl A[PAIY
10]3suUno? s)yaUaq e.0} Wy Suliayal Aq adueInsul Yyijeay ul Sut)joua yum syusld Suisissy
R SIIIAIDS UoNuaAaLd ajeudosdde o] aFeyult aunsua 0] sapuade

921A435 |I20S pue staplaold aued EmE_L_n__‘_ucm.cm_Eng alS/AIH 48410 yum SO /s|od0r04d usniim Buidoaasg T

:apN{OUI SITIAIIS UOIU3ADID [EIIPSWIOIG-UOU 0} SIUBII SULLIBIBI A]9AIOR J0) SPIEPUR]S 3y

@

t.)

~Nood oo W

O°€I aypag S@IVANVLS HIOIAYES NOIINIATId AIH NO NOISSINWOD ALNNOD SATHONY SO7T



134

ssaupea.-gol pue EmEEBanm u_Eo:oum 0} P3[4 SAJIAIIS IPN|IU] "GZ
(212 ‘yye1s |edIpaW-uoU 4oy a8en3ue| ute|d) [3A3] e3S aY3 10} Sm:n_oaam si 1eyl aden3ue| yum

‘Suipiaoad sy AouaSe ay3 $921AI95 UoIURARId Y] J340 03 10JWI0I puedSpamouy Sulpiedad yers >ucmmm S5asse A|2ulnoy b
5J03}E}I|12B) PUE SIBLLIE(] PUR ‘UOIIIRJSIES JUBI[D Ammu_Emm >u_m_umn_m paule1qo oEs suosiad paliajal

J0 uojjiodoud “8-3) saifalens Juawanoidw) Ajjenb wiojul 0] SIS >u_m_umam ._ou_ Sleddajal Jo >u__m:u 3] JOUNUOW €T

s|e.lajaJ yanouy3 10 ansuo paplaoid $321A435 Aljedads mn:umwv Jeyl s|eualew _m:m_>o_v:m Jo und wnsoa Ajpuninoy ‘gz
 spaau xm_QES 3ABY OYM AIH 104 51t

1€ 10 yum Suiay| suosiad Joj UoI1BUIPI00I 32IALSS 3PIACId oy Jjels k_mfo 10- E_._E.m_w.mm co;mmsmg “S1a8euRWw I5ED 38e8u3 ‘17

(43p|o pue mﬁ pa3e _.::o> wouy Ewwcouv m::mB AL1S/AIH Jojjuasuod Jouly o

S $91A138 B_m_uwam pasau oym suosiad 10§ Suneaonpy

:o_uchouE_ _mcoﬂma umﬁm__oU Jo >u__m_ucmtc:8 Sujuieyuey

.sainpaosoud |e119434 AdusBe-eiju) pue -133u)

{sniejs soueInNsul pue ‘uo1elo| mmm:mcm_ 8 wv S211514910e1RYD |eunsiad 0] 5321A49s Jo Suloie]

Alunwiwod ay3 anIas oym siapinoad 3o1a1as Alenads duihjnuap)

Spasu 51u3|2 J19Y] Jo m:_u:mum_mvc: SEXNEL ) wcSEa ued Jey) -212 ‘asn 2aueIsgns ‘Bupidiyyery Xas Se Yyans sanss|

c 0 o0 ¢ 0 0

AduaBe ayl wiyum saniqiIsuodsal pue s3j04 Jeis o

mu_n_B m:_ao__ou_ Y3 Ut stap1aodd 221a3s AYeRads Aue pue Jels uiel) 0z
ss3004d jennaulfagdenul a2yl
Bulanp paBueudxa uoew.oul Lijeay n:m _mco.tma jo 3__9“:%;:8 ay) pJengajes o3 saunpasold pue sadjod YsigeIsy ‘6T
uoj3oejsIIes pue uchadwod
|edla)2d jo Supjdel] 3yl pue ‘sjeaisiat mc_v_mc._ mwmmu_c__ Buipiaoad 104 sanyjigisuodsas Asuade pue jeis ‘sjuswaduelle
JeldUBULS BUYBP IBY] SJUIWRRJIZE JBYL0 10 ‘S1IBIIU0D ‘Bulpuelsiapun JO EpUeIOWaW ‘5|030104d UM dojaAaq “8T
, ~ seaue PRAIISIIPUN Ul JAI| OYM JO PIAINSULIIPUN JO PAINSUILN dle
oym suosaad Ajje1nadsa ‘AlH YHMm suosiad 10} 5321A19s Al|e129ds 1340 Jey) sHI0MmI3U Japlaoad ul e1ednued pue dojeaaq LT

-a1endosdde Ajjeanyna as1miay10 pue Suiwye-suel) pue -Aeg a1e $32.n0SaJ 3saY) 18Y] 24nsuT "Sa31AI9s Aje1dads a0
0°€I A yoiq SMAVANYLS HOIAYYIS NOLLNIATYd AIH NO NOISSINNOD ALNNROD SITHONY 8071



1 {4

SE3se Sumo|jo) ayy Ui
SuIpuB}SIAPUN 104 XI3YI pUe ‘UBWISAL B3 INOGE UOIELLIOUI 3PIAC.d P3QqLIdSaId Se SUO[EIIPBW d31d ) 01 SIUAND 3SIAPY 9
$92.1n0s 101295-01pqnd 10 -21ea1ad Yy3noiy2 4344 L0} mucEm_mmm _m_ucmcc UIBJUIBW O] MOY UO 2DIAPE IBHYO 'S
Amm:mm_ [ean1anals pue ‘(e1zosoydAsd
‘lerpueuy) ‘Alpiqlowos “8§9) aauataype Jiedwi Aew jey) si03oey) mmwhuum 0} S30JAIIS 4O} S|LAID421 W 10 3PIACId Y
3SU
ALS/AIH 95B2.0U| 1BYL SANSS| YI|BIY PUR S3NSS] diysuolie|a. m:_mmm._num mc_v:_uc_ ‘suondo co:cm>m._n_ 13Y10 0] BuluonIsue.)
pue {asn Sunynb 1o ‘wual-8uo| ‘Ajuelodwsa) “8'9) m“m_haoLaam uaym n_mtm mc_o_n_Sm 104 ueld e Qo_m>wu 01 JU3I[2 YUM HIOM '€
RO W mco_Em?_wu_.__ 2JuUdlaype
UOI1EIIPaW O} SIUBI|D JIRUUGI 10/PpUB ‘SIHSLISIIRIELD. vcm,mnwmc 5 Em__u ;umm 8 _um:o__ﬂ toaa:m aoualsype aplacld ‘7
did pue n_mhn_ o1 mucwhmsvm vaEm:m u_o s]iJauag -2} IN0ge SuBP Wiou| T

:apnpoul um:E,mmu_Emm :o_u_.:gm._n_, [EDIpatLOIg 0} 22URIYPY 10} SPIEPUE]S

£5331M43S Juaiaffip paau A3l

0 ¢ 53010435 paau 1abuoj ou A3yl 0@ ¢ .omm:cﬁ m_cmmz Hayy IADH mwu_?_mm :oscm>m._n_ ._ou, paau sjuald Buissasse Alaeinday
sJaLlJeq payIIusp! AWO0IIIA0 03 SJU3)|I. mc_to%:m pue: _._o_EwE._ 0} SJaLlieq pue SI01e|1oe) ssasse Ajuejng8ay

. $3I1AI9S uoljuaaasd Jo sjiyouad ayl Buiniojulay

~3)qussod cwEs ducmu.m_mmm uojiediaeu 03 Sulusyal 10 SulRBYD

128300 JOo poylaw patajatd s3us1ja ayl Suisn ‘SHSIA ||e 10} S13pulwal Sulplacid

219 ‘spey co_ucw?.&a H AIH m:_ﬁmm Jo ewdns ‘AlH yum Suiay aydoad - AlH Suiznewsis-sqg

SHSIA dNn-mo| |04 BulINPaYIS YlIm SJus1|d Bunsissy

I N IR T IR T

_-:3pNjaUl }SNLU S3JIALSS UOIIUBAII || 0] UOIIUDIBY 10} SpIepuels
219 ‘5331A195 |R1D05-042Asd ‘SsuoIIuaAIBIUL _Eo_;m_._wn_ ‘SUOIIUIAIDIU] [BDIPaWOIY Sulpn|dul s301AIBSs JO AeLLe [N} BY] 0] Ss3008

guo8uo a1e1lj19e} 01 S30IAISS UOIIUAARId 0] mucm._mzum PUE UOJIUS1a. 51 LUNNUIIUO) AlH dAIsusyaidwo) ayl Jo Jusuodwod Ay v
S3DIAHAS NOILNIATHd 01 IDNIHIHAY ANY NOILNI1IH

0T A yoiq STUVANYV.LS I21AUIS NOLLNIFAT U AITH NO NOISSINIWOD ALNNOD STTADNY SOT



Y4

ajelidoudde Ji ‘spualy 1o ‘siaulied ‘siaguisu Ajjwe; wolg poddns 3oualaype yaas 01 suosiad adeinoougy ‘91
{2sn 8nap Jayzo pue ‘uonduisaiduou ‘uonduosald ul adueyd “3'a) asn d3.d Jiedwl I FIW 1ey3 saUBISWNIID
ajj ul a8ueyd B 10 UOIHPUOD YIEaY M3U e SUIDUIMIAX3 Uaym 4o Emm;:m\who»mm siapiaold ased pAlH Suinsuod
(uorzuayap (e8aj Jo ‘Buisnoy die.ld ‘|aaen “d'a) saunnos duidueyd :u;?..w:a._un:twpc_ uawieals Suiploae
paja|dap Aleau 4o pajejdap si Alddns fjid J) 2ye3 01 suoijoe
WGy Wouy Aeme Uaym s|id eiixa SuiAe:
siapulwal se mm_._w_v 10 ,mE._m_m hmnc_Em._..umo_vgmmxon [ind Suisn
R mc__,_m?_n J0 m_mmE se _._u:m ﬂcmsm Ajep o0} n_m_.i mc_v_ﬂ Bupjuy e
- . :apnpul mu_%m Jo sa|dwexg
‘a23ullaype Joddns 03 S33ULISWINDIN pue \mmmcm__me_u mr_umcmbm _m:us_v:_ 0} vm._o__ﬂ Bujuieay pue- ‘5{001 ‘2DIApE IBHQO ST
JUWOIIBA0 3 p|NO2 >m£ moy pue wu:Emzﬁm B mmmcm__m:u Jud231 Jnoge Suyse 'q
33ualaype 35eadu| 01 Isn p|nod Jo _uwms >__Emmm8:m 9ABY S3UBID SpoyIaw 3y} Inoge Jupyse ‘e
:3pN|oUl 3S3Y|] "SIUBWISSISSE IDUIIIYPE 3UNOJ Buinp ww:c_:cuwp duimalalalul |euojeanow Ajddy &1
Jauuew jejuswspnluou e u] wayl ssauppe .Suuo mm::mo_um__u uaym pue \mucmhm%m 0} mmmcm__mr_u JO AUNSOISIP j0Woid €T
mmcm;u mwucmumE:E_u aj. l_m_ﬁo 10-“33UBINSUl “98RI3A0D Y]EaY UdyM
Ajjernadsa ‘1oddns asuasaype wiR)-3uo| 43430 PUE BWIY B ISA0 mucm._m:_um Yy Suiliteaurew jo saua|eyd sy 29pamouay “ZT
aJualaype Jo uswi3al ¢Jud 1noge SUI3IU0D Jay1010 q&m__m.n_ m>;mmm: ‘SU013d3IUOISIW ‘UOIIBULIOJUISIW SSAIPPY ‘T T
32Uualaype payiodal
-}]as JO JUDULSSISSE 2UINol EmEm_aa:m 0} papaau :w.._>> w_n_wm& H mE:oU _:a 10 s||14a4 uondasaud 4344 8ujssasse JapIsuo) 01
1SIA YJED 1B $133)J2 9p1s a8eurw pue ssassy
13uuew _EcmEmu:Eoc e 3uIsn 1IS1A UJea 1e a3uaJaype pallodal-}|as s5assy
swiajgo.d |eipuajod ?:Emn_ 013sn d34d Sutp.iegal mmmcm__mcu J0 ‘Su132U0d ‘SUOIISaND S,1UB1D Y] SSISSE AjaUlIN0oy
Asueu8aid pue sqis _wcuo Eot way] 10910.4d 10U SB0P d34d 1BY] U Yl SuISIApY A

39Uy pe Jiedwi pjnod 1ey) B_u_xS ISNED 10 SSAUIAINIDYS BONEDIPAW d34d Jiedwi Aew jey;
syuawsddns Asejalp pue ‘joyodje ‘sEnip |euonestdl pue ‘uondudsaiduou ‘vondiunsald JaY1o Yum suoideiaiul [enuslod  p

$109)49 3pIS |elulod A
sasop Bulssiw O saJUsaNbasuoy A,

8 0T U u

™~ 0 o

s3s50p Suissiw uaym Jo
[OYO3je SUULIP USYM Op 01 1BYM PUE ‘SUO0NID1IIS3L AlelaIp ‘@jnpayds pue poylaw Suisop Suipnjul ‘uawdal ayy yjo sjleyaq A
0T " yoaq S@AVANV.LS DIAYES NOLLNIATAd ATH NO NOISSHANOCD ALNNOD SATdDNY SO1



9¢

21N111su] SAlv »2e|d

99121WILIOY $3J11JB.1d 1S9g PUB SPJEPUR)S UOISSILWIWOY) S3|33uy SO
191U37) S, udWOop\ s3|28uy so7 1se3

SSau||a\ 10} UBWOANA 32e|g

s9|28uy S0 ‘221440 101BUIPI00) SAIV

2211SN[ Y31|eaH Joj 121ua)

29171WLWOY) S3211081d 159g PUB SPJEPUR]S UOISSIWWOD) S3|38uUY SO
J91ua) Sululeld) pue uoileanpl saly eady sa|a3uy So

(sa1j1we4 pue s1U32s3|0PY +AIH) Weldo.d saljiwed a1ed-y1IN
wiea| UoIlUaAIRIU| SAIY 21412Ed Uelsy

AIsI9AIUN M3IQ S3j4ey) pue (Y1DN) saj98uy so7 eluloyije) jo Aisisaiun
99111WIWOY S32110k1d 159g PUB SPIEPURIS UOISSIWWOD) S3|R8uy SO
S92IAISS Yl|eaH P3N BV

$3|23uy so7 |eudsoH s,uaip|iyd

yuen pjesan

HdW ‘puepen Apuap
Bl21en ew|ayl

VIA ‘Jull4 853q4noN
oupR4 ellyeq

ueige4 soj4ed uyor

VAN ‘GIN ‘Suow3 maynepn
20yeuoq woj

dnl ‘?|1naQ dlwer

ZnJ) 13194

[1I2qdwe) 3||31ueq

aw ‘usppe) ydasor

14N ‘YIN ‘eisiineg osuo|y
pJojly Adeis

"SpJepuR]S 92IAI3S UOIIUAAId

ay1 Jo uawdojaA3p ay1 uo oeqpaay Suipinoid pue siamalnad 1uadxa Se SuIAIaS 10} |BNPIAIPUL SUIMO||0) 3Y] jUBY] 01 I P|NOM 3\

SLNIWNIDAITMONIDY 1VID3dS

S1U3ISI|OPY PUEB S}NPY 40} SUOIIEPUIWILLIOIDY
s8U1119S 948)-U1|BaH Ul USWOAA JuBUSald PUB ‘SIUISI|OPY ‘SYNPY 40 SullSa| AIH 40} SUOIIBPUSWILLOIDY PISIARY

9T0T ‘LT J2qWIAAON Paysi|gnd ‘|apou ssa20.d [a19AD e :sajels
paliluN 3yl JOj WNNUIIUOD UOIIUdAId AlH Alepuodas pue Atewiid pajesSajul ue spiemo],, :A19120S SQ|V |eUOIIRUIRIU| 33 JO [eusnof

L10¢

“T€ YaJey passaday ‘Ipd 0 U2 06-06-06/195S8 EIpaw/sa|iy/inejap/saiis/3io spieunmmm//:diy aping spiepuels adinias uely

0°El A ypaq

S@IAVANVY.LS dDIAYES NOLLNAATYd AITH NO NOISSININOD ALNNOD SATADNV SO'1

:pasn siuawndog Aay

Ws



LT

yifeay jeIua Jo Juawiiedaq

-3u| ‘wesSoid SniQg 1@ [OYOIY BILIOM|ED) UIBYINOS
131U3) POOMA}|OH — 1RISBURIg
39171WIWIO) S0 159G PUE SPIBPUEIS AlH UO UDISSILIWIO) S3[a8uy SO

wawiedaq s Haays 3::8 mm_um_.& $07
99]1ILILIOY) S2I117€1d 159g pUe SpJepuels AlH uo co_mm_ﬁfou_mm_mm:,q.mo._
sapEduy soq ﬁmﬁoi.oa Humccou

S mucmu “CmEumw.C. BUBZI m._...‘

21UKD JOP.IYRS-PURY ISN/OVT
99]111WWOY SIIIIBIJ 1599 PUB SPIEPURIS AfH UO co_mm_EEou mm_wmc< mo._._

weJtFold asnqy. 8nig UedlaWY Ueisy

NVAYTIN

SINUISUI HOMT

mm_mm:< s07 1aloiy sary -

33)NWWIDD S3MIeUd 1599 pue mEmucﬁm AIH uo co_mm_EEou $39)98uy SO
33LWIWIOD SIDIJIRI4 159G pue m_n:mucﬂm AH uo co_mm_EEou mm_mmc< 507
Ecmu >__EE pue pjiu __m>> s.uyor 1§

: ~. L aeisaudlg

. mm_mmc< so7 102(04d SAIV

mEm._moE UInoA — mm_mmc< 507 19lold SQiv

c.o_m,m_EEou suonejay uewny AJuno?) sajasuy soT

mm_mmc< 507 |eHdsoH s,usJpiyD

2INIASU| HOMT

9IN}IISU| Yrueasay spualy

1aquay Allunwwo)

BILLIOJI|BD UIDYINOS u:u \Eﬂmzc: JUIDIPIA JO |OOY2S X2

(v10N) Se|98uy so7 elusoy|eD Jo ANsIaAUN

swelgold 1S pue AlH Jo uoisialg

323JWLLOD S32119814 1539 PUB SPJEPUElS UOISSILUWOD) S3jasuy 507

\

LW “Buim ydasor
zanbsep suay

zonbsep opiaq|y
HdIA “QIN “ol3jeA 01ARII0
NY ‘dHDD ‘YdIN

‘HdIA ‘NSIN ‘9ssape] eylen

YdIN ‘YyHws Asy
YHLWS UOYIA
BIYDRYS MBS

B AW ‘nAY djuar

HdN ‘uosulqoy 3oy
spjouAay 131

VdIN ‘{198uey euey
013juIny [ney

MSI ‘ddIAl “1aydis|ng Sies)
“If “NIBIN sewoy

MSIA ‘SoJsw|ed exjaguy
MSW ‘BAllQ eueIQ
[|3uu0l],0 uepuaug

ddIN ‘Uos|aN efiey
uosiIow rIUOQ

BpnsieAl Nyl

ZBUIMBA] [9N3IN

SIM3T auuexoy

Qud “I8IsIy Wb}

UBpPIOr SNJ1en

awn fDmQOUm_. Uua9a|Uley
ayd ‘emeleH euiy

YSHW ‘GYd ‘uaasn [aeydiin
SOPBUEBLCL) [35S1ID)

QT A yoaq STAVANVLS HDIAYIS NOLLNZFATHd ATH NO NOISSINIWOD ALNMNOD SATIONY SO'T :

&



PS12-1201: Comprehensive HIV Prevention
Programs for Health Departments

LOS ANGELES COUNTY
END OF YEAR PROGRESS REPORT

Reporting period covers
| January 1, 2016 — December 31, 2016



Table of Contents

Agency Contact Information

Section I: Category A: HIV Prevention Programs for Health Departments
Programmatic Reporting on Required Core Components
HIV Testing
Comprehensive Prevention with Positives
Condom Distribution
Policy Initiatives
Programmatic Reporting on Recommended Components
Evidence-based Interventions for High-Risk Individuals
Social Marketing, Media, and Mobilization
Pre-exposure Prophylaxis
Non-occupational Post-exposure Prophylaxis
Syringe Services Programs
Programmatic Reporting on Required Activities
Jurisdictional HIV Prevention Planning
Capacity Building and Technical Assistance
Program Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation, and Quality Assurance

Section 1I: Category B: Expanded HIV Testing Program
Programmatic Reporting on HIV Testing in Healthcare Settings, Non-Healthcare
Settings, and Service Integration

Section III: Staffing and Management

Section IV: Resources Allocation

Section V: Certification of NHM&E data submission

Appendices

Appendix A: Resource Allocation
Appendix B: HIV Prevention and Care Planning Group



PROGRESS REPORT (Project Narrative)

Directions: Please answer the following questions for your End of Year Progress Report.

The End of Year Progress Report requires the grantee to report on progress made during
the Year 05 reporting period, January 1, 2016 — December 31, 2016. Unless otherwise
noted, responses to the questions in this guidance should accurately reflect program
activities conducted during the reporting period of January 1, 2016 — December 31, 2016.
Your report is due to CDC no later than March 31, 2017. Please email your report to the
ps12-1201@cdc.gov mailbox and your assigned PPB Project Officer with a courtesy copy to

your assigned Grants Management Specialist (GMS).

HEALTH DEPARTMENT CONTACT INFORMATION

Award Number:

5U62PS003680-5

Health Department:

County of Los Angeles, Department of Public Health, Division of HIV and STD Programs

Group Executive
Director

(DHSP)
Mailing Address: 600 S. Commonwealth Ave., 10th Floor
City: Los Angeles [ State: | CA Zip Code: | 90005
Phone Number: (213) 351-8000 Fax: (213) 387-0912
Primary and Title/Position Name Phone E-mail Address
Secondary
Contact
Information
Primary Director, DHSP Mario J. Pérez, MPH | (213) 351-8001 mjperez@ph.lacounty.gov
Secondary Chief, Office of Michael Green, PhD | (213) 351-8002 mgreen(@ph.lacounty.gov
Planning
Contact Name Phone E-mail Address Length of Term
Information for
HIV Prevention
and Care
Planning Group
Health N/A
Department
Co-Chair
Community Ricky Rosales (213) 202-2750 Ricky.rosales@lacit | 3 Years
Co-Chair y.org
Community Brad Land (213) 738-2816 BGLinc(@aol.com 3 Years
Co-Chair
HIV Planning Cheryl Barrit (213) 738-2816 cbarrit@lachiv.org

*If your jurisdiction has more than two co-chairs, please add their information in the table
(i.e., rural and urban, prevention and care, etc.).




The following questions are core questions to be used for programmatic and data
reporting, for the reporting period of January 1, 2016 — December 31, 2016.

SECTION I: CATEGORY A: Required Core HIV Prevention Program
All four required core components should be implemented during this reporting period.

HIV Testing

Comprehensive Prevention with Positives
Condom Distribution

Policy Initiatives

Please provide responses fo the following questions for the required core components for
Category A. Responses to questions should include all four required components.

1. Describe any substantial changes made to your HIV prevention program for any of the
four required core components funded under Category A during the reporting period.
Please describe the changes made for the specific the program component.

HIV Testing (Non-Healthcare Settings):

Under Category A, HIV testing is primarily taking place in non-healthcare settings. For testing in
healthcare settings, see Section II: Category B: Expanded HIV Testing Program.

For HIV testing in non-healthcare settings, there have been no substantial changes to any of
the testing program modalities (multiple morbidity, Commercial Sex Venues, other targeted

testing sites) during the reporting period (January-December 2016).

Through December 2016, Los Angeles County (LAC) is at 98% (65,636/67,000) of our projected
HIV testing goal for non-healthcare settings. This number and percent include data from the City
of Long Beach (LB) reported by the Division of HIV and STD Programs (DHSP), but provided
by the State of California. Additionally, some programs provide targeted testing through
Category A in both non-healthcare and healthcare settings. See Section VII of the report for

additional information.

As previously reported, for 2014 through 2016 we reduced our annual targets under Category A

to 67,000 HIV testing events (per year), while maintaining our goal for positivity rate.



Mobile HIV/STD Testing Unit

During this reporting period, the DHSP Mobile Testing Unit (MTU) was only operational for a
four week period and key staff were on leave. Staff were reassigned to provide testing within
partnering agencies. This included testing at youth homeless shelters and developing agreements

to test residents in City of Los Angeles low-income housing areas.

Comprehensive Prevention with Positives:

Risk Reduction Activities (RRA)

There have been no substantial changes to any of the prevention with positive programs.

Partner Services

This year proved to be a pivotal planning year for re-structuring and reprioritizing HIV/STD
Partner Services within LAC. In response to the steady increase of syphilis (including congenital
syphilis), gonorrhea (GC), and chlamydia (CT) cases in LAC over the last several years and in
light of the increasingly scarce human and financial resources available to aggressively
investigate all cases and interrupt the transmission of new infections, DHSP employed a priority-

setting process for local disease investigation efforts in 2016.

The revised Partner Services protocol de-prioritized CT and GC partner services activities and
focused on prioritized HIV and syphilis partner services. Public Health Nurses as well as Public
Health Investigators (i.e, Disease Investigation Specialists) from the Public Health Department
external to DHSP were included in this prioritization process. In addition, the changes included
but are not limited to: assigning all pregnant females with HIV to Public Health Nurses, reducing
CT and GC follow-up activities for treated cases, assigning priority syphilis cases of females of
reproductive age to Public Health Nurses, assigning high priority syphilis cases to Public Health
Investigators, PHIs co-located STD clinics (non-DHSP staff), and improving the use of HIV

Surveillance for HIV cases.

In 2016, DHSP in coordination with Community Health Services (CHS), PHI Administration,
and the Bureau of the Medical Director/Disease Control, reached consensus regarding the new

prioritization protocol and developed an implementation and training plan. The protocol changes



are slated to launch in April 2017. The changes were rooted in a data driven process based on
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC) Recommendations for Partner Services
Programs for HIV Infection, Syphilis, Gonorrhea, and Chlamydial Infection (2008} and was
further refined in consultation with the California STD Control Branch, the CDC, the University
of Washington Public Health Capacity Building Center (who serves as the CDC’s Partner
Services Capacity Building Agency) as well as public health leaders from other highly impacted

state and municipal jurisdictions.

Partner Services and STD Surveillance Data Efforts

In addition to restructuring DHSP’s Partner Services unit to better respond to the workload and
changing priorities, DHSP’s STD Surveillance unit made significant changes to re-program
LAC’s STD Surveillance database which is also utilized as the Partner Services case

management system.

Training and Technical Assistance

To implement the changes, training, presentations, and technical assistance were provided to
DPH staff, in particular Public Health Investigators and Public Health Nurses. DHSP worked
closely with the CDC capacity building assistance providers to identify training needs and
develop trainings for Public Health Nurses. Specifically, training surrounding HIV disclosure
and stigma issues were requested training topics that will be provided in early 2017. In addition,
Public Health Investigation staff participated in presentations, meetings, and conferences that

highlighted the rationale for prioritizing HIV and syphilis cases for Partner Services activities.

Use of HIV Surveillance for Partner Services and Linkage and Re-engagement to HIV Care

DHSP has begun utilizing HIV Surveillance for linkage and re-engagement activities for
individuals who are lost or not linked to HIV care via the HIV Linkage and Re-engagement
Program (LRP) activities. LRP launched in late February 2016. Preliminary data show that
referrals from providers yield better outcomes than utilizing HIV Surveillance as a referral
source. However, the HIV Surveillance system has proven to be critical in determining a client’s

true HIV care disposition, current addresses, and other useful information. The approval for the



broad use of HIV Surveillance for Partner Services activities was provided by DHSP’s HIV

Surveillance unit in late 2016. Protocols for these activities will be finalized in 2017.

Perinatal

In February 2016, Ms. Amy Danzig was identified and hired for the Medical Records Abstractor
(MRA) position. The continued operation and progress of the Enhanced Perinatal Surveillance
(EPS) are dependent on only one staff member, the Medical Records Abstractor. Working under
the direct supervision of the EPS project manager and epidemiologist, Ms. Azita Naghdi, the
MRA has been responsible for assisting the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health
Pediatric HIV/AIDS surveillance staff to report prevalent and incident cases of pediatric HIV
exposure and infection. In addition, Ms. Danzig has been assisting in the review of mother and
infant medical records and abstraction of pertinent information to complete supplemental EPS
abstraction forms at participating hospitals and clinics; maintaining multiple databases for EPS;
data entry; conducting follow-up with health care providers and laboratories to obtain missing
surveillance information; participating in CDC-sponsored conference calls; helping secure IRB
approval at the different LAC EPS sites; attending relevant trainings for HIPAA regulations; and
ensuring that surveillance practices are consistent with security and confidentiality policies and
procedures. Unfortunately, due to limited manpower in past years, timeliness of identifying and
following-up on HIV-exposed infants and subsequent abstraction of electronic medical records at
our largest perinatal HIV-specialty center, LAC+USC, remains incomplete. For the reporting
period January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016, we were able to complete only 35% of the

medical record abstractions at this facility.

In June 2016, an updated Pediatric HIV Confidential Case Report form (PCRF) and Pediatric
HIV Exposure Reporting form (PHER), with changes made to sections pertaining to laboratory
data, birth history, treatment and service referrals were approved by the CDC and distributed to

jurisdictions for data collection purposes.

During this reporting period, Ms. Naghdi was also notified of Dr. Hindo’s (PI of the EPS project
at Cedars-Sinai Medical Center) departure. This has caused a delay in the submission of the
annual IRB continuing review at this facility until a new PI has been identified. In November of

2016, Dr. Vikram Anand was hired as Dr. Hindo’s replacement. A meeting was scheduled



between him and Ms. Naghdi, where his role as the new PI for the EPS project at Cedars-Sinai
Medical Center was discussed and his duties agreed upon. Necessary modifications and

amendments are being made to the IRB before facility approval can be granted.

Condom Distribution:

No changes to report.

Policy Initiatives:

In 2016, we focused on the implementation of our Los Angeles County PrEP implementation
strategy which revolves around three goals: 1) increasing consumer awareness of PrEP, 2)
increasing provider awareness and use of PrEP, and 3) creating a safety net access system for
PrEP. We were pleased to see the passage of a California state bill that now requires HIV post-
test counseling which requires a conversation regarding PrEP; the bill provides us more traction
in requiring our funded HIV test counselors to attend a PrEP 101 training and to begin
integrating PrEP education and referrals into their testing programs. We have also been tracking
a state bill that would decriminalize the transmission of HIV that would have dramatic

implications for our work in destigmatizing HIV.

2. Describe the successes experienced with implementing your HIV prevention program for
each of the four required core components funded under Category A during the reporting
period. Please specify the program component associated with the successes.

HIV Testing (Non-healthcare settings):

Although we were not able to maintain the 1.0% FOA requirement (see Challenges section), the
testing program continued to operate successfully during the reporting period, with testing
programs experiencing high testing volume. Testing events took place during Pride events,
national testing days, and as a part of the First Ladies Healthcare Initiative which encouraged
HIV testing on church property throughout the county; mobile testing sites were constantly
assessed using mapping; HIV testing in Storefront Sites and Social Network Sites continue to
increase in volume. The number of tests conducted by the Mobile Unit program remained

constant.



Multiple Morbidity

Since 2000, DHSP has partnered with three contracted agencies — California State University
Loong Beach (CSULB), Valley Community Healthcare (previously Valley Community Clinic),
and JWCH Institute — to provide multiple morbidity testing services in all eight Service Planning
Areas (SPAs) in LAC. In late 2013, APLA Health and Wellness was added, and DHSP initiated
mobile HIV/STD testing services targeting the Second Supervisorial District (central and south
LAC). In 2015, CSULB’s Center for Behavioral Research terminated their MSM MTU program.
However, DHSP has continued to expand STD testing with HIV service providers targeting
MSM populations throughout the County.

The multiple morbidity testing services provide screening for acute and chronic hepatitis B and
C, syphilis, chlamydia, gonorrhea, and HIV all within one visit. Table A shows the number of

tests performed during this reporting period.

Table A. DHSP Multiple Morbidity Screening Program, Screening Data, January 1 —
December 30, 2016

Agency Name CT GC Syphilis HBV HCV
Tests Tests Tests Tests Tests
JWCH Institute MTU 656 656 383 0 356
Valley Community Healthcare 596 596 605 0 576
AIDS Project Los Angeles 1,111 1,119 1,056 0 103
DHSP-operated MTU 63 66 58 X X
Total | 2,426 2,437 2,102 0 1,035

DHSP continued to convene HTS Program Coordinator meetings. Topics covered at the three

meetings held during the reporting period (March 18™, June 14™ and October 27" included a

presentation on DHSP’s Linkage and Re-engagement Program, testing events, PrEP training,

viewing/presentation of AltaMed Health Services telenovela “Sin Verguenza”, STD update, and

provided programmatic and administrative updates and information such as 2015 HIV Data

Quality Assurance, Competency Assessments, Counselor Database, and Distribution of

Incentives. DHSP staff also presented HIV testing data and reviewed data submission deadlines.




DHSP Mobile HIV/STD Testing Unit

Despite not having a mobile testing unit to conduct testing activities, DHSP’s MTU team
explored other community partnerships to increase visibility and testing opportunities via
established sites and continued to target high-risk populations. DHSP counselors began
providing comprehensive STD screening and testing including HIV, syphilis, gonorrhea and
chlamydia at Transitional Age Youth (TAY) centers and shelters. As there were no existing
HIV/STD services for these high-risk homeless youth, DHSP staff were filling a critical need.
DHSP is currently providing HIV/STD testing services in six locations serving the homeless,
veteran and TAY populations in South LA, populations that experience a disproportionately high
burden of disease. Additionally, DHSP works closely with our partners to respond to requests to
be a visible presence in the community. This included holding a World AIDS Day Testing Event
at a Community Education Center. DHSP is also working with the City of Los Angeles to
establish a memorandum of understanding (MOU) to provide testing services in low-income

housing projects.

Finally, a comprehensive set of staff development trainings was implemented with all MTU
staff, thereby increasing staff competency around the needs of high-risk youth and transgender
populations. Trainings included various topics, such as bio-medical prevention options (PrEP

and PEP) and identification and awareness of commercially sexually exploited children (CSEC).

Comprehensive Prevention with Positives:

RRA

These programs continued to see participants in the various interventions included in the
prevention with positives programs. Individual-level interventions were the most common form
of contact with the target population, However, groups continue to be well attended and were a
source of support for participants in relation to medication adherence, enroliment and/or
retention in care and disclosure of HIV status to partners. Staff of these programs have also
participated in trainings on PrEP and PEP and have begun to include these discussions in the
group curricula and during individual counseling sessions. During the second half of the
reporting period, programs dedicated significant discussion time related to the continuation of

health care coverage and the options clients have in LAC,

10



Partner Services
Support from DPH leadership to refine and enhance Partner Services priorities was crucial. In

addition, DHSP began a recruitment fair to hire 10 Public Health Investigation Trainees.

Perinatal

During this report period, LAC applied for IRB continuations and received approval letters from
several pediatric HIV-specialty hospitals, including UCLA, Kaiser-Bellflower, LAC+USC,
Miller Children’s Hospital Long Beach (LBMMC), Harbor-UCLA, and Children’s Hospital Los
Angeles (CHLA) to identify and report infants born to HIV-positive women at these LAC
facilities. From January to December 2016, 95 HIV-exposed infants were reported to DHSP and

identified as having received care and treatment in LAC. Of this group, 76 were born in 2016.

Establishing good working relationships and conducting data abstractions at multiple medical
facilities in one of the geographically largest counties in the United States require an extensive
amount of time, coordination, and manpower. To evaluate the progress toward maximal
reduction of perinatal HIV transmission in LAC, pediatric surveillance staff continue to routinely
visit all IRB-approved, pediatric HIV-care facilities to identify and report all infants born to
HIV-infected mothers in 2016. With the hiring of a new MRA and after some training and
practice, Ms. Danzig has successfully conducted all 70 medical record reviews and abstractions
for the backlog of cases from all EPS sites for the 2015 birth cohort year. In addition, 68%
(52/76) of all medical record abstractions for the 2016 birth cohort year have also been
completed. With major remodeling taking place at the LAC+USC Medical Records Department
in 2016, Ms. Danzig has recently been granted access to the LAC+USC Maternal, Child &
Adolescent Clinic to conduct electronic medical records reviews, therefore, abstractions at
LACHUSC will soon be back up to speed and caught up. The efficiency and timeliness of
reporting new perinatally-exposed cases, born during the second half of 2016, have also

increased.
Most recently in December 2016, our Data and Surveillance Workgroup for the CDC-sponsored

Elimination of Mother to Child HIV transmission (EMCT) Stakeholders’ group, received
notification from Public Health Reports that their manuscript entitled, Perinatal HIV Exposure

11



Surveillance and Reporting in the United States in 2014, was finally published. This long and
challenging manuscript was developed in response to the findings from a survey targeting all
states and jurisdictions in the U.S. to determine how many sites collect data on perinatal HIV
exposures, describe perinatal HIV exposure surveillance activities, assess facilitating factors,
technical assistance needs and resources, and how barriers (if any) were overcome to start or
enhance state perinatal HIV exposure surveillance. As Co-Chair of the Data and Surveillance
Workgroup, Ms. Naghdi helped present the final data results from the survey via a CSTE-
sponsored webinar in February 2016. In July 2016, Ms. Naghdi also attended the annual EMCT
Stakeholders group meeting in Washington D.C. During the annual meeting, ongoing work on
the future of perinatal HIV prevention activities was discussed, including HIV diagnostics,
engaging partner and determining HIV status in the perinatal setting, and perinatal HIV
surveillance coordination and collaboration across programs to support the framework for
elimination. Additionally, another important action item the group has been pursuing deals with
the development of a technical guidance protocol for birth registry matches with vital statistics.
The goal is for jurisdictions to be able to identify all babies born to HIV-positive mothers and,
therefore, be able to obtain a true perinatal transmission rate. A more complete ascertainment of
all HIV-exposed infants would allow for a more accurate “picture” of perinatal HIV exposure

and transmission in each jurisdiction.

Condom Distribution:

We were able to successfully coordinate condom and PrEP outreach at many LGBT pride events,
as well as other outreach events in order to enhance the message that there are many ways
individuals can protect themselves from HIV. For Calendar Year (CY) 2016, a total of 4,163,950

condoms were distributed.

Policy Initiatives:

We have been able to implement a standardized process by which community medical providers
and public health staff can access needed information from HIV surveillance for purposes of
continuity of care, as allowed under CA state law (as of 2011). We also implemented our PrEP

implementation plan as described above.

12



3. Describe the challenges experienced with implementing your HIV prevention program
for each of the four required core components funded under Category A during the
reporting period. Please specify the program component associated with the challenges.
What plans or actions have been taken to address the challenges?

HIV Testing (Non-Healthcare Settings):

For the reporting year 2016, LAC conducted a total of 65,636 HIV test events primarily within
non-healthcare settings, with a positivity rate of 0.77% (508/65,636) for newly diagnosed HIV-

positive individuals. This positivity rate is below the FOA requirement of 1.0%.

In response to the above, our initial findings show that the decrease appears to be due to fewer
new positives being identified through the Mobile Testing Unit program. One agency/program
that historically identified a large number of new HIV cases had their MTU out of commission
for six months. Another agency/program which contributed about 60% of the testing volume
among MTU and increased its testing volume by 33% in 2016 compared to 2015, saw a decrease
in the positivity rates among MTU sites which previously had higher positivity rates. In 2016
this program only had 2 sites that had a new positivity rate >= 1.0%. However in 2015, this same
agency/program had 15 sites with a new positivity rate of >=1.0%. The same pattern can be seen

in several of the high volume mobile testing programs.

In addition, for agencies that conducted testing programs in both non-healthcare and healthcare
settings, very few of the sites where testing was provided in a healthcare setting had a newly
diagnosed positivity rate >= 1%. In 2016, there were only a few exceptions where targeted
testing in healthcare sites was successful. Three of the nineteen programs had a newly diagnosed

positivity rate averaging >=1.0%

DHSP will continue to investigate why the new positivity rate did not reach the FOA
requirement. For the agency/program whose MTU was out of commission, the MTU is back in

full operation.

13



Linkage to Care

There was a slight decrease in the successful linkage to medical care from storefront (77%) and
social network (72%) sites within 90 days of the positive HIV test. During the first part of the
year, a couple of the MTU programs experienced increased linkage to care rates, but this success
did not translate to all of the MTU programs; MTUs in total achieved a 64% linkage to care of
new HIV-positive testers identified. The challenge to achieving a linkage to care of 85% for all
programs, and particularly for MTU programs, is the inability to transport clients who test HIV-
positive to clinics outside of the clinic business hours. This increases the probability of losing
newly diagnosed clients who test at night or during the weekend. This is the same barrier that the
commercial sex venue (CSV) program faces, given that the testing hours for that program are

late night and weekends.

DHSP Mobile HIV/STD Testing Unit

DHSP experienced significant set-backs with the operation of our mobile testing unit. The van
required substantial repairs, which proved to be cost prohibitive. Ultimately, the decision was
made to retire the vehicle rather than supporting ongoing maintenance to keep it functioning and
on the road. In the interim, DHSP plans to collaborate with another internal DHSP team that has
recently purchased a new MTU. This will allow DHSP to respond as appropriate to community
requests, assess overall need and burden of disease among populations being tested, and provide
the needed HIV/STD services.

Since the DHSP MTU was not operational, the team began providing storefront testing services
in South Los Angeles. DHSP explored a new collaboration with the City of Los Angeles’ gang
reduction program that was setting up offices inside low income housing areas. This was
challenging, as the gang reduction staff were new to their work, had trouble integrating our
services, and provided no referrals or promotion of our services to the program participants.
Safety concerns also hindered the program. Other options on how to improve this relationship

are being considered.

14



Comprehensive Prevention with Positives:

RRA

Through their efforts later in the year, the Prevention with Positives programs reported a slight
increase in the ability to recruit clients to their program who have been recently diagnosed and/or
are out of care, The work that these programs conducted in partnering with HIV testing programs
and conducting outreach seems to have had some benefit. Peer support continues to be a key
component of these programs, as this has proven to be helpful in assisting newly diagnosed
clients enter a new system of care that can be confusing and rigid. Data entry into the Evaluation-
Web system by providers continues to be a challenge, because they do not have dedicated data-

entry staff, thus delaying the entry of these service data into the system.

Partner Services

Partner Services activities are challenged by the volume of HIV and STD priority cases and

separate HIV and STD Surveillance systems.

Perinatal

Unfortunately at this time, because there is still no mandated perinatal HIV-exposure reporting in
the State of California, the capacity to monitor the epidemic locally remains challenging.
Perinatal HIV-exposure reporting is essential to accurately calculate perinatal transmission rates,
in order to monitor progress toward elimination of perinatal HIV transmission and to allocate
appropriate resources. Mandated perinatal-exposure reporting in California is critical to support
the National HIV/AIDS Strategy (NHAS) goal to reduce incidence of new HIV infections among
infants by 25%. Unfortunately, without a reliable denominator or plans to suggest that the
California Department of Public Health will conduct another Survey of Childbearing Women
(SCBW) in the near future, it is difficult to assess our surveillance system for completeness of
case ascertainment for the 2016 diagnosis year. Overall, since the EPS project first began in
1999, the total number and percentage of HIV-exposed and infected children reported to EPS
have declined around 25% from 100 HIV-exposed cases reported at the initiation of the project
to only 76 cases in 2016. We need to further investigate whether this decline is a result of
medical advances in HIV testing and treatment and/or due to limited access to conduct perinatal

HIV-exposure reporting in LAC.

15



Due to obstacles facing staff when conducting perinatal HIV surveillance, a position statement
on perinatal exposure reporting in California has been written advocating for changes to the state
HIV reporting regulations. These efforts will include contacting state legislators to sponsor a bill
or an amendment to the existing HIV reporting regulation, in collaboration with DHSP’s Chief
of Staff and Director of Government Relations. However, due to continued staffing shortages
and other priorities facing DHSP, our efforts have been stalled. The current Medical Director for
DHSP, Dr. Sonali Kulkarni, will be advocating for changes to the California HIV reporting
regulation. Additionally, Ms. Naghdi has also been trying to contact the California State Office
of AIDS Surveillance Chief to discuss Section IX of the new Adult HIV Case Repott form
(ACRF) and its relevance to perinatal exposure reporting. Since the ACRF already asks for the
name of the HIV-positive mother’s child, their date of birth and hospital of birth, it appears as if
perinatal HIV exposure reporting may be permitted. We would like to seek clarification with
regards to laws permitting perinatal HIV exposure reporting in California. Unfortunately, due to
high staff turnover, it has been difficult to find the right person to discuss these questions with at
the California Office of AIDS. The current IRBs are in place at only seven facilities and,
therefore, allow DHSP to capture only a subset of the perinatally-exposed pediatric population in
LAC. In order to provide timely identification and follow-up of HIV-positive mothers and their
exposed infants, and ensure linkage to pediatric HIV specialists for diagnostic testing and
monitoring of the infant’s health status, it is critical to identify a// HIV-infected mothers who
give birth each year in LAC. The CDC, the CSTE, and the American Academy of Pediatrics
(AAP) have all recommended universal HIV perinatal exposure reporting to monitor the number
of women living with HIV giving birth each year, the number of HIV-exposed children, as well
as the programs to prevent perinatal transmission. In addition, in order to calculate a true
perinatal transmission rate for HIV, it is necessary for exposure reporting to be population based
and not just facility based. Finally, CDC allocation for future funding of perinatal HIV exposure
surveillance activity will rely on jurisdictions having the necessary statutes and regulations in

place to perform perinatal exposure reporting activities.

Lastly, because of its size and large concentration of high-risk women, LAC has a sizeable
number of HIV-infected women of childbearing age. With more than 150,000 births annually,
30% of all births in California, LAC expects more than 100 HIV-infected women to give birth

each year. Our goal is that none of these infants become infected. During this report period, 76

16



HIV-exposed infants born in LAC were identified and zero perinatal HIV transmissions reported.
However in 2015, LAC reported 70 HIV-exposed infants and 2 perinatal transmissions,
representing a 3% transmission rate. These moms, with perinatal HIV transmission, struggled
with mental health and/or substance issues and engaged in unsafe sexual practices. More
prevention activities need to target how mental health and substance abuse issues affect women
living with HIV and the impact on perinatal HIV transmissions. As of December 30, 2016,
among 5,863 women living with HIV/AIDS in LAC, 2,312 (39%) were of childbearing age (15-
44 years). This underscores the need for strategies to ensure that all HIV-infected females have
access to adequate prenatal care, timely HIV counseling and voluntary testing, and access to

HIV-related care and services.

Condom Distribution:

No significant challenges.

Policy Initiatives:

No significant challenges.

HIV Testing and Comprehensive Prevention with Positives
Note: Quantitative information for HIV testing for Category A in healthcare and non-healthcare

settings, as well as aggregate testing data, will be reviewed via the PS12-1201 Data Tables that
will be auto-populated with NHM&E data submitted via EvaluationWeb®. Quantitative
aggregate data on Interventions and Services for HIV-Positive Individuals, submitted via
EvaluationWeb®, will also be included in the PS12-1201 Data Tables. Please review these tables
(template) for reference.
Partner Services

1. Provide information on Partner Services (PS) for this reporting period. See Table 1

below.

17



Table 1. Newly Diagnosed, Confirmed HIV-positive Index Patients'
New HIV Newly Newly Newly Partners | Partners
Cases Diagnosed | Diagnosed | Diagnosed | Named® | Named per
Reported to Index Index Index Newly
HIV Patients Patients Patients Diagnosed
Surveillance | Reported to | Eligible | Interviewed’ Index
Program’ Partner for n (%) Patient
Services Partner Interviewed’
Program®*> | Services
Interview®
2,291 1,971 1,965 | 1,397 71.09% | 431 0.31

! This table includes data for all partner services, regardless of funding source, not
just those funded under PS12-1201.

2 This is the number of new HIV case reports received by the health department
surveillance program during the reporting period, based on date of report, rather
than date of diagnosis.

3 This is the number of newly diagnosed confirmed HIV-positive index patients
reported to the health department partner services program during the reporting
period, from any source.

4 New diagnosis status verified, at minimum, by cross-check with the health
department surveillance system. Supplementary methods of identifying previous
diagnosis, such as review of laboratory reports, medical records, or other data
sources (e.g., partner services database, evidence of previous treatment for HIV),
or patient interview, may also have been used. If any data source, including patient
self-report, indicates previous diagnosis. diagnosis is not new.

3 Does not include index patients classified as newly diagnosed based only on 1)
self-report of having had no previous test or having had a previous negative test or
2) review of other data sources (e.g., medical records, partner services database,
treatment database).

5 This is the number of newly diagnosed confirmed HIV-positive index patients
reported to the health department partner services program during the reporting
period (Column B), excluding those who are out of jurisdiction or deceased.

7 This is the number of newly diagnosed confirmed HIV-positive index patients
reported to the health department partner services program during the reporting
period and eligible for partner services interview (Column C), who were
interviewed for partner services by the health department or a person trained and
authorized by the health department to conduct partner services interviews.

8 This is the total number of partners named for whom the information provided
by the index patient or otherwise available should be sufficient to allow the partner
to be identified and notified by health department partner services workers.

? This is the average number of partners named by the newly diagnosed index
patients who were interviewed.

Calculations:
E =(D/C) x 100
G=F/D

Condom Distribution
1. Provide the total number of condoms distributed overall (to HIV-positive individuals and
high-risk HIV-negative individuals) during the reporting period.

Total number of condoms distributed overall: 4,163,950

18



Policy Initiatives

1. What policy initiatives did you focus on during the reporting period? Please indicate the
type/level of intended impact for each policy initiative (e.g., change on a local level, health
department level, or statewide/legislative level) as well as the stage of the policy process
(e.g., identification, development, implementation, evaluation). Please also indicate if any are
new policy initiatives. If no policy initiative was focused on during the reporting period,
please explain.

The focus of our policy efforts in 2016 revolved around biomedical prevention, specifically the
implementation of our local LAC PrEP strategy, which revolves around three goals: increasing
consumer awareness of PrEP, 2) increasing provider awareness and use of PtEP, and 3) creating
a safety net access system for PrEP. We successfully developed and rolled out a PrEP social
marketing campaign, trained numerous medical providers through CMEs and technical
assistance, and contracted with 9 agencies with 13 clinics to provide PrEP to low income
individuals at elevated risk of HIV. This will greatly expand the number of individuals who
receive comprehensive prevention education and HIV testing on a regular basis, in addition to
PrEP or PEP.

2. Please indicate if the following occurred during this reporting period:

Did you make any updates to the current HIV Outbreak Response Plan? [ Yes No

Did you identify any emerging HIV infections in populations/areas within the jurisdiction, as
a result of having an HIV outbreak response plan in place? [] Yes No

If yes, please provide a brief update.

Did you identify any emerging HIV infections in populations/areas within the jurisdiction, as
a result of participating in molecular HIV surveillance? [ Yes [X No
If yes, please provide a brief update on any follow-up prevention activities (e.g., Partner
Services) to support this activity.
We have utilized our linkage and reengagement staff (similar to Partner Services staff) to link
newly diagnosed cases and virally unsuppressed cases to care for two separate transmission
networks identified by CDC’s molecular surveillance team. However, we have not identified any
emerging HIV infections as a result of this activity, and we did not do aggressive partner
elicitation and notification because of the time delay. Our hope is that as this process becomes

routinized at CDC and we can find out the information closer to real-time, we’[l be better

positioned to do linkage plus partner services for these cases.

19



CATEGORY A: Recommended Components
Please indicate which recommended components were implemented during this reporting period.
If none, please select “None" and continue fo the Required Activities section.
Evidence-based HIV Prevention Interventions for High-Risk HIV-negative
Individuals
Social Marketing, Media and Mobilization
PrEP and nPEP (Through a combination of funds)
[ Syringe Services Program
] None

Please provide responses to the following questions for the recommended components for
Caftegory A, if implemented. Responses to questions should cover all three recommended

COMPORENIS.

1. Describe any substantial changes made to your HIV prevention program for the
recommended components funded under Category A during the reporting perlod Please
describe the changes made for the specific program component,

Evidence-based HIV Prevention Interventions for High-Risk HIV-negative Individuals:

No substantial changes were made during the reporting period. DHSP anticipates that new
prevention programs targeting young African-American and Latino men who have sex with men
and Transgender Individuals will begin in 2017. At the time of this report, the solicitation

process was concluding negotiations with nine successful proposers.

Community Level Interventions

As reported in the APR, a new contractor to provide Faith-based HIV/AIDS Prevention Services
within the African-American community was awarded a contract. Due to circumstances beyond
our contrel, the identified contractor choose not to accept the contract after it was fully executed.
Hence, these services were not implemented during the second half of the reporting period as
previously planned. The current faith based provider targeting Latino communities of faith
continues to conduct community level interventions and are currently creating relationships with

African-American faith leaders to assist with the implementation of these interventions.

20



Social Marketing, Media, and Mobilization:

We successfully launched a social marketing campaign for PrEP and PEP that integrates well
into our existing condom campaign. We plan to infegrate treatment as prevention into the

campaign in 2017.

PrEP and nPEP:

2. Describe the successes experienced with implementing your HIV prevention program for
the recommended components funded under Category A during the reporting period.
Please specify the program component associated with the successes.

Evidence-based HIV Prevention Interventions for High-Risk HIV-negative Individuals:

Through CDC PS15-1506, we successfully launched our PrEP strategy to increase PrEP

awarencss, use and access.

Programs targeting high-risk HIV-negative individuals continue to see steady participation in the
various program interventions. The programs are implemented in both an individual-level and
group-level format. Staff of these programs have attended several PrEP- information workshops
that result in the exchange of correct information to their clients, thus increasing the interest in
high-risk clients to consider the use of PrEP. Additionally, these programs continue to

successfully link clients to HIV and STD testing and treatment.

Social Marketing, Media, and Mobilization:

In 2016, we launched “The Protectors” campaign, which is playful and appealing to young
adults, and has the potential to easily integrate multiple prevention messages. See our website
getprepla.com. We had a very successful debut of our campaign at multiple LGBT pride events

in the community and have become a known presence at many community health forums.

PrEP and nPEP:

We conducted numerous medical provider trainings, implemented PrEP in our STD clinics, and
launched our safety net system of PrEP Centers of Excellence, which offer PrEP and PEP to low

income individuals in LAC.

21



3. Describe the challenges experienced with implementing your HIV prevention program
for the recommended components funded under Category A during the reporting period.
Please specify the program component associated with the challenges. What plans or
actions have been taken to address the challenges?

Evidence-based HIV Prevention Interventions for High-Risk HIV-negative Individuals:

Interventions that require attendance at several sessions continue to be challenging for these
programs. The retention of participants in multi-session group series is challenging, especially
when competing with other priorities that include employment, school and social engagements.
These programs have adapted to these challenges by offering group sessions late in the
afternoon, and/or on evenings and on weekends. They also continue to incorporate a holistic
approach to addressing client’s needs by referring clients to mental health, substance abuse

treatment, vocational training, etc.

Social Marketing, Media, and Mobilization:

No significant challenges.

PrEP and nPEP:

No significant challenges.

Evidence-based HIV Prevention Interventions for High-Risk HIV-negative Individuals
[INot applicable

1. Did you support evidence-based HIV prevention interventions for high-risk HIV-negative
individuals during the reporting period?
Yes O No

If yes, briefly describe which populations and what activities were supported.

HIV prevention interventions for high-risk HIV-negative individuals were delivered to men who
have sex with men, transgender individuals and the Latino faith community. Interventions

included individual-level, group-level and community level activities. Services were provided in

22



various venues that included community centers, clubs, parks and places of worship. Issues
addressed in these interventions ranged from information related to PrEP and PEP access and
acceptability, insurance coverage, HIV and STD screening and treatment, condom negotiation,
and communication with partners about sexual risk taking. Documented referrals to HIV testing,

STD screening, and substance use treatment.

Note: Quantitative aggregate data on Interventions and Services for High-Risk HIV-negative
Individuals, submitted via EvaluationWeb®, will be included in the PS12-1201 Data Tables.
Please review these tables (template) for reference.

Social Marketing, Media and Mobilization

[J Not applicable

1. Did you promote and/or support a CDC social marketing campaign during the reporting
period?
Yes [ No
If yes, please indicate the specific CDC social marketing campaign.
DHSP continues to utilize materials developed through the “Let’s Stop HIV Together”, the
Latino MSM campaign “Reasons/Razones”, and “Testing Makes Us Stronger”. Materials are

shared internally and with providers to distribute during testing events, outreach activities, health

fairs, and in mobile testing units.

Pre-exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP)
[J Not applicable

1. Did you provide services to support PrEP for high-risk populations during the reporting

period?

X Yes ] No (through CDC PS15-1506)

If yes, briefly describe which populations and what activities were supported.
Using our PS15-1506 CDC PrIDE funding, we implemented our local LAC PrEP strategy, which
revolves around three goals: 1) increasing consumer awareness of PrEP, 2) increasing provider
awareness and use of PrEP, and 3) creating a safety net access system for PrEP. We successfully
developed and rolled out a PrEP social marketing campaign, trained numerous medical providers

through CMEs and technical assistance, and contracted with 9 agencies with 13 clinics to

provide PrEP to low income individuals at elevated risk of HIV. The target populations for these

23



activities in 2016 were African American and Latino MSM and transgender men and women.

For 2017, we will be trying to reach more high-risk heterosexual women.

Non-occupational Post-exposure Prophylaxis (nPEP) Services
O Not applicable

1. Did you provide services to support nPEP for high-risk populations during the reporting
period?
Yes 0 No
If yes, briefly describe which populations and what activities were supported.
Our nPEP activities have been integrated completely into our PrtEP related activities. Our
providers do both PrEP and PEP. In addition, we have been working with our local PrEP

workgroup to do more targeted outreach and education about PEP to emergency room and urgent

care providers.

Svringe Services Program (SSP)
X Not applicable

1. Did you submit a determination of need (DON) for SSP? [ Yes O No
If yes, did you redirect funds for 20167 T Yes O No
2. Did you provide services to support SSP for high risk populations during the reporting
period?
O Yes [JNo

If yes, briefly describe which populations and what activities were supported.

CATEGORY A: Required Activities
All three required activities should be conducted during this reporting period.

Jurisdictional HIV Prevention Planning
Capacity Building and Technical Assistance
Program Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation, and Quality Assurance

Jurisdictional HIV Prevention Planning

1. Did you make any changes to your HIV planning group (HPG) to realign with the new
Integrated HIV Prevention and Care Plan Guidance during the reporting period (e.g.,
changes in composition or structure, bylaws, frequency of meeting, etc.). If yes, please
describe the changes made. Please provide the membership profile information for
your HPG. See Appendix B.

24



Strengthened COH Membership and Skills
The Commission on HIV (COH), the local HIV community planning body, under the leadership

of the Operations Committee, scaled up its efforts to strengthen the skills of members in order to

better align with the new Integrated Plan guidance.

Filled 92% of the COH seats, with continuing recruitment efforts to fill remaining
vacancies.

Conducted a comprehensive 3-hour New Member Orientation training for new members.
Completed an electronic COH Member Manual and a 2017 training series for
Commissioners to increase community planning knowledge and skills.

Conducted community outreach events, reaching over 100 community members, to
promote the work of the COH and educate the community about HIV/STD services in
LAC.

While no changes to bylaws were made, the Operations Committee reviewed and updated

10 policies and procedures related to membership and meeting management.

Describe the successes experienced with implementing your HIV prevention planning
activities during the reporting period.

Improved Planning for Community Health

The COH used the Comprehensive HIV Plan as the driving document to guide its priorities and

planning.activities.

Completed the Los Angeles County Comprehensive HIV Plan (CHP) 2017-2021, the
County’s second integrated HIV services plan road map for achieving the goals of the
National HIV/AIDS Strategy 2020 (NHAS). This plan was developed in partnership with
DHSP and innumerable community and organizational partners. It presents a blueprint
for HIV services along the entire spectrum of HIV prevention and care.

Upon approval of the CHP, COH committees reviewed the CHP and integrated specific
activities most relevant to their functions. For example, the Priorities, Planning and
Allocation Committee used the CHP to help inform the update of the Minority AIDS

Initiative Plan, Program Directives, and prevention planning efforts; the Standards and

25



Best Practices Committee used the CHP to revise and update the Comprehensive HIV
Continuum and started preparing for the development prevention service standards; the
Operations Committee created a training plan to ensure planning council members have
the skills necessary to successfully fulfill their duties as community planners.

The updated Comprehensive HIV Continuum better integrates prevention and recognizes
the role that social determinants of health play in driving the acquisition and transmission
of HIV. The Comprehensive HIV Continuum serves as a key planning tool in developing
service standards for HIV/STD services in LAC.

Completed seven community listening sessions as part of the COH’s ongoing community
needs assessment to better understand the barriers to services faced by populations most
impacted by HIV/AIDS and STDs

Hosted second annual Trans Health Summit, providing a safe space and educational
forum for providers and the trans community to discuss and address HIV, STD and health

issues unique to this underserved population

Describe the challenges experienced with implementing your HIV prevention planning
activities during the reporting period. What plans or actions have been taken to address
the challenges?

The recruitment of a State Medicaid (Medi-Cal) and a recently incarcerated individual continues

to be a challenge. The Executive Director will continue to work with the Operations Committee

and other partners to secure representatives for these seats. The recruitment of younger

consumers (18-29 years) has been a challenge. To mitigate this challenge, the Youth Caucus

disseminated social media invitations to their peers to attend the COH meetings to encourage

participation and provide public comments on youth-related HIV issues.

Capacity Building and Technical Assistance (CBA/TA)

1.

2.

Did you access CBA/TA services during the reporting period? X Yes [ No

Note: CBA provided via CDC-funded providers will be pulled via CRIS. However,
please explain (be specific) if any of the CBA/TA provided did not meet your
needs/expectations. N/A

26



3. Please provide the type of CBA/TA received and the name(s) of CBA/TA provider(s) for
any non-CDC provided CBA to include training provided by your internal training
unit (if applicable).

As part of our training portfolio, DHSP’s Quality Management team provides training and
capacity building to DHSP contractors. See Attachment 1 for a listing of trainings offered in CY
2016.

Program Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation, and Quality Assurance

1. Did you make any substantial changes to your program planning, monitoring and

evaluation, and quality assurance activities durmg the reporting period?

0] Yes [ No

If yes, please describe the changes made.
Program Planning
Linkage and Re-engagement Program
During 2016, DHSP made significant strides in developing and implementing data to care
programming. The Linkage and Re-engagement Program (LRP) which is funded by HRSA, was
officially launched in the spring of 2016 and affected changes within the County by offering a
new service for clinics and other community partners to refer for clients lost to care and for

newly diagnosed clients who have never been linked to a medical provider.

LRP trained staff to use surveillance and other data systems to identify clients and to develop
important partnerships with high risk social networks, medical clinics, Medical Care
Coordination teams, and the jails. Critical collaborative working relationships were established

during this phase of the program.

Quality Assurance (QA)

During this reporting period, there were no substantial changes to the Quality Assurance
activities. DHSP’s Clinical and Quality Management (CQM) team continues to focus efforts on
maintaining high levels of service quality offered directly and through our supported partners.
Clinical and Quality Management is charged with training, ongoing competencies and
proficiencies, monitoring testing site quality assurance activities, responding to grievances and

incidences, and compiling and analyzing data.

27



DHSP partnered with the Gang Reduction & Youth Development (GRYD) Foundation to
provide HIV/STD testing and prevention services. Initially the focus of these services was
on winter shelters and recreational centers for homeless youth located within communities
of government assisted residences. Testing and prevention services continued beyond the
winter months and continue to expand to additional sites. As these sites are identified,
DHSP’s CQM team works closely with DHSP’s Contracted Community Services team to

develop HIV/STD testing services tailored to meet the needs of each site.

Testing Technologies

DHSP continues to evaluate several new testing technologies in order to expand services
offered to LAC residents. The Determine HIV-1/2 Ag/Ab Combo, a 4™ generation rapid
point of care CLIA waived test, is being added to DHSP’s options of testing devices.
During this reporting period a training curriculum was developed and piloted with DHSP’s
surveillance team. DHSP continues the process of developing additional protocols and
quality assurance guidelines to better equip community partners in the development of

quality testing services.

As previously reported, barriers which have delayed the rollout of this 4™ generation rapid
test to DHSP-supported agencies have largely been resolved. The curriculum was completed
along with piloting it to select DHSP staff. Also, during the latter part of 2016, a contract

with the vendor had been secured.

In addition to rapid HIV tests, DHSP continues to explore ways to provide rapid point of care
syphilis testing and rapid point of care hepatitis C testing. As preparations are underway in
developing the policies, procedures and quality assurance guidelines, the capacity to support

and implement these technologies will continue to be explored in 2017.

DHSP had collaborated with LA County Department of Health Services (DHS) for more than 2
years to assist their Family Planning Clinical Program to implement opt-out testing in their Title
X clinics to test patients at risk for STDs and pregnancy for HIV using rapid testing. Title X is

the only federal grant program dedicated solely to providing individuals with comprehensive

28



family planning and related preventive health services. The program (DHS’ Women’s Health
and Innovation program) had expanded to three women’s clinics located at Hubert H.
Humphrey Comprehensive Health Center, H. Claude Hudson Comprehensive Health Center
and Harbor-UCLA Medical Center. However, as of August 30, 2016, their focus and funds
were re-directed to other services and resulted in discontinuation of their HIV testing initiative.

During a 26-month period the program tested over 5,500 patients.

A deficiency assessment was conducted on CQM?’s internal procedures and revealed a lack of
standard procedures among the team members providing quality assurance oversight to
supported testing programs. During this reporting period collaborative efforts between Clinical
and Quality Management’s Quality Assurance (QA) team and the Provider Support Services
team began developing a comprehensive protocol for conducting Competency Assessment
Testing (CAT) and testing site quality assurance assessments. This protocol will document in
detail all the processes and steps involved when the QA team conducts site visits to the affected

agencies. It is anticipated the protocol will be completed early in calendar year 2017.

DHSP’s CQM team also continues to assist community partners who are not directly supported
by DHSP but get their support from other sources. DHSP supports all efforts in Los Angeles
County for HIV/STD prevention, screening and linkage to care and treatment, and therefore,
offer its expertise to organizétions seeking to provide tﬁese services. Three such agencies with
whom DHSP’s CQM section has met to discuss planning, implementing and evaluating phases
of developing an HIV testing program are Black AIDS Institute, Claris Health and Via Care L.A.
(formerly Bienvenidos). As agencies progress in their testing program development, CQM’s
team of PHNs/RNs continue to provide direction and technical assistance along with agency staff

trainings to facilitate the agency’s Quality Assurance Plan development.

2. How are you using the most current epidemiologic and surveillance data for program
planning, implementation, and evaluation purposes during the reporting period (i.e., data
to care)? Include the types of data used. How are you disseminating your program
monitoring and evaluation data and providing feedback to your healthcare and non-
healthcare providers and other community partners? If the surveillance team is receiving
updated information (e.g., updated risk, residence, contact, or linkage status information)
from program staff, please explain what data and how it helps surveillance (e.g.,
surveillance data are more up to date and accurate).

29



Use of HIV Surveillance Data for Program Planning

DHSP uses surveillance data to plot the entire continuum of HIV for LAC. Surveillance data
are used to identify geographic areas of LAC with increased or increasing HIV and STD
burden, identify specific target populations with increased proportion of seropositivity, and
identify previously diagnosed persons who are not currently linked to medical care, in order
to develop and place programs where the need is greatest. These data inform program
planning. For example, LRP is a DPH-based program that focuses on locating people living
with HIV in LAC who are HIV-positive and 1) never linked into HIV care, or 2) who “fell’
out of care, in order to link or re-engage them into consistent and appropriate HIV medical
care. LRP was developed using the best practices and lessons learned from previous
demonstration projects conducted by DHSP that tested new and innovative strategies to
identify out-of-care PLWH in order to link and re-engage them in primary HIV medical care,
including the use of surveillance data to initially identify HIV-positive clients who were not

in HIV medical care.

Dissemination of Program Monitoring and Evaluation Data

As a large urban health department, DHSP manages both the HIV/AIDS surveillance system
(HARS) and the STD surveillance system (STD NETTS). In addition, DHSP obtains data
directly from DHSP-funded HIV and STD programs via electronic transfer, scanning, or manual
data entry. Data are collected from non-contracted HIV testing sites such as independent health
departments within LAC, directly funded CDC testing programs, and large agencies or
healthcare settings in the Loos Angeles area. These data populate DHSP’s HIV Testing database
and care services Casewatch system. To complement these data systems, DHSP also securely
stores a number of datasets such as: needs assessments (e.g., Los Angeles Coordinated HI'V Care
Assessment (LACHNA) and LACHNA-Care), original epidemiologic studies, demonstration
projects, and research projects. These data in totality assist DHSP in planning, evaluating, and

conducting quality assurance to maximize prevention, care and treatment efforts in LAC.

DHSP has improved data dissemination by increasing the use of its website and the automation
of reports. DHSP staff have automated a number of reports (e.g., monthly HTS reports, quarterly
HTS reports, exit interview contractor monitoring reports, quality management reports, partner

services activities reports, etc.) that expedite monitoring, evaluation, and planning activities.

30



These reports are available to and utilized by DHSP grants management team, research and
evaluation staff, contract program auditors (program managers), quality management staff, and
contractors. Reports are posted on the DHSP website (e.g., Care Utilization Report, HTS Annual
Report, HIV Epidemiologic Profile, HIV/AIDS Annual Surveillance Report, STD Annual
Report, Book of Maps, ete.), while other data or results are shared in meetings, local conferences
or workgroups, national conferences, and in published manuscripts. For example, HTS data are
presented to all DHSP contracted HTS providers at regular meetings; data and findings are
shared with community planning groups, Medical Adviscry Committee, DPH Annual Science
Summit participants, ESRI (GIS software related), and at numerous local and national
conferences. In addition, DHSP disseminates data results and key findings with CDC project
officers and other representatives during site visits. In order to increase data dissemination,
DHSP plans to create more antomated reports, continue to update and populate the new
integrated HIV and STD website, create and post project abstracts/profiles, and increase the

number of published manuscripts.

31



SECTION II: CATEGORY B: Expanded HIV Testing Program
Please indicate which Category B components were implemented during this reporting period. If
none, please select “None” and continue to the Staffing and Management section.

HIV Testing in Healthcare Settings (required)

[J HIV Testing in Non-healthcare Settings (optional)

[ Service Integration (optional)

L] None

Currently, 24 healthcare settings are funded or supported by DHSP to provide routine, opt-out
HIV testing.
+ Twelve Department of Public Health STD Clinics
*  One Community STD Clinic (Los Angeles LGBT Center)
» Three Comprehensive Health Centers (FHubert H. Humphrey Comprehensive Health
Center, H. Claude Hudson Comprehensive Health Center, and Harbor-UCLA
Medical Center)
+ Four Community Health Centers (THE Clinic, Clinica Oscar Romero, Central City
Community Health Center, and St. John’s Well Child Family Center)
*  One Dental Clinic (USC School of Dentistry)
» One Emergency Department (LAC+USC Medical Center), and
» Two Jails/Correctional Facilities (K6G and CRDF)

Please provide responses to the following questions for your funded Category B HIV testing
program. Responses to questions should cover all funded components.

1. Did you make any substantial changes to your expanded HIV testing program in
healthcare settings and non-healthcare settings, including service integration? If yes,
please describe the changes made.

HIV Testing in Healthcare settings:

Under Category B, 100% of testing is taking place within healthcare settings. For testing in non-
healthcare settings, see Section I: Category A: Required Core HIV Prevention Program- HIV
_Testing.

Contracted Non-County clinics

There were no substantial changes for the reporting period.

32



Comprehensive Health Centers

As reported earlier, DHS’ program had expanded HIV testing to three women’s clinics located at
Hubert H. Humphrey Comprehensive Health Center, H. Claude Hudson Comprehensive Health
Center and Harbor-UCIL A Medical Center. However, as of August 30, 2016, their focus and
funds were re-directed to other services and resulted in discontinuation of their HIV testing

initiative.

DPH STD Clinics

We did not make any significant changes to our routine testing program.

Jails/Correctional Facilities

Men’s Central Jail (MCJ-K6G)

DHSP counselors continue to offer comprehensive HIV/STD testing to all inmates housed in the
K6G unit at Men’s Central Jail including HIV, syphilis, chlamydia and gonorrhea. Despite
working with a challenging population, DHSP staff conduct active outreach to educate and
encourage inmates to test and also provide them with condom distribution. Staff also continue to
maintain a close collaboration and working relationship with the Los Angeles Sheriff’s
Department (LASD) to ensure deputies are aware of the importance of the public health services

being provided.

Century Regional Detention Facility (CRDF)

DHSP staff continue to offer HIV testing in the housing pods at CRDF to all inmates. Due to the
high rates of STDs in this population, we have recently begun to examine the feasibility of
adding testing for gonorrhea and chlamydia to this program. While DHSP currently offers
gonorrhea and chlamydia screening and testing to all females at intake in the Inmate Reception
Center, the environment poses additional challenges to universal implementation. Offering these
tests in the housing pods as well would provide an opportunity to target any individuals that were

missed during the booking process.

HIV Testing in Non-healtheare settings: N/A
Service integration: N/A

33



2. Describe the successes experienced with implementing your HIV testing program in
healthcare settings and non-healthcare settings, including service integration, during the
reporting period.

HIV Testing in Healthcare settings:

DHSP’s goal for routine testing in healthcare settings was to conduct 60,000 HIV test events for
2016 and to identify 588 newly identified HIV-positive individuals. At the end of the year, LAC
is reporting 87% (52,384/60,000) of our projected HIV testing goal for healthcare settings.

At the end of the year, 52,384 test events had been conducted with an HIV positivity rate of
1.11% (582/52,384) for newly diagnosed HIV-positive individuals. This positivity rate exceeds
the FOA requirement of 0.10%.

Our routine testing providers continue to integrate testing into their clinical practice and serve as
local champions. Our LASD jail medical leadership agreed to work to integrate laboratory based
HIV testing into their existing clinic procedures by adding in a “flag” into their electronic
medical record (EMR) so that providers ordering labs for any patient who hasn’t had an HIV

testing in the past 6 or 12 month would be reminded to order an HIV test.

Men’s Central Jail (MCJ-K6G)

Given the demanding work environment of providing services in a correctional facility to
incarcerated populations, staff are required to be resourceful and find creative solutions in order
to work successfully with our LASD partners. It can be a challenge to combine the provision of
essential public health services while ensuring public safety is not compromised. There is a high
turnover of staff within LASD, therefore DHSP staff have to routinely educate new deputies to
the importance of the services we provide. This includes meeting with LASD senior staff
(Lieutenants, Captains and Commanders) and involving DHSP senior leadership to actively
maintain open communication and understanding of processes and procedures used during

testing.

LASD often requires that DHSP staff issue medical passes and wait while custody assistants
transport inmates to the testing location. This can be very time-consuming and limits the number

of inmates that DHSP can test daily. DHSP staff have established close relationships with the

34



deputies on the floor to be able to escort the inmates to the test location with the oversight of the

deputies thereby making the procedure much more efficient for all parties involved.

Century Regional Detention Facility (CRDF)

DHSP closely examined and further streamlined the process for female inmates who have tested
positive for STIs and are released without treatment. This included ensuring positive inmates
were immediately identified and referred if still in custody, refining the procedure for follow-up
in the community including establishing a clear contact log procedure and resolving all open

cases in Casewatch for data quality management and reporting purposes.

DHSP has also improved communication and collaboration with nursing staff at CRDF by
maintaining an active presence inside the correctional facility by all levels of managers.
Supervisorial staff have taken the time, on numerous occasions, to meet in person with nursing
staff to address issues such as storage constraints, laboratory reporting, faxing of lab results and
other daily duties that have strengthened the relationship between DHSP and LASD to further

enhance services being provided for the inmates.

HIV Testing in Non-healthcare settings: N/A
Service integration: N/A

3. Describe the challenges experienced with implementing your HIV testing program in
healthcare settings and non-healthcare settings, including service integration, during the
reporting period. What plans or actions have been taken to address the challenges?

HIV Testing in Healthcare settings:

Contracted Non-County Clinics

At the end of the reporting period, the majority of the programs experienced a reduction in the
number of people being tested. Although, the higher performing program, such as the LGBT
Center, continued to see an increase in the number of clients being tested. Most of the routine
testing sites are general practice clinics, where there continues to be a reluctance by patients to

accept an HIV test, even when it’s made as part of a routine medical assessment.

County Facilities

35



We have struggled with bringing on routine HIV testing in two particular settings: 1) a large
county ambulatory care center in a highly impacted part of LAC, and 2) our LASD Jails. For the
ambulatory care center, we had multiple conversations with physician and administrative leaders
but in the end, there was no single champion who was willing to see the process through to
fruition. The issue of how HIV-positive results would be followed up was one that plagued the
group as there was no existing system to build off of. For the LAC jails, we have not been able
to work with them on fulfilling their agreement to implement the EMR flag to ensure more

testing but hope to do so in 2017.

Men’s Central Jail (MCJ-K6G)/Century Regional Detention Facility (CRDF)

DPH’s Public Health Lab’s (PHL) reporting system, which is used by DHSP testing counselors
to collect and request specimen samples, underwent an upgrade this past year and all operating
systems needed to be updated. This posed a significant challenge when interfacing with the
security firewall at LASD. Staff faced numerous and time-consuming setbacks with
implementation that resulted in using paper acquisitions to request lab results at times.
Coordination of these technical services were required between PHL, DHSP IT and LASD IT, all
agencies with offices in different physical locations lending an additional layer of complexity to
the situation. However, all DHSP staff have now been trained, are familiar with the new system,

and all operating systems have been cleared to be used inside the LASD firewall.

HIV Testing in Non-healthcare settings: N/A
Service integration: N/A

Billing Redirection
4, Please provide a brief update on progress made with the Category B billing redirection

during this reporting period. Please include progress made on billing for HIV services,
training, staffing, contracts, and needs assessment/business case analysis.
In late 2016, we utilized funds (including carryover) to continue the progress/work being made
toward third party billing. Funds supported electronic medical record (EMR) implementation
activities which are critical for third party billing. Phases covered this period were Project
Initiation and Planning, development of the Implementation Approach, and completion of a

Public Health Lab (PHL) study (4PHL LIMS Study) to assess and determine costs, benefits,
capability, gaps, risks, and mitigation plan if the LIMS is implemented at the County PHL.

36



Our public health STD clinic partners have been able to make tremendous progress planning for
their EMR implementation in 2017. Once the EMR goes live, they will work with their

consultant on implementing the billing infrastructure for certain clinic patients.

5. Please describe the successes experienced with implementing this sustainable HIV testing
effort during this reporting period.
Our public health department leadership has been very supportive of EMR implementation and

~ the thoughtful use of billing so as to increase overall revenue but not drive patients away.

6. Please describe the challenges experienced with implementing this sustainable HIV
testing effort during this reporting period. What plans or actions have been taken to
address the challenges?

We still have not been able to outline how billing will be implemented and how we will avoid
driving away patients who are used to seeking HIV/STD services in our STD clinics specifically

for the confidentiality (that may be limited in a billing environment where patients receive a

statement of evidence of benefits for anything their insurance pays for).

HIV Testing in Healthcare Settings (required) and Non-Healthcare Settings (optional)
Note: Quantitative informatton for HIV testing for Category B in both healthcare and non-
healthcare settings, as well as aggregate testing data, will be reviewed via the PS12-1201 Data
Tables that will be auto-populated with NHM&E data submitted via EvaluationWeb®. Please
review these tables (template) for reference. '

1. Please indicate if any of the funded healthcare settings/providers within the jurisdiction
were able to utilize 3rd party reimbursement and/or bill for HIV testing. See Table 2
below. Estimate the percentages of total test events in healthcare and non-healthcare (if
applicable) settings that were paid for by PS12-1201 Category B funds, by 3™ party
reimbursement, and by other funds. If other funds were used, please specify the source of
those funds (e.g., state funds).

Table 2. Estimated Percentages of Test Events Paid for by PS12-1201 Category B
Funds, by 3™ Party Reimbursement, and by Other Funds.

. Estimated Percent of Test Ev.eilts_
Funding Source : "

- Healtheare Settings Non-Healthcare Settings

PS12-1201 Category B 100% N/A%

Medicaid 0% N/A%

Private Insurance 0% N/AY%
Other (please specify)

" % %

37



SECTION IIT: STAFFING AND MANAGEMENT

1.

Please indicate any organizational and/or key staffing changes (i.e., health department
staff responsible for implementing interventions and services for PS12-1201) that
occurred during the reporting period. Please indicate any vacant staff positions and
provide a detailed plan with timeline for hiring/filling vacancies. Were there any delays
in executing contracts during the reporting period? If so, please explain and include any
program implications.

For 2016, there were no key organizational or staffing changes. Although DHSP continues to

experience delays in filling a majority of its vacant positions, we have made progress in

filling most of our long term vacancies by emphasizing recruitment, exam postings and

interviews for these positions. However, there are still a number of other factors that are

causing delays in DHSP filling all of its vacant positions. Also, due to grant funding

limitation for this federal program, DHSP identified most of its vacant positions on the

budget as In-Kind and not grant funded.

In early 2017, CDC requested information on vacant positions for Category A & B. DHSP

provided the status of vacant positions and estimated hire dates.

SECTION IV: RESOURCES ALLOCATION

Category A:

I.

Include the percentage of Category A funding resources allocated to the required and
recommended program components for Year 5 (2016). Note: Percentage should be
inclusive of both internal health department expenses (e.g., personnel and administrative
cost) as well as funding resources being allocated external to the health department for
the required and recommended components. Percentages for required and
recommended components including SSP should total 100%.

Year 5 (2016):

Required components: 80%
Recommended components: 20%
Total: 100%
SSP (if applicable): 0%

Please identify each city/MSA with at least 30% of the HIV epidemic within the
jurisdiction. For directly-funded cities, please report areas (or zip codes) within the MSA
with at least 30% of the HIV epidemic within the jurisdiction. If no area represents at

38



least 30% of the HIV epidemic, then identify the top three MSA/MDs, cities, or areas

within the jurisdiction that have the greatest burden of disease. See Appendix A:
Resource Allocation.

Category B:

I.

Include the percentage of Category B funding resources allocated to HIV testing in
healthcare settings and non-healthcare settings for Year 5 (2016). Note: Percentage
should be inclusive of both internal health department expenses (e.g., personnel and
administrative cost) as well as funding resources being allocated external to the health
department for the required and optional components. Percentage for healthcare
settings and non-healthcare settings should total 100%.

Year 5 (2016):

HIV testing in healthcare settings: 100%
HIV testing in non-healthcare settings: 0%
Total: 100%

Billing Redirection: 19%

All Categories:

1.

Please provide information for the funding allocation tables for 2016.

Note: The PS12-1201 funding table template for 2016 is included in EvaluationWeb. The
2016 information is due by March 15, 2017.
SECTION V: CERTIFICATION OF NHM&E DATA SUBMISSION

I.

As a part of the PS12-1201 Cooperative Agreement, in addition to the submission of the
progress reports to CDC, grantees must also submit the required National HIV
Monitoring and Evaluation (NHM&E) data variables, through the CDC-approved system
(i.e., EvaluationWeb®) and commit by the designated due date.

Please certify below:

We certify that the department of health has submitted/will submit all of the required
NHM&E data (HIV Testing data, Partner Services data, Risk Reduction Activities (RRA)
data, 2016 Funding Tables, as well as any other required aggregate data variables) to
CDC via EvaluationWeb® and have committed/will commit them by the designated due
date. And, that we have reviewed the EvaluationWeb® auto-populated PS12-1201 Data
Tables.

Please include any additional comments and/or clarifications for your submitted NHM&E
data and/or the PS12-1201 Data Tables. Please also include any justification(s) for
partial/late data submission. Information provided will be used for consideration during
the review process.

00 No additional comments and/or clarifications needed.

Additional comments and/or clarifications provided here:

39



Healthcare Settings in Category A

LAC primarily provides HIV testing in healthcare settings through Category B funding.
However, there are some programs that provide targeted testing through Category A in
both non-healthcare and healthcare settings. For this reason, 17,473 test events (including

LB) are reported under Category A.

Note: To better align the progress reporting and NHM&E data submission processes, as well as
to reduce data burden, the quantitative NHM&E data entered into EvaluationWeb® will
automatically populate the PS12-1201 Data Tables, with the exception of the tables included in
this guidance. This report will draw directly from required NHM&E data that you have
submitted to CDC via EvaluationWeb®. As a follow-up to your data submission, please review
the PS12-1201 auto-populated quantitative data tables (for Category A and Category B) within
EvaluationWeb®. These quantitative reports will be used by project officers in addition to the
qualitative progress report for the review and feedback process.

40



SECTION VIiI: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Additional Information

Please provide any other explanatory information or data you think would be important for CDC
to receive (e.g., additional coordination and collaborations to support PS12-1201, local processes
or procedures impacting program implementation).

None to report.

41




APPENDICES

Appendix A: Resource Allocation

Areas within the Jurisdiction with the Greatest Burden of HIV Disease

Identify each city/MSA with at least 30% of the HIV epidemic within the jurisdiction. For
directly-funded cities, please report areas (or zip codes) within the MSA with at least 30% of the
HIV epidemic within the jurisdiction. If no area represents at least 30% of the HIV epidemic,
then identify the top three MSA/MDs, cities, or areas within the jurisdiction that have the

greatest burden of disease.

Reporting of MSAs/Cities/Areas with > 30% of the HIV Epidemic within the Jurisdiction

MSA/CITY/AREA Percentage of Percentage of | Components and Activities
HIV Epidemic PS12-1201 Funded
within the Funds Allocated
Jurisdiction
Service Planning Area (SPA) 4 39% 33% HIV Testing Services, Risk

Reduction Activities, and
Social Marketing Activities
(Erase Doubt and Condom
Campaign)

*In determining funds allocated
by SPA, DHSP utilized the GEN
(for SPA 4 is 26.5%). The GEN
considered homelessness/poverty,
HIV & STDs.

42




Appendix B: HIV Prevention and Care Planning Group (HPG)

HPG Membership and Stakeholder Profile
(January 1, 2016 — December 31, 2016)
This profile is to be completed annually by the HPG co-chairs (or appropriate designees).

Membership Profile
Name of Los Angeles County Commission on HIV
HPG/Jurisdiction:
Type of HPG: Please select one:
[0 Statewide X Directly funded city/local jurisdiction
Structure of HPG: Please select one:

[ Prevention Only

X Integrated Prevention and Care
Please provide the month/year the group integrated:
June 2013

O Other - Integrated with other planning bodies

If your Planning Group is integrated with other
planning bodies, please describe:

Type of Plan: Please select one:

[0 Integrated state/city prevention and care plan

[ Integrated state-only prevention and care plan

[ Integrated city-only prevention and care plan

X Other: Integrated County-only prevention and care plan

Types of Key Pursuant to County Ordinance Code 32.9, the following
Stakeholders stakeholders represent our voting membership:

represented as voting
members (e.g., health (4) City/Health District members: represents health and social

department staff, service institutions, who have epidemiology skills or experience
PLWHA, CBOs, and knowledge of Hepatitis B, C and STDs;

HOPWA, faith (1) Director, Division of HIV and STD Programs (DHSP):
community): represents RWP Part A grantee;

(4) Ryan White Program Part B-F members: represents Ryan White
grant recipients in the County

43



(8) Provider members: represents organizations in the County
selected to ensure geographic diversity and who reflect the
epicenters of the epidemic, including:

An HIV specialty physician from an HIV medical provider,
A Community Health Center/Federally Qualified Health
Center (“CHC”/ "FQHC"”) representative,

A mental health provider,

A substance abuse treatment provider,

A housing provider,

A provider of homeless services,

A representative of an AIDS Services Organization
(“AS0O”) offering federally funded HIV prevention services,
and

A representative of an ASO offering HIV care and treatment
services;

(17) Unaffiliated Consumer members:

represents Service Planning Areas (SPA) 1-8 and who are
recommended by consumers and/or organizations in the
SPA,

represents supervisorial district, who are recommended by
consumers and/or organizations in the district, and
consumers serving in an at-large capacity, who are
recommended by consumers and/or organizations in the
County '

(2) Board of Supervisors members: represents supervisorial offices
(1) HOPWA member:

(1) Local health/hospital planning agency member: represents a
health plan in Covered California

(1) Behavioral/Social Scientist member: represents the respective
professional communities

(6) HIV Stakeholder members: represents one or more of the
following:

Faith-based entities engaged in HIV prevention and care,
Local education agencies at the elementary or secondary
level,

The business community,

Union and/or labor,

Youth or youth-serving agencies,

Other federally funded HIV programs,

44




= Organizations or individuals engaged in HIV-related
research,
* Organizations providing harm reduction services,

(3) Alternate member: represents a substitute for HIV-positive
Commissioners when they cannot fulfill their respective

Commission duties and responsibilities
Jurisdiction’s website http://hiv.lacounty.gov

for HIV Planning, if
available:

Web link for http://hiv/lacounty.gov
Integrated HIV
Prevention and Care
Plan, if available:

45



£1I0€ judy pajopdn

sajes 544 Suidojsnap dSHA | 8T0Z/T/E L102/9/6 (Ansnuaq Ayjepads/[esausn) sa01aS YiESH |BIO
syuawaalfe Aleiodwa) aaejdal Jjim $12813U00 DN
SIIAID ea(pa weneding Asoleingu
S SO R AR %= Sy 810Z/1/€ L107/1/8 1n13S 3DN/(INOY) [BJPa uaneding Alojeinquiy
juawdojaaaq uj
dSHQ Ag ma1aa1 Japun Yelp ySnol jeuld 8102/1/¢ £102/T/L 5321195 Ajjepadsgns [edIpaAl
13U00s 10 8T/T/E
ag [ega
LBIS 01 SIS [dSHA Ag mataas Japun Yelp ySnod jeuty 810Z/1/E L102/s/9 SRR AR
J3U00s
sa21A95 98endue aseal
10 BT/1/E AQ 11€3S 0} S30ISS 1/ ‘27 At anp sjesadosg 810¢/1/¢€ LT0Z/LT/Y ISEIS 1 paseajay
£T0Z Aep Jo ujuwdaq owaw Ajndap
Jeag SU07 Ul SIIAIRS LUOIIUBASL
yyeay Buipuas ‘suonepusaiwodas Suipuny Bulzieury BTOC/T/T 9T0¢/L1/8 Ee T AR d
suolepusLILIoIay
Suipung
suonsanb uo dn Suimoljoy Quas owaw Ayndag yiesy LTOE/T/B aroz/ie/e g ¥dS Ui S201A18S YljeaH [eluan
suopsanb uo dn Suimojjoy quas owaw Aindag yyesH LT0Z/1/8 910Z/8¢/9 $32IA1SS YljeaH [BIUSIA
PaINJIBXD S 1DBIIUOD BUO !/ TOT ACIA LEIS
01 sapuade 7 yim syuswaalfe Arelodwa) Suienodau LTOZ/T/S 9102/61/6 $921A195 (DDA uoneuIpI00]) BJED [BAIPaIN Asesodwal
{5321A195 DN Papuedxa 10) uojIeYdijos uado Suiodug Suoi1e1033N
JJeIUOD
suoienodau 1oenuod Ayidus| Sudnpuon | £T0Z/T/L §10¢/ST/0T wawadesus aled yjeaH Sunowold

| e

Atewnwing suonenijos
SINVY90Ud A1S ANV AlH 40 NOISIAID
HLIV3IH 2N8Nd 40 LNJWLYYdIA - ST1IONV SO1 40 ALNNOD




COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
DIVISION OF HIV AND STD PROGRAMS
Solicitations Summary

Planning underway; waiting for results of negotiations

Health Education/Risk Reduction Services 1/1/2018 1/1/2019 with Promoting Health and for new CDC FOA before
developing RFP

STD Screening Services TBD TBD Planning meeting scheduled for May 1, 2017

HIV Testing Services 1/1/2018 1/1/2019

Planning
. DHSP in di i i

Residential Care (RCFC & TRCF) Services 3/1/2018 3/1/2019 B e M e s
for Housing Health Program
Working with SAPC to include a RWP client service

Substance Use Services TBD TBD category to the RFSQ they are developing for new
substance use services

Biomedical Prevention Services WOS 3/7/2016 8/2/2016 | Contracts in place; open continuous RFSQ

Biomedical Prevention Services RFSQ 7/23/2015 N/A Master Agreements completed

Completed

STD Prevention Services in South LA 12/1/2014 3/10/2015 Contract in place

Social Marketing/Media Services 10/24/2014 5/19/2015 | Contractin place

STD Social Marketing/Media Services TBD TBD

Nutrition Support Services TBD 3/1/2019

Parking Lot
Non-Medical Case Management TBD 3/1/2019 | Includes BenefitsSpecialty, TCM, and Jails
Home-based Case Management TBD 7/1/2019

Updated April 2017



County of Los Ange-les
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street, Room 713, Los Angeles, California 80012
: (243) 9741101
http:/fceo.lacounty.gov

S\ﬁ?gggﬁzﬁgfﬁiﬂr o Board of Supervisors
May 26, 2017 et Disiet
MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS
Second District
SHEILA KUEHL
To: Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas, Chairman Third Distit
Supervisor Hilda L.. Solis Foutth Distiot.
Supervisor Sheila Kuehl KATHRYN BARGER
Supervisor Janice Hahn Fifth District
Supervisor Kathryn Barger ,ﬂ { _//g
o4
From: Sachi A. Hamai
' Chief Executive Officer

WASHINGTON, D.C. UPDATE ON THE PRESIDENT’S PROPOSED FEDERAL
FISCAL YEAR 2018 BUDGET

Executive Summary

On May 23, 2017, the President proposed a $4.1 trillion budget for Federal Fiscal Year
(FFY) 2018, which projects collecting $3.65 trillion in revenue, with $440 billion in deficit
spending. The FFY 2018 budget, “A New Foundation for American Greatness,”
proposes, over the next ten years, to cut $1.6 trillion in nondefense discretionary
spending and $1.4 trillion from Medicaid. Major domestic spending reductions are
proposed, which are described below, while defense spending is proposed to increase
by $54 billion in FFY 2018 and $489 billion over the next decade.

The President's FFY 2018 budget propgses large cuts to mandatory (entitement)
spending programs from which the County receives the majority of its Federal funding.
The proposed budget assumes the enactment of H.R. 1628, the American Health Care
Act (AHCA), which the House passed on May 4, 2017. H.R. 1628 would cut $839 billion
from Medicaid over ten years, primarily through the repeal of the Medicaid expansion
contained in the Affordable Care Act (ACA). The budget also calls for an additional
$610 billion in Medicaid cuts through FFY 2027 by capping Federal Medicaid funding to
States, through either a per-capita spending cap or a block grant, and by allowing states
o impose work requirements for beneficiaries.

The President's budget requests $191 billion in cuts to the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program (SNAP) over 10 years; proposes a 9.7 percent cut to the
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) program; and proposes to eliminate
or significantly reduce discretionary spending for programs the County receives funding

“To Envich Lives Through Effective And Caring Service”
Please Conserve Paper— This Document and Copies are Two-Sided

tndern Maismbre Mimvsimmsn s sl s O ssdh P s a2 8o N i




Each Supervisor
May 26, 2017
Page 2

for community development, housing, public health, public safety and workforce
development. The President's budget for FFY 2018 largely reflects proposals and
priorities that were outfined in the President’s “budget blueprint,” which was released in
March 2017. There is no significant impact to either Social Security or Medicare in the
proposed budget.

The reaction to many of the President's budget proposals was widespread opposition
among Democrats, and Republicans have also expressed notable concerns with the
major_reductions_on spending. Legislation to implement the Administration’s budget
must be passed before September 30, 2017, the end of the Federal Fiscal Year. In
particular, major reductions in entittement programs will be difficult to enact in such a
short time frame, and it is unclear if the votes exist in both the House and Senate to
implement them.

Major Mandatory Spénding Programs

The President's budget requests that Congress make substantial changes to mandatory
spending programs in FFY 2018, including:

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP): The President's budget
requests $73.8 billion for SNAP for FFY 2018, which is a reduction of $4.7 billion from
$78.5 billion in FFY 2017. The Administration proposes to establish a State match for
SNAP benefits, beginning with a national average of 10 percent in FFY 2020 to
25 percent by FFY 2023. Combined, these reforms are estimated to save nearly
$191 billion over ten years. In addition, the budget would aliow states to condition
program eligibility by imposing work requirements on recipients.

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF): The President's budget
proposes to reduce TANF spending by $2.2 billion. This includes a $1.62 billion cut to
the TANF block grant and the elimination of the TANF Contingency Fund ($608 million).
The reduction proposes to eliminate the portion of the TANF block grant that states may
transfer from TANF to the Soclal Services Block Grant (SSBG). in addition, the budget
proposes to eliminate the SSBG, which is funded at $1.583 billion in FFY 2017.

Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP): The President's budget proposes to
reauthorize CHIP for two years, but calls for an immediate cap to the availability of
Federal matching funds. The FFY 2018 budget proposes to reduce CHIP funding by
$2.756 billion, from $15.952 billion in FFY 2017 to $13.196 billion in FFY 2018. The
budget also proposes to serve children only up to 250 percent of the Federal poverty
level. Currently, California serves children up to 266 percent.

Foster Care and Permanency: The President's budget provides $8.7 billion for the
Foster Care, Adoption Assistance, Guardianship Assistance, and Independent Living

Nwashinglon DC Updates 2017/wash 052617_Pres Budget



Each Supervisor
May 26, 2017
Page 3

programs, including Title IV-E. These programs are proposed to receive a slight
increase in funding consistent with program growth.

Programs through which the County receives funding that are proposed {o be eliminated
in FFY 2018 include the following:

s Community Development Block Grants ($3 billion)

¢ Home Investment Partnerships Program ($950 million)

o HUD-VASH Vouchers ($40 million)

e Community Services Block Grant ($715 million)

» State Criminal Alien Assistance Program ($210 million}

¢ Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program ($3.39 billion)

» Community Service Employment for Older Americans ($400 million)

Programs through which the County receives funding that are proposed to be reduced
in FFY 2018 include the following:

Program (Dollars in Miilions) “i FEY:2017: ... "FFY 2018. |:.. Change .
Section 8 Tenant-Based Rental Assistance $20,292 $19,318 -3974
' Section 8 Project-Based RentalAssistance 11011 11 $10:816/[ 0 1910750 . | =365

Homeless Assistance Grants _ $2,383 $2,250 -$133
'Public Housing Capital Fund. i e 0 T stiondlli i eRoslll ST 3

f
Public Housing Operating Fund $4,400 $3,900 -$500

RyanWhits ADSGrantsl -0 [0 82319 $2.0601( 1 850
Child Care and Development Block Grant $2,856 | $2,761 -$05
IMentalHealthiBlock Grant A0 0 0 0 0 95631 0 S4M6l 1 SaT
Hospital Preparedness Program _ 255 _ §2 -$28
‘RuBlic Health Emergency Preparedness i Wil 77 g660 | 85510 1T 25109
State Homeland Security Grant -$63
[{Urban Areal Securtylinitiative FE B il EE T De580 01 is4dgili i g sy
 Byme Justice Assistance Grant $335 $250 -$85
IEniergency Management Performance Grant L 1 $3500 . $2791 L IST

WIOA Adult Training
IWIOANSHATRIRNG -
kers

i

WIOA Dislocated Wor

$699 -$322

NV ashington DC Updates 2017/wash 052617 _Pres Budgst



Each Supervisor
May 26, 2017
Page 4

Other Programs of County Interest

Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC): The President’s budget proposes to pursue
a Base Realignment and Ciosure round beginning in 2021 in order to potentially save
$2 billion by 2027,

Public Works: The President's budget requests $17.982 million _in operations and
maintenance funding for the Los Angeles County Drainage Area (LACDA) and
$2 million for the Whittier Narrows Dam.

infrastructure Initiative: The President’'s budget includes $200 billion in additional
outlays for infrastructure priorities beyond the regular departmental requests. However,
it does not break out how that funding would be distributed among categories such as
highways; bridges; water quality and supply; ports; broadband; and veterans’ facilities.
Furthermore, the Administration’s proposal would rely on the principles of making
targeted federal investments on transformative regional projects, encouraging states
and localities to raise their own dedicated revenues for infrastructure, divesting certain
functions better performed by the private sector, and leveraging more public-private

partnerships.

Transportation: The President's budget proposes a $928 million reduction in the
Transit New Starts program and fo limit funding to projects with existing full funding
grant agreements only. The budget notes that local transit projects should be funded by
states and localities that benefit from their use. This proposal may penalize
communities which have voter-approved local tax measures and may hegatively impact
the investments in new transit lines_in_Los Angeles County via the Measure R and
Measure M transporiation sales fax measures.

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA): The President’s budget reflects a multi-year
process to remove the responsibility of providing air traffic control services from the FAA
and placing it under the control of a private non-profit corporation.

Immigration: The President's budget proposes increased funding for border security
and immigration enforcement, including: 1) $2.6 billion for border infrastructure,
including funding to design and construct a physical wall along the southern border;
2) more than $300 million to hire 500 new Border Patrol Agents and 1,000 new
Immigration and Customs Enforcement law enforcement personnel in 2018; 3) an
additional $1.5 billion for expanded detention, transportation, and removal of illegal
immigrants; and 4) an additional $214 million to hire 75 additional immigration judge
teams.

NMWashingion DC Updates 204 7/wash 052617 _Pres Budget



Each Supervisor
May 26, 2017
Page 5

This office is working with affected departments to determine the potential
County impact of these proposals.

Budget Outlook

As this office previously reported in the March 17, 2017 memorandum on the
President's “America First” budget blueprint, the County is likely to see some reductions
in domestic discretionary programs in such areas as public health, community
development, and workforce training. However, the budget blueprint was largely silent
oh potential cuts in mandatory (entittement) programs such as Medicaid, SNAP, and
TANF, which are not funded through the annual appropriations process. |f enacted, the
proposed cuts in entitlement programs in the President's FFY 2018 full budget proposal
would .have a severe impact on the County through the potential elimination of the
Affordable Care Act's Medicaid expansion, a potential 25 percent state match for food
stamp benefits by FFY 2023, and a proposed 10 percent cut in TANF funding.

The reaction to many of the President’s budget proposals was widespread opposition
among Democrats, and Republicans have also expressed notable concerns with the
major_reductions on spending. Legislation to implement the Administration’s budget
must be passed before September 30, 2017, the end of the Federal Fiscal Year. In
particular, major reductions in entitlement programs will be difficuit to enact in such a
short time frame, and it is unclear if the votes exist in both the House and Senate to
implement them. In addition, the House and Senate are just beginning the
appropriations process for FFY 2018, and the Senate has still not committed to
advancing a companion bill to the American Health Care Act. The Administration and
leaders in Congress also want to pursue a comprehensive tax reform package in the
next few months despite the fact that nothing specific has been introduced. Finally,
Congress will also need to take action on the debt ceiling in the fall.

With the heavy legislative agenda facing Congress, it is uncertain if leaders will be able
to pass legislation to adopt the President's proposed budget, particularly with the
significant cuts proposed to entitlement programs. Major changes are particularly
problematic in the Senate, which has a 52 - 48 partisan divide. The fact that there are
only ten legislative weeks ieft in FFY 2017 presents significant timing challenges to the
Republican leadership in both chambers.

We will continue to keep you advised.

SH:JMR
OR:S58:ma

c: All Department Heads

NfWashington DC Updales 2017/wash 052617 _Pres Budge!



/172017 Change in Social Security Disability: HIV-Positive Recipients May Now Have to Go Through Reviews - TheBody.com

The C-:mpieta HIVf AlDS Resouiree
Print this page + Back to Web version of article

NEWS

Change in Social Security Disability: HI'V-Positive Recipients May
Now Have to Go Through Reviews

By Enid Vézquez
May 31, 2017

People living with HIV (PLWH) who receive government disability checks have previously received that
income without going through reviews.

As of March 1, the Social Security Administration (SSA) began requiring that PLWH prove they are still :
disabled. Like others receiving disability payments, they will have to go through a Continuing Disability Review
(CDR). These are conducted every one to seven years.

There are exceptions. Not subjected fo a CDR are those with HIV who have

Multicentric Castleman disease,

primary central nervous system lymphoma,
primary effusion lymphoma,

progressive multifocal leukoencephalopathy, or
pulmonary Kaposi sarcoma.

"The big take-away here: if you are receiving disability benefits, it is very important to stay in medical care.
Document every symptom and have your doctor note them. Document, document, document," said Marina
Kurakin of the Legal Council for Health Justice, in Chicago, who wrote "Money Trail" in the November +
December 2016 issue of Positively Aware.

She said that one of the biggest concems now is those who received disability based on mental health status but
are not currently seeing a therapist and individuals who are working part-time while recetving disability
benefits.

Previously, PLWH were screened out of CDRs. That simply means that they did not have to undergo the
reviews. Today, some of those people are actually very healthy. A review may put their disability income at risk.

It's not yet known when CDRs are expected to begin for people living with HIV. Legal advocates for PLWH,
however, point out that the Social Security Administration moves slowly. If there are staff and budget cuts, SSA
can be expected to move even more slowly.

Said Bashirat Osunmakinde, Director of Care for the AIDS Foundation of Chicago, in an e-mail to area
providers, "The important take-away for HIV-positive folks on disability is this: do your best to keep up with
your medical appointments, get all the care you need, and make sure your doctor/nurse/PA/therapist knows
everything that's going on with you. If you do not have ongoing medical records, then when your CDR comes
up you won't have much evidence that you are still disabled. Do not tell your doctor, I'm fine,' if in fact you are
having a lot of trouble with diarrhea and fatigue and neuropathy. Many clients have been so used to their long-
standing symptoms that they do not even talk about them with their medical providers anymore, and when they



&/1/2017 Change in Social Security Disability: HIV-Positive Recipierts May Now Have to Go Through Reviews - TheBody.com

do not communicate their ongoing, longstanding problems to their providers, those problems disappear from the
medical record, and thus no longer exist in the eyes of Social Security."

Osunmakinde also strongly advised Social Security disability recipients to stress to their providers the need to
chart everything. "Often, providers will not note in medical records the longstanding, unchanging problems,
because they are not actively treating them," he wrote.

The SSA change came about after the agency revised its criteria for evaluating HIV as a disability on January
17.

See "Yes, SSA Disability Just Made a Slight Change for HIV-Positive Recipients; No, You Shouldn't Freak Out"
at thebody com. Information about the SSA change, while a little technical, can be found at

secure.ssa.gov/apps10/reference nsf/links/02282017105458AM.

This article was provided by Test Positive Aware Network. It is a part of the publication Positively Aware. You
can find this article online by typing this address into your Web browser:
http://www.thebody.com/content/79969/change-in-social-security-disability-hiv-positive-.html

General Disclaimer: TheBody.com is designed for educational purposes only and is not engaged in rendering
medical advice or professional services. The information provided through TheBody.com should not be used for
diagnosing or treating a health problem or a disease. It is not a substitute for professional care. If you have or
suspect you may have a health problem, consult your health care provider.



THE BENRY J.

KAISER

FAMILY

FOUNDATION Filling the need for hrusted information on national health issues...

May 2017 | Issue Brief

What is at Stake in ACA Repeal and Replace for People
with HIV?

Lindsey Dawson, jennifer Kates

As debate continues surrounding repealing and replacing or transforming aspects of the Affordable Care Act
{ACA), and as one such proposal has passed the U.S House of Representatives, questions remain about the
potential impact of such changes on high needs populations, including people with HIV. Prior to the ACA,
many people with HIV faced significant barriers to accessing health coverage despite national treatment
guidelines recommending starting antiretroviral therapy at time of diagnosis.! Several of the ACA’s key
provisions addressed these barriers (see Table 1) and recent analysis demonstrates that the ACA significantly
increased insurance coverage for people with HIV.?

Table 1. Key ACA Provisions Expanding Access and Eliminating Barriers to Coverage for People

with HIV

. Creatlon of Marketplaces for purchasmg private coverag (Includlng subsidies for: those 100 400% FPL)
Medicaid expansion with ellgublllty based on Income and resndency alone (Effectlvely, state optlon 32 states

Pro ibition of pre-existing condltlons exclusions
End to rate settlng based on health status - > R
" Elimination of annual and lifetime benefits llmlts S

. Creation of a benefits floor, including prescription drug ‘coverage -

This brief explores the potential implications of different ACA repeal scenarios and related administrative
actions on people with HIV. In particular, it looks at the main policy areas under consideration that stand to
affect people with HIV the most: (1) the future of the ACA’s Medicaid expansion; (2) changes to the traditional
Medicaid program; and (3) the pathway forward for private market reforms, including the ACA’s health
insurance marketplaces. (For a detailed overview of the major policy proposals that have been introduced to
date, including the amended American Health Care Act (AHCA), see Kaiser Family Foundation’s interactive
ACA replacement plan comparison tool).?

Changes to Medicaid Would Likely Have the Biggest Impact
on People with HIV

Medicaid is the single largest source of coverage for people with HIV in the U.S. and its role for those with HIV
has significantly expanded under the ACA. Indeed, the Medicaid expansion provision is arguably the aspect of
the law that has had the most far reaching effects on people with HIV, driving a nationwide increase in access



to insurance.* Proposals that have been put forward, including the amended AHCA which has now passed the
House, have sought to change both the Medicaid expansion and the traditional Medicaid program.

The Medicaid Expansion. Prior to the ACA, under federal law, individuals could not qualify for Medicaid
based on income alone.® Enrollees had to be both low income and fall into another category, known as
“categorical eligibility,” such as disability, pregnancy, or being parents. This excluded most low-income
childless adults from coverage and created a particular “catch-22” for many low-income people with HIV who
could not qualify for Medicaid until they were already quite sick and disabled, often as a result of developing
AIDS, despite the availability of recommended medications that could prevent such disease progression.® The
ACA fundamentally changed this, requiring states to expand their Medicaid programs to cover individuals
below 138% FPL based on income and residency status alone; although a June 2012 US Supreme Court
decision effectively made the expansion a state option. To date 32 states (including D.C.) have expanded their
programs (where an estimated 62% of people with HIV live).” As part of the expansion, the federal government
offered states a historically generous federal match to cover this new population, with 100% federal funding for
the first few years, gradually decreasing to 90% in 2020 and beyond.? A recent analysis found that increased
Medicaid coverage in expansion states drove a nationwide increase in coverage for people with HIV in 2014,
the first year after the Medicaid expansion went into effect.’

As part of the repeal and replace debate, the Medicaid expansion has been a major focus because of the impact
unraveling this source of coverage would have on the 32 states that have expanded and the millions enrolled
through this pathway. The AHCA would retain the expansion but use the (less generous) traditional state
match for new enrollees starting in 2020 and for existing enrollees without continuous coverage. A less
generous match could mean states would be less willing to cover the new adult population in the years to come
and in fact several states already have triggers in place to rescind coverage for the current group if the federal
match declines to certain levels. It would also provide a disincentive for other states to expand in the future.

The Traditional Medicaid Program. Proposals to transform the current open-ended nature of federal
matching funds to states for the traditional Medicaid program have also been part of the debate. Proposals,
including converting the program to a block grant or per capita cap would fundamentally change the financing
and structure of the program and shift costs to states.'® The AHCA proposes a per capita cap approach as a way
to limit federal spending and increase state flexibility. However, such an approach could impact access for
people with HIV. Under restructured and constrained financing, states would probably respond by reducing
services or eligibility to accommodate a loss in federal dollars. Beneficiaries may see increased cost-sharing and
providers, reductions in reimbursement rates. As these programs could be structured in a multitude of ways, it
will be important to watch how proposals might impact access to coverage for people with HIV in terms of
eligibility, benefits, cost-sharing, beneficiary protections, and enrollment requirements. These proposals to
change per beneficiary spending would apply to the HIV disability population in traditional Medicaid as well as
the newly eligible expansion population.

Administrative Actions. Apart from repealing the expansion or fundamentally changing the financing and
structure of the Medicaid program through legislation, the administration can permit broader flexibility for
states through the use of 1115 Medicaid waivers which allow states to experiment with new approaches that can
result in significant changes. On March 14, 2017, Health and Human Services (HHS) Secretary Price and

What iy at Stake in ACA Repeal and Replace Tor People with HAV? 2



Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) Administrator Seema Verma sent a letter to governors
outlining the administration’s approach to Medicaid policy. It highlighted the flexibility the administration
intends to provide to states with respect to state plan amendments and 1115 waivers. It specifically notes the
potential for waivers to include higher beneficiary cost-sharing and adopt alternative benefit designs with
features such as health savings accounts and work requirements, all provisions that could impact access to care
and treatment for people with HIV."

Proposed Changes to the Individual Insurance Market Also
Stand to Affect People with HIV

The ACA made sigriiﬁcant changes to the private insurance market, removing many barriers to access and
introducing new benefits and non-diserimination standards. Current legislative proposals and administration
actions that seek to modify aspects of the law could scale back some of these changes.

Pre-existing condition protections and rate setting. Prior to the ACA, it was nearly impossible for
people with HIV to access private coverage through the individual market. In most states, issuers were
permitted 1o take health status and history into account when deciding whether to issue an individual policy,
including under what terms, and in determining premium cost.'? Most with HIV were considered “uninsurable”
and either denied individual market coverage outright or, when offered, rates were typically unaffordable
and/or policies included sweeping exclusions.'? Under the ACA, individuals are guaranteed access to health
insurance through the individual market regardless of health, rates cannot be set based on health status, and
lifetime and annual limits are prohibited. Retaining this provision had been a central feature of the original
AHCA but doing so is difficult without the individual mandate. The AHCA'’s approach is to require a surcharge
for those without continuous coverage. The amended version of AHCA passed by the House would significantly
erode this protection, permitting states to use a waiver to charge people with pre-existing conditions higher
premiums and to sell policies without the Essential Health Benefits (EHBs — more discussion on EHBs
below)."* Such changes could mean that access to coverage may again be more limited for those with HIV and
other pre-existing conditions. |

Financial Assistance. One of the key provisions in the ACA is the creation of health insurance marketplaces
which offer a centralized way for consumers to purchase insurance coverage and financial assistance for those
with incomes between 100-400% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL). This includes Advanced Premium Tax
Credits (APTCs), which make the cost of premiums more affordable and cost-sharing reductions (CSRs) which

What ts at Stake in ACA Repeal and Replace for People with HIV? 3



limit out-of-pocket expenses for the subset with incomes between 100-250% FPL. People with HIV are
significantly more likely to be low-income and thus these subsidies will have been particularly important for
this population.’® Without access to APTCs and CSRs, which nearly 10 million enrollees have, many would not
be able to afford insurance coverage, including those with HIV.’®

The replacement policies that have been put forward would repeal or change the way financial assistance in the
private market is provided. The AHCA would do away with cost-sharing reductions and offer a flat tax credit to
be used towards premiums that vary by age but not by income; meaning those with the lowest incomes might
have faced the greatest difficulty in affording coverage. Also, the credits would not vary by region (based on a
benchmark plan) as they do under the ACA so those living in areas with very high premiums might face greater
difficulty affording coverage.

Benefits Provisions. Prior to the ACA, there was no standardized federal benefit package in the private
market. Under the AC4, individual and small group insurance policies must cover a suite of 10 “essential health
benefits,” including prescription drugs (see full list in note); ' while whole health and comprehensive care is
critical for people with HIV, access to antiretroviral treatment is the most fundamental benefit. Allowing states
to obtain waivers of the EHB requirement, as is currently being discussed, would potentially limit coverage for
HIV care and treatment. Even if the EHBs are retained, how those benefits are defined could be changed
through rulemaking and redefining of EHBs could reduce access to care and treatment for people with HIV.

Administrative Actions. The administration can also reverse past and create new regulations through the
rulemaking process or make and modify policy by issuing sub-regulatory guidance. Changes to rule making can
impact how the ACA is implemented including through benefit design, cost-sharing, oversight, beneficiary
protections, and market stability. For instance, HHS released a final Market Stabilization rule in April of 2017
that will change continuity of coverage requirements, shorten the open enrollment period, tighten special
enrollment periods, loosen Actuarial Value (plan generosity) requirements, and pullback on network adequacy
and essential community provider requirements and regulatory oversight.'® Loosening of the network and
essential community provider networks in particular could be limiting for people with HIV as it may mean
fewer Ryan White and infectious disease providers in plan networks.

Alongside the Market Stabilization rule discussed above, HHS released guidance on plan certification for 2018
and beyond."® Building on an Executive Order, CMS detailed its plans to defer certain plan regulatory and
oversight functions to states using the federal marketplace related to licensing, good standing, network
adequacy (as also addressed in the final rule), and in some cases formulary review.?® It is unclear how this shift
towards state oversight will affect such access.

Lastly, starting in 2017 states are permitted to submit 1332 waivers requests, which like 1115 waivers allow
states to experiment with coverage requirements and delivery but are specific to private health insurance and
the marketplaces (rather than Medicaid). On March 13, 2017, Secretary Price sent a letter to the governors
encouraging the use of 1332 waivers. Such waivers provide states with greater flexibility to shape their private
markets including plan structure and marketplaces as insurance purchasing centers.

What Is at Stake in ACA Repeal and Replace for People with HIV? 4



The Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program Will Likely Become Even
More Important for People with HIV

The Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program is the federal health safety-net program providing primary HIV medical
care, treatment, and support services for uninsured and underinsured people with the disease. Prior to the
ACA, Ryan White supported about half of all people diagnosed with HIV and most already had some form of
coverage (72% in 2013). Since the implementation of the major ACA reforms, the number of Ryan White clients
has increased slightly and the share with coverage has also increased, suggesting that the program continues to
play an important role in the lives of people with HIV regardless of insurance status.®

For those who gained coverage in the private market or through Medicaid under the ACA, Ryan White has been
able to fill in the gaps in coverage and provide critical support services not typically covered by traditional
payers, such as case management, transportation, and extended provider visits. In addition, in 2015 nearly
30,000 people with HIV receive insurance purchasing assistance through the Ryan White Program, an activity
that has increased under the ACA as people with HIV had greater and more affordable access to the private
market.?2?* For those who did not gain new coverage — largely because they live in a state that has not
expanded Medicaid - Ryan White continues to provide their primary HIV care and treatment.

Under an ACA repeal, coverage gains that have occurred as a result of the Jaw through the Marketplaces and
Medicaid expansion could be lost. It is likely that individuals who lose coverage would return to Ryan White to
meet their full HIV care and treatment needs, but it is unclear whether the program would be able to absorb
clients into traditional HIV care and treatment with existing resources and without resorting to waitlists (see
Text Box: Lessons from History). Additionally, Ryan White is not an insurance program and covers only HIV
related care so those who have gained insurance coverage and transition back to Ryan White exclusively would
face losing access to coverage for other health conditions and emergency services. While the program would
still be permitted to assist clients with the cost of insurance, the ability of Ryan White to do so as commonly as
it does today without the ACA’s subsidies and rate setting protections is in question since by statute such
arrangements must be cost-effective for the program.*

In addition to the impact changes to the ACA would have on the program, the federal budget process also plays
a critical role in the future of Ryan White. While the Trump Administration’s “budget blueprint” or so-called
“skinny budget” calls Ryan White out as a priority safety net provider, it also proposes an 18% cut for HHS
overall. It is yet to be seen whether the full budget (expected in May) will preserve current levels of funding or
propose cuts to the program and ultimately, how Congress will finalize FY18 appropriations. If cuts are
realized, the Ryan White Program may not be able to sustain existing levels of service provision, especially if
more individuals seek assistance from a program with less funding,

what is at Stake in ACA Repeal and Raplaca for People with HiV? 5



Endnotes

! Department of Health and Human Services. Panel on Antiretroviral Guidelines for Adults and Adolescents. Guidelines for the use of
antiretroviral agents in HIV-1-infected adults and adolescents. 2016. Available
at hitps://aidsinfonih.zov/contentiiles Svenidalines/adultandadolescentplpdi

E: xS AL LATLPRE S 2 IY A% AL A TAR AL

2 Xates, J. and Dawson, L. Kaiser Family Foundation. Insurance Coverage Changes for People with HIV Under the ACA. February
2017. hitn:/ ki org/bivaids Assue-brief/insurance-coverage-changes-forpeoplewith-hiv-under-the-aca/

3 Kaiser Family Foundation. Compare Proposals to Replace The Affordable Care Act. 2017. hitp:/ /kiforg/interactive/proposais-to-
replace-the-affordable-careract/

4 Kates, J. and Dawson, L. Kaiser Family Foundation. Insurance Coverage Changes for People with HIV Under the ACA. February
2017. btin:/ [t org/Bivaids lssue-briefiusurance-coverage-changes-for-people-with-hiv-under-the-aca/

5 Some states used a waiver to create an eligibility pathway with their own funds to cover this population.

® Department of Health and Human Services. Panel on Antiretroviral Guidelines for Adults and Adolescents. Guidelines for the use of
antiretroviral agents in HIV-1-infected adults and adolescents. 2016. Available
at hittps://aidsinfonih gov/contentfiles/lvanidelines/adultandadolescentyl pdf

7 KFF analysis of data from CDC Atlas (HIV Prevalence, 2014) and Kaiser Family Foundation. State Health Facts. Status of State Action
on the Medicaid Expansion Decision. hitp. //kff ora/healifereform/state-indicator/state-qotipi-arownd-expanding-medicaid-wnder

the-affordable-core-nol/feurrentiimeframe=olsortModele 37 Beacolld%es: ool ovation%ear Banemiliaa G anaee s ants=1}

8 In the traditional Medicaid program, the highest match a state receives is Mississippi’s at 75.65% and the Median (including DC)
match is Oklahoma’s at 58.57%.

® Kates, J. and Dawson, L. Kaiser Family Foundation. Insurance Coverage Changes for People with HIV Under the ACA. February
2017, htig//itorg/Mivaidslssue-brief/insurance-coverage-changes-for-people-with-hiv-under-the-sea/

1° For more information, on block grants and per capita caps see: — Robin Rudowitz. Kaiser Family Foundation. 5 Key Questions:
Medicaid Block Grants & Per Capita Caps. 2017, hitp://kff.orgfimedicaid/issue-brief/ 5-kev-guestions-medicaid-block-zrants-ner-
canita-caps/

' Price, Thomas E. (Sec. HHS) and Verma, Seema (Administrator CMS). Letter to Governors. March 14, 2017. Available at:
hipsy/ Swww hhs sov/sites/default /files fsec-price-adimin-verma-te.ndf

12 For a detailed look at pre-ACA insurance practices related to eligibility and rate setting see: Claxton, G., Levitt, L., and Pollitz, K. Pre-
ACA Market Practices Provide Lessons for ACA Replacement Approaches. 2017. litp://kff.org/healih-costs/issue:hrief/nre-aca:
market-pracices-orovide-dessons-for-asca-replacement-aporoaches/

13 Pollitz, Karen. Sorian, Richard, and Thomas, Kathy. Kaiser Family Foundation. How accessible is Individual Health Insurance for
consumers in less-than-perfect health? How accessible is Individual Health Insurance for consumers in less-than-perfect health?.
June 2oo1. httn: i fkff ore/healih-costs Sreport /how-aocessible-is-individual-healih-insuranee-for-u/

V4 MacArthur amendment to the AHCA. Available: httn: /S wenw politice com/f/2id=0000o1sb-ara0-dieo-addb-Frdeneccooon

15 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Behavioral and Clinical Characteristics of Persons Recelving Medical Care for HIV
Infection—Medical Monitoring Project, United States, 2013 Cycle (June 2013-May 2014). HIV Surveillance Special Report 16.
http://www.cdc.gov/hiv/library/ reports/surveillance/#panel2. January 2016.

hitps:f fwwiecdegov/bivipdf lihrary reports fsurveiliance fede-liv-hesr-mmpe-2013.0d{

'8 Marketplace Enrollees Receiving Financial Assistance as a Share of the Subsidy-Eligible Population. hitp://kff.org/health-
reform/state-indicatormarkeiplace-enrollees-cligible-for-finaneial-assistance-ss-a-ghare-of-subgidy-aligible-
sonulation/Zewrentiimelame=q

7 The Essential Health Benefits package includes: While the benefits are not defined specifically, except with respect to certain
preventative services, impacted plans must cover services related to the following categories: ambulatory services, emergency services,
hospitalization, maternity and newhorn care, mental health and substance use services (on par with other health services), prescription
drugs, rehabilitative and habilitative services, laboratory services, preventive and wellness services, and pediatric services.

'8 82 Fed. Reg. 18346-18382 (April 18, 2017), available at https://www federabreeister.sov/docorents/aoiz/oa/18/a017-
ar7igipatient-nrotection-and-affordable-care-act-market-stabilization.

1% Department of Health and Human Services. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. Guidance to States on Review of Qualified
Health Plan Standards in Federally-facilitated Marketplaces for the Plan Years 2018 and Later. April 13, 2017.
Witne /M ems pov/OCHG Resources/Repdations-and-Guidance/Dovwnloads /08 P-Cartifeation - Reviews-Guidance-41317.04f

what is at Stake in ACA Repeal and Replace Tor People with HIV? &



20 president Donald J. Trump. The White House. Executive Order Minimizing the Economic Burden of the Patient Protection and

minimizing-economic-burden-patient-profection-and

2! Kates, J. and Dawson, L. Kaiser Family Foundation. Insurance Coverage Changes for People with HIV Under the ACA. February
2017, it/ org/hiveids/issue-brief/insurance-coverage-changes-for-people-with-hiv-under-the-aca/

22 National Alliance of State & Territorial ATDS Directors (NASTAD). National ADAP Monitoring Project: 2016 Annual Report. 2016.
https:/ Awww.nastad.org/sites/defanlt/Sles/2016-National ARAE- Menitoring- Projeci-Annual-Report.ndf

23 Dawson, L. and Kates, J. Kaiser Family Foundation. The Ryan White Program and Insurance Purchasing in the ACA Era: An Early
Look at Five States. 2015. htip:/ fkffore Divaids fissue-brief/the-rvan-white-program-md-insurance-purchasing-inthe-aca-era f

24 Compared to the cost of directly purchasing medications.

The Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation Headquarters: 2400 Sand Hill Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025 | Phone 650-854-0400
Washington Offices and Barbara Jordan Conference Center: 1330 G Street, NW, Washington, DC 20005 | Phone 202-347-5270

www.Iff.org | Email Alerts: kif.org/email | facebook.com/KaiserFamilyFoundation | twitter.com/KaiserFamFound
Filling the need for h-usted information on national health issues, the Kaiser Family Foundation is a nenprofit organization based in Menlo Park, California.



County of Los Angeles
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street, Room 713, Los Angeles, California 80012

{213) 9741101
http/fcen.lacounty gov
SACHI A. HAMAI Board of Supervisors
Chief Executive Officer HILDA L. SOLIS
March 13, 2017 First District
MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS
Second District
SHEILA KUEHL
To: Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas, Chairman . hird District
; : ; JANICE HAHN
gupewgsor gﬁd? LkSOIrI!? Fourth District
upervisor ohelia Rué KATHRYN BARGER
Supervisor Janice Hahn Fifth District
Supervisor Kathryry Barger

From: Sachi A. Hafai
Chief Execu Officer

WASHINGTON, D.C. UPDATE ON HOUSE COMMITTEES’ ACTION ON THE AMERICAN
HEALTH CARE ACT

On March 9, 2017, the House Ways and Means Committee and the House Energy and
Commerce Comrmittee passed legislation along party lines that would repeal and replace
significant portions of the Affordable Care Act (ACA). The measure, H.R. 277, the
American Health Care Act (AHCA), was released only three days prior to its approval.

The House Ways and Means Committee, which has jurisdiction over the tax provisions of
the AHCA, passed its section of the bill by a vote of 23 to 16. The House Energy and
Commerce Committee, which has jurisdiction over Medicaid and other provisions, approved
its section by a vote of 31 to 23. The AHCA now proceeds to the House Budget Committee
which will combine the committee-approved measures for the budget reconciliation process,
prior to its consideration on the House floor.

Major Provisions of the American Health Care Act

The American Health Care Act proposes the following major provisions of importance to the
County.

Medicaid Expansion: The AHCA would repeal the state option to expand Medicaid
coverage to childless adults with incomes up to 133 percent of the Federal Poverty Level
(FPL) effective December 31, 2019, States that have not opted into the Medicaid
expansion, could do so and enroll individuals through 2019 at the enhanced 90 percent
Federal match rate. In 2020, enrollment in the Medicaid expansion would “freeze” and
states would no longer be able to sign-up new enroliees at the enhanced rate. After 2020,
states would be able to continue to enroli individuals in Medicaid; however, Federal
reimbursement would drop to the state's current Federal match rate. In California, the
match rate is 50 percent.

“To Enrich Lives Through Effective And Caring Service"

Please Conserve Paper - This Document and Copies are Two-Sided
Intra-County Correspondence Sent Electranically Only



Each Supervisor
March 13, 2017
Page 2

As previously reported, California has disproportionately benefited from the ACA's Medicaid
expansions relative to other states. In FFY 2015, the State alone received
35 percent ($20.3 billion) of all Federal expenditures on medical assistance provided to
newly eligible adult Medicaid enrollees.

Medicaid Per Capita Cap: The AHCA would convert Medicaid from an open-ended
entitlement program to a *per capita cap” system in which states would receive a capped
amount for each person enrolled in Medicaid. The per capita caps would go into effect in
2020 and would establish different funding levels for specified populations enrolled in
Medicaid. The baseline rate would be based on the FFY 2016 Medicaid enroliment and
expenditures, and would increase annually using the medical care component of the
Consumer Price Index. Capping the Federal share of Medicaid would shift the
proportionate costs exceeding the Federal cap to states and counties.

Medicaid Eligibility: The AHCA would enact various changes related to Medicaid
eligibility, including eliminating expanded presumptive eligibility determination conducted at
hospitals and requiring states to determine eligibility no less than every six months for
persons in the expansion population. The AHCA would also enact changes to the Medicaid
Program which existed prior to the enactment of the ACA. These changes include
eliminating three-month retroactive eligibility for new enrollees, after October 1, 2017, and
eliminating the “reasonable opportunity period” for Medicaid applicants to provide proof of
citizenship or immigration status.

Medicaid Disproportionate Share Hospital {DSH) Payments: The ACA included
significant reductions in DSH payments to hospitals with high volumes of Medicald and
uninsured patients based on the assumption that the Medicaid expansion and increased
rates of health insurance coverage would reduce hospitals’ burden of uncompensated care.
The AHCA would restore the DSH reductions for current expansion states in
FFY 2020 and for non-expansion states in FFY 2018.

Public Health and Prevention Fund: The AHCA would eliminate the Public Health and
Prevention Fund which provides a permanent funding stream to augment prevention and
public health services, including diabetes prevention, preventive health screening,
laboratory and disease tracking activities, and comprehensive immunization program
services, including vaccinations to control infectious disease outbreaks.

Community First Choice Option: The AHCA would sunset the six percentage point
increase in the Federal match for the Community First Choice {CFC) option to states that
provide personal care services in a home or community-based setting to individuals needing
an institutional level of care. In FFY 2015, California received $320.5 million for the In-
Home Supportive Services (IHSS) Program from the CFC option. A significant number of
IHSS recipients are being served under this Federal option which helps to keep some of the
most vuinerable residents in their homes and out of iong-term care.

NWashington DC Updates 2017/wash 031317



Each Supervisor
March 13, 2017
Page 3

Employer and Individual Mandates: The AHCA would repeal the mandate that
businesses with 50 or more fuil-time {(or part-time equivalent) employees offer health
insurance to full-time employees. [t would also repeal the requirement for individuals to
purchase health care coverage or pay a penalty.

Cadillac Tax: The AHCA would retain the 40 percent excise tax on high-cost employer-
sponsored health care coverage. However, the implementation date would be delayed from
January 1, 2020, to January 1, 2025.

Legislative Outlook

On March 13, 2017, the Congressional Budget Office (CBO) and the Joint Committee on
Taxation (JCT) released their estimates of the budgetary effects for the AHCA. According
to the CBO and JCT, the AHCA would reduce Federal deficits by $337 billion from
FFY 2017 to FFY 2026. The largest savings would come from reductions in Medicaid
spending and from the elimination of health care subsidies. CBO and JCT estimate that the
number of uninsured persons would rise to 21 million in 2020 and then to 24 million in 20286,
largely due to changes in Medicaid. '

House leadership expects to have the legislation on the House floor prior to the Easter
recess in early April, and has indicated that they expect to secure the votes for passage.
The Senate also is expected to consider the AHCA prior to the recess in early April;
however, Senate Republicans have already indicated that they plan to offer amendments to
the measure when it is considered on the Senate floor.

Pursuant to the Board-approved motion on February 21, 2017, the County’s
Washington, DC advocates are advocating in strong opposition to this legislation
that would have a significant impact on the County by repealing major provisions of
the ACA and the Medicaid program which provide critical services to our residents.

This office is also working with the Department of Health Services and other affected

departments to further determine the County impact of specific provisions proposed
under the AHCA.

We will continue to keep you advised.

SAHJIMR
OR:VE:Im

c. All Department Heads
Legislative Strategists

NfwWashington DC Updates 2017/wash 031317



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 = Los Angeles, CA 90010  TEL (213) 738-2816 = FAX (213) 637-4748
http://hiv.lacounty.gov

16. AIDS EDUCATION TRAINING CENTERS (AETCs)



AETC AIDS Education &
Training Center Program

Pacific

Los Angeles

Pacific AIDS Education
and Training Center

Last Tuesday HIV Training

JUNE 27, 2017
9:00am—12:00PM

Registration begins at 8:30am

8:30am — Registration
9:00am — Part1

10:30am — Break

10:45am — Part 2

12:15pm — Closing/Box Lunch

LOCATION:

Charles Drew University

Cobb Building Boardroom 281
1731 East 118th

Los Angeles, CA 90059

Blue and Green Metro Lines
Parking
Eree Parking at CDU
structure on 118th St
Parking Lot Address: 1740 E. 118th St
Los Angeles CA 90059
o Thisisa FREE training

o This course is geared towards medical professionals
who work with HIV+ patients.

e 3 CEs available for LCSWs, MFTs and RNs

o Certificates of completion will be available to partici-
pants after completion of online evaluation.

s For disability accommodations or to submit grievances
please contact Kevin-Paul at

kevinpaul@HIVtrainingCDU.org

Continuing LCSW and MFT Education Credit Courses
meet the qualifications for 3 Hours of continuin
education credit for MFTs and/or LCSWs as requir
b?; the California Association of Marriage and Family
Therapists. Provider #PCE 128280 Continuing Nurs-
ing Education Credit.

These courses are approved for 3 Contact Hours by
the California Board of Registered Nursing.
Provider #15484, *Pharmacists registered in CA may
use BRN CEs as per their governing board.

NEVER MIX, NEVER WORRY:

What Providers Should Know about
HIV and Psychotropics
- _

Presented by
Andrew Kurtz, LMFT
James A. Peck, PsyD

UCLA Integrated Substance Abuse Programs
Pacific Southwest Addiction Technology Transfer Center

REGISTER ONLINE:
h : invurl.com/NeverMix-NeverWorr

3y tf F this traini tici U e to:

* Describe the epidemiology, neurobiology, and mechanism of action of psychotropic

medication use.

* Identify at least two (2) psychotropics and the corresponding mental health diagnosis they

are used to treat.

* Discuss at least three treatment interventions to avoid drug-drug interactions and/or

enhance medication use as directed.

* Describe two medication side effects that could be misdiagnosed as a symptom of HIV or a

mental health disorder.

The CDU PAETC Last Tuesday HIV Training Series is a free event for providers
who serve patients living with HIV.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMISSION ON HIV

3530 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1140 * Los Angeles, CA 90010 = TEL (213) 738-2816 * FAX (213) 637-4748
http://hiv.lacounty.gov

19. ANNOUCEMENTS



L S

Do You Identlfy as

Are You an HIV+
Transgender Woman,
Gay Male, Bisexual Male, or

Two Spirit?

We are enrolling HIV+
individuals to share their opinions
L and experiences about health care ‘

Check your eligibility here:
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/MaroonHealth
For more information email:

health@maroonsociety.com
Call:

213-222-8504 MAROON SOCIETY
PARTICIANTS WILL RECEIVE $150 CASH!




\\\\\\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
m  rollowusor
y } AN A s ‘,\u\\_\\\‘\\

i ’//f/ff/ﬁ'r/irr. PRl

L - -\\\‘\'(‘l\ .\\?‘\-\‘\\”
/////Ir//// !f/fff//ﬂﬂﬂm
s Facebool &r:
(\nm,mummm m FLANTE S

SALERELETRRLR R V) C
Lt LT ) ,
AN U vy \\\\\\\\1\\\\\'\

ZFrlz
A \\\\\\\V\\\\\\\
o o s g
N N N AN
|
I
Y

,}//. I ////

\\\\\.4\\ AV A A AVE AN
774

T

™S

N =

///// 7 f!/, N S

waysman}

/ﬂ/ﬂ////f//f/mmrfIH/
AN 6 L IFEY

Y ¢ A
N, B e
I D rrr g r $PFE 0 rrlrr 2
BAVHE AR EERENAL SRR TR ANY
/ Vi 841 (Tl

AHF Theater
6500 W. Sunset Blvd., Los

Angeles 90028

(hidi bbb didgyy

-
»
o
.
L
K
-
'I

.- u‘-((/// .f//

> //u/// :

D P
v-\u:n\-

AW ALY AT s
WL QY A ey 135

dELD iy
uuu;.

il

1,
P
~
d
~
~

ISITHRE N




e | L s
. |

CHIPTS

Center for HIV Identification, Prevention
and Treatment Services

2017-2018 Mentored Pilot Grant Program

The Center for HIV, Identification, Prevention and Treatment Services (CHIPTS) is proud to announce a new vision and
process for its annual pilot grant program, with a focus on mentored research awards for investigators (ranging from
Doctoral Students to Assistant Professors). Applicants are encouraged to submit applications of innovative and
transformative domestic and international social, behavioral, policy, and combination bio-behavioral pilot studies that
will produce data and experiences that will support future funded grants and or career development for early-stage
investigators. Proposals should focus on the intersection of HIV/AIDS treatment and prevention and mental health and
or substance use co-morbidities. Proposals may budget up to $50,000 in total costs and must be able to be completed
within 12 months from date of award. It is anticipated that at least two awards will be made. Investigators from any
Southern California university, college, healthcare organization, or community-based organization (CBO) may apply, and
will be matched with a UCLA CHIPTS faculty mentor/sponsor.

The proposal process will occur in three phases, which includes: 1) submission of a one-page letter of intent due on
Monday, June 19, 2017 by 2:00 PM Pacific Time; 2) participation in a mandatory proposal mentoring meeting with the
CHIPTS Development Core Director and CHIPTS faculty with expertise relevant to the research concept, to occur
between June 26 and July 14; and 3) submission of an application due July 31, 2017 by 2:00 PM Pacific Time. Review and
notice of funding decisions will be made by August 31. All applications and correspondence should be directed to Dallas
Swendeman, PhD, MPH, Director, CHIPTS Development Core at dswendeman@mednet.ucla.edu. Details are outlined
below.

1. Applicant Eligibility
e Assistant Professors
e Assistant to Associate Research Scientists (or equivalent level within their organization), with a statement of
intent for an independent research career
e Post-Doctoral Fellows
e Doctoral Students (budget limited to $15,000)
e Applicants may be from any Southern California university, college, healthcare organization, or CBO.

2. Faculty Mentors/UCLA Sponsors

e Applicants may propose a senior mentor (i.e., Associate Professor level or higher) with whom they have an
established relationship at their institution or at UCLA.

e Doctoral students and post-doctoral fellows may propose a mentor at the Assistant Professor level, but CHIPTS
may also match a more senior mentor for the team.

e If the proposed mentor is not from UCLA, then CHIPTS will match the applicant with a UCLA CHIPTS faculty
mentor for additional mentoring and for IRB requirements (see below).

e |f a mentor is not proposed, then CHIPTS will identify and match a mentor for the applicant.

3. UCLA Institutional Review Board (IRB) Requirement
e Asingle IRB of record at UCLA is required, which is consistent with new NIH guidelines. Applicants from an

institution or organization other than UCLA will be matched with a UCLA CHIPTS faculty sponsor to meet this IRB
requirement.



4. Research Priority — Intersection of HIV/AIDS with Mental Health and or Substance Use

The proposed research must focus on CHIPTS' core theme of addressing the intersection of HIV/AIDS treatment
and prevention and mental health and/or substance use co-morbidities. This vision recognizes that getting to
90-90-90 and ending the HIV/AIDS pandemic will require supporting the most vulnerable and marginalized
populations living with and at-risk for HiV infection to progress through the HIV Care or Prevention Continuums.
This call is intentionally broad to encourage a wide range of innovative proposals with high potential to impact
either HIV incidence or rates of HIV virologic suppression.

5. One-Page Letter of Intent (LOI) ~ Due Monday, June 19, 2017 by 2:00 PM Pacific Time

LOIs may be up to one page with 0.5 inch margins and 11-point font.
LOls must include the following: '
o Your name, degrees, and full contact information {position, institution affiliation, email, phone, mailing
address)
o Brief summary of the proposed project, including the research question, target population(s), location(s)
of research, and methods
o Mentor's name (as available)
o Total amount of funding requested
LOls will be evaluated for responsiveness to the call based on eligibility and merit by CHIPTS faculty.
Notification of approved LOls will be sent by lune 16, 2017.
Applicants of approved LOIs will be invited to participate in a proposal mentoring meeting to discuss and refine
the research concept further before developing the full application.

6. Proposal Mentoring Meeting — June 26 to July 14, 2017

The proposal mentoring meeting will occur either in-person at UCLA or by video conference (Skype) between
June 26 and July 14. The meeting will include the applicant, proposed mentor{s), and CHIPTS team members.
The goal of the mentoring meeting is to discuss the research concept in more detail than the LOI provides and to
provide feedback on design, aims, budget, and timelines.

7. Application — Due Monday, July 31, 2017 by 2:00 PM Pacific Time

The application includes a three-page proposal narrative (single spaced, 0.5 inch margins, 11-point font}, which
includes:

Specific aims (< 0.5 page)

Research plan, which includes Significance (< 0.5 page), Innovation {< 0.5 page), Approach (~1 page).

Training and mentoring statement (< 0.5 page) highlighting the training opportunities provided to the applicant
by the proposed research, including the mentor(s) and their role(s).

Proposed publications and grant applications expected to result from the research (< 0.5 page)

References may be included on additional page(s) and do not count towards the 3-page limit.

In addition to the proposal narrative, applicants must submit a budget and budget justification with their application.

Applicants must use the PHS 398 Form Page 4 anly {Detailed Budget for Initial Budget Period) to submit their
budget. Please see attached form.

In addition to completing the PHS 398 Form Page 4, applicants must submit a brief budget justification (<1 page)
describing their expenses and include a timeline of activities.

Research personnel costs, supplies and small equipment costs are allowable in pilot grants to the extent that
they can be justified as being directly related to the proposed research project.

Travel may be included only if deemed necessary to conduct the study.

Indirect costs are not permitted on pilot grants. Any possible overlap with other sources of support must be
made clear and be justified in the application.

Please note that CHIPTS may not award the full budget requested based on expert review and balancing funds
for meritorious proposals.

All funds awarded for 2017-2018 projects must be spent within 12 months of date of award.

Funding is subject to final award approval from the National Institute of Mental Health. No funds will be
transferred until all NIH regulatory documents and approval have been received (including IRB approval). Any




overdrafts are the sole responsibility of the individual pilot grant awardee. Consistent with NIH policy, any
change in budget category (such as personnel, supplies, equipment) exceeding 25% requires prior written
approval by the Development Core Director.

Additionally, applicants must submit a biosketch of the lead investigator with their application.
e Only the biosketch of the lead investigator is required and must be in the new NIH format
(https://grants.nih.gov/grants/forms/biosketch.htm).
e Biosketches of mentors or other faculty participants are not required.
e No additional appendices or materials will be reviewed as part of the application.

Applications that do not follow the above guidelines, including those that exceed the page limit, may be returned
without review.

8. Review and Notice of Funding Decisions by August 31, 2017

Proposals will be reviewed by a committee of CHIPTS faculty and members of the CHIPTS Community Advisory Board.
Review criteria are based on:
e Responsiveness to CHIPTS' broad theme of addressing the intersection of HIV/AIDS treatment and prevention
with mental health and or substance use;
e NIH review guidelines for Significance, Innovation, Approach, and Environment (but note that environment for
this call refers to the research setting/partner, not the applicant’s institutional home);
e Potential for the applicant’s career development for publications and subsequent research grant applications for
HIV research.

9. Requirements of Funded Applicants

1. Certification of IRB review and approval must be provided and accepted by CHIPTS before the research may
occur.

2. Funded investigators must present their proposed work, progress, and final outcomes at annual CHIPTS Next

Generation Conferences and at one CHIPTS Community Advisory Board meeting annually.

An annual progress report will be due September 28, 2018.

4. Afinal report will be due on May 31, 2019, which includes a brief scientific summary, a final financial report,
abstract of work completed, publications submitted and planned, and grant applications submitted and
planned relevant to the seed grant.

5. All publications or presentations resulting in whole or in part from support by CHIPTS should acknowledge
CHIPTS as the funding source - NIMH Grant # P30MH58107.

6. Funded investigators must respond to annual requests for updates on publications and grant applications, for
the duration of funding of CHIPTS. This is critical to CHIPTS accountabilities to NIH. CHIPTS recognizes that pilot
grants often continue to produce publications, grant proposals, and other activities with project partners for
many years after data collection is completed.

7. Funded investigators will be requested to serve as reviewers for future pilot program applications.

w

ADDRESS FOR QUESTIONS AND FINAL SUBMISSIONS:

Dallas Swendeman, PhD, MPH
Director, CHIPTS Development Core
E-mail: dswendeman@mednet.ucla.edu

All materials (LOI, Full Proposal) should be submitted by email to Dr. Swendeman





